To be an indispensable patiner jn the fourney of everyone

whose life we totuch.
PH DEIN 13X

15 April 2015

Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.

Director, Market and Securities Regulation Department
Securities and Exchange Commission

EDSA, Greenhills

Mandaluyong City

Dear Dir, Felizmenio:
We are herewith submitiing our revised SEC Form 17-A Annual Report with attached

Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR) as Annex “A” thereto, pursuant to
Securities and Exchange Commission Advisory dated March 12, 2015.

Thank you and warm regards.

ery foruly yeurs,

| 7N

L

YL

. Socorro Ermac Cabreros
rporate Secretary

CEBU OFFICEr Phoenix Magukey Casoline Staton, M.C. Bnones 51,

MANILA OFFICE:  25/F Fort Legend Towers, Srd Avenue cormer 311 St
National Highway, Maguikay, Mandaues City, Cebu €014

HEAD OFFICE: Phoenix Bulk Depol Lenang, Daveo City 8000, T : ;
Fhillppines. Fort Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 1634, Philippines one
Trunkline; ~63 (82) 235-2862 Trunkfing: +832-403-4043 Philippines _
Fax +532-403-4002 Tel Noo +63 (32) 235-8168 | 236-5108

Eax; +63 (82) 2330168

www.phoenixfuels.ph




COVER SHEET

[aAlz[ofof2]0[7[2]8]3]
5.E.C. Registration Number

P JH-Jo-[E-[N[1-[x] [eple]T[rR[oJL]e]ulm] [ | [ |
[pP{wlofififrle[ i [n]E[S] Ji[Nn]c| [ | [ | [ |
crrrerr e
P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
{Company's Fuil Name)
s[Tleli]elal [HltJz]JolIn] [RIEJY[E[S] [R]D]
Blo| [rlaim[P[Aa[N[c|Aa] [L{a[N[Aa[N]G[ [ [ |
plalvlalol felvfrfy] [ [ [ [ [ [ 1T [ [ [ ]
N N N N O O R O
(Business Address: No. Street City / Town f Province)
| Socorro Ermac Cabreros | | {082) 235-8888 |
Contact Person Company Telephong Number
last Friday
[1T2] [3T1] SEC FORM 17 A [ 3 | | xx |
Month Day FORM TYPE Month Day
Fiscal Year Ending Annual Mealing
| NIA |
Secondary Licanse Type, if applicable
I |
Depl. Requiring this Doc Amended Articles Number/Secticn
Tolal Amount of Borrowings
| L [ [ [ | I T 7 T 1
Total No. of Stockhelders Domestic Foreign
To he accomplished by SEC Personne! Concearned
L 1 T 1T 1T 1T [ |
File Number LCU
L+ ¢ 1+ [ [ [ [ |
Documeni |.D, Cashier

Remarks = pls. use black ink for scanning purposes



—_—

10.

i1.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TQO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE

PHILIPPINES

For the period ended:
SEC identification number:
BIR Tax Identification No

Exact name of issuer as specified in its
charter

Province, country or olher jurisciction of
incorporation or organizalion

Industry Classification Code: )
Address of issuer's principal office
Postal Code:

Issuer's telephone number, including area
code:

Former name, former address and former
fiscal year, If changed since lasl report:

31 December 2014
A200207283
006-036-274

P.-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM
PHILIPPINES, INC.

Davao City, Philippines.

(SEC Use Only)

Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
8000

(082) 233-0168

Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8

of tha RSA

Title of each class

Number of Shares Qutstanding

COMMON

1,£28,777,232

PREFERRED

10,000,000

Armount of Debt Outstanding as of
December 31, 2014;

Are any or all of the securities lisled on
the Stock Exchange?

If yes, state the name of such Stock
Exchange and the class/es of securities
listed therein:

Php 17,949,934,696

Yes [v] No.[ |

—

Philigpina Stoék Exchange



12. Check whether the issuer has;

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed Yes [¥] No [ ]

hy Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17.1 thereunder or Sections 11 of
the RSA and RSA Rule 11(g)-1
thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141
of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines, during the preceding
twelve (12) months (or for such shorer
period the registrant was required to
file such reports):

(b) has been subject to such filing Yes [¥] No [ ]

requirements for the past ninety (20)
days:

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2014 and 2013 (incorporated as reference for ftem _and ___ of SEC Form 17-A)
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Business Description

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was
incorporated in the Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41% owned by P-H-O-
E-N-I-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (PPHI), a company organized in the
Philippines.

The Parent Company's shares of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE). The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of
petroleum products on wholesale and retail basis and operating of gas
stations, oil depots, storage facilities and allied services. The registered
office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHI"s primary
purpose is to provide management, investment and technical advice for
commercial, industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises. PPHI's
registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga,
Davao City.

The ultimate parent is Udenna Corporation, which is primarily organized to
purchase, acquire, take over and manage all or any part of the rights, assets,
business and property; undertake and assume the liabilities of any person,
firm, association, partnership, syndicate of corporation; and to engage in the
distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution control devices, units
and services, and all other pollution control related products and emission
test servicing. The ultimate parent company's registered office is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 418 operating retail service stations,
comprising of 141 service stations in Luzon, 56 in the Visayas and 221 in
Mindanao and a total of 61 service stations under construction as of
December 31, 2014.

1.1 Subsidiaries, Associate and their Operations
The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following entities as of

December 31 (the Parent Company and the subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as “the Group”):

2014 2013

P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI) 100% 100%
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global

Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) 100% 100%
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial

Park Corp. (PPIPC) 100% 100%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) 100% 100%



Chelsea Shipping Corp. (CSC) 100% 100%

Bunkers Manila, Inc. (BMI)* 100% 100%
Michael, Inc. (MI)* 100% 100%
PNX — Chelsea Shipping Corp.

(PNX — Chelsea)* 100% 100%
Chelsea Ship Management Marine

Services Corp. (CSMMSC)* 100% 100%
Fortis Tugs Corp. (FTC)* 100% 100%
Norse/Phil Marine Services Corp. (NPMSC)** 45% 45%

* Wholly-owned subsidiaries of CSC
**Associate of CSC

All the subsidiaries were organized and incorporated in the Philippines.

PPMI is primarily engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running
and supervising the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-
oriented companies such as petroleum service stations. PPMI was
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on January
31, 2007.

PGMI was registered with the SEC on July 31, 2006 to engage in the
manufacture, production and creation of all kinds of motor, and all other
transportation lubricants, fluids and additives of all kinds and other petroleum
products purposely for motor vehicles and other transportation. PGMI has
temporarily ceased its operation since 2008.

PPIPC is engaged in real estate development. PPIPC was registered with
the SEC on

March 7, 1996. PPIPC is also registered with the Housing and Land Use
Regulatory Board (HLURB) under Executive Order No. 648 and was granted
to sell parcels of land on the Group’s project, the Phoenix Petroleum
Industrial Park (the Park).

SPTT was registered with the SEC on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in
buying and selling, supply and distribution, importation and exportation,
storage and delivery of all types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation
and automotive use. It does not carry any inventory at any given time.

CSC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 17, 2006 and started
commercial operations on January 1, 2007 and is engaged in maritime
trade through conveying, carrying, loading, transporting, discharging and
storing of petroleum products, goods and merchandise of every kind, over
waterways in the Philippines.



BMI was registered with the SEC on March 7, 2000 to serve the growing
demand of marine fuel (bunker) of foreign vessels calling on the ports of the
Philippines. Aside from international bunkering, BMI also ventures into
hauling of marine fuel and petroleum products for major oil companies.

MI, which was registered with the SEC on December 26, 1957 and whose
corporate life was approved to be extended for another 50 years by the
SEC on May 6, 2008, is engaged in the business of acquiring and operating
floating equipment for charter or hire and for the conveyance and carriage
of goods, wares, and merchandise of every description in the Philippines
coastwise traffic without any fixed schedule. Ml is also engaged in the
trading of fuel oil.

PNX — Chelsea was incorporated on February 2, 2011 and is engaged in
the ownership and operation of vessels for domestic trade for the purpose
of conveyance or carriage of petroleum products, goods, wares and
merchandise of every kind and description.

CSMMSC was incorporated on March 30, 2012 to carry on the business of
ship management and to act as agent, broker, ship chandler or
representative of foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for
the purpose of managing, operating, supervising, administering and
developing the operation of vessels.

FTC was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and started commercial operations
on

November 8, 2013. It is engaged in the towage and salvage of marine
vessels and other crafts including their cargoes upon seas, lakes, rivers,
canals, bays, harbours, and other waterways between the various ports of
the Philippines, and to acquire by purchase, charter, lease or modes
recognized by law of obtaining title to or use of such equipment and
properties, real or personal, which may be necessary to achieve such
purpose.

NPMSC was incorporated on January 30, 2013 to engage in the business
of providing technical ship services and to act as agent, broker, ship handler
or representative of foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals
for the purpose of operating, supervising, administering and developing the
operation of vessels belonging to or which are or may be leased or
operated by said shipping corporations and individuals, and to equip any
and all kinds of ships, barges and vessels of every class and description
owned by any shipping corporation. NPMSC started commercial operations
on June 10, 2013.

PPMI's registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City and its principal place of business is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The registered office of PGMI, CSC, BMI, Ml and PNX — Chelsea, which is
also their principal place of business, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.



PPIPC's registered office is located at 4" Floor, Phinma Plaza, 39 Plaza
Drive, Rockwell Center, Makati City and its principal place of business is
located at 26™ Floor, The Fort Legend Tower, 3™ Avenue corner 31% Street,
The Fort Global City, Taguig City.

The registered office of SPTT, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Units 113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal
Highway, Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Zambales.

The registered address of CSMMSC and FTC, which is also their principal
place of business, is located at the 26/F, Fort Legend Towers, 3 Ave. corner
31% St., Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

The registered office of NPMSC, which is also its principal place of
business, is located at 2/F Harbor Centre Il Bldg., Railroad and Delgado
Sts., South Harbor, Port Area, Manila.

1.2 Acquisition of CSC

On September 6, 2012, CSC became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Parent Company upon the approval of the Parent Company's stockholders of
the acquisition of the 100% of CSC' outstanding shares from Udenna
Management Resources Corp. (UMRC), a related party under common
ownership (see Note 27.3). The acquisition was initially approved by the
Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on July 6, 2012 and was
subsequently ratified by the Parent Company"s stockholders on September 6,
2012.

Operation Highlights

Sales: Leading Independent Player in the Industry

Retail

We continue to strengthen our retail network in terms of service, products,
and customer experience.

¢ Solid position as the leading independent oil player, with 418 stations
nationwide: 141 in Luzon, 56 in Visayas, and 221 in Mindanao

¢ Opening of our flagship 400th station near the Mall of Asia, featuring a
commercial complex which includes Jollibee and Family Mart as
locators

eHigh acceptance of our flagship product, Phoenix Premium 98, which
enhances acceleration, reduces engine friction, and removes fuel
deposit — restoring overall lost engine performance

¢ Roll-out of 10-Point Forecourt Service Steps for improved and consistent
service levels by Phoenix stations nationwide



eTapping more locators to make our Phoenix stations an essential
destination of consumers and to expand our market. These locators
include restaurants in the fast food and quick service industries such
as McDonald's, Jollibee, Shakey’s, and Pizza Hut; convenience
stores such as Mini-Stop, 7-11 and Family Mart; automotive centers,
ATMs, and other shops. The non-fuel related business generated
Php 12.6 million revenues or 173% growth over 2013

eRecognition of outstanding dealers in the annual grand Business
Partners Appreciation Night, held in Manila for Luzon and Davao for
VisMin

Commercial

Phoenix fuels vital industries such as power, construction, transport, mining,
fishing, and manufacturing. We continue to be aggressive in acquiring new
accounts and retaining existing clients through focused account management
and customized service.

e Expanding to fuel oil to serve the power generation industry

¢ 10 years of partnership with Cebu Pacific as their major supplier of Jet-
A1 fuel nationwide. Cebu Pacific is the largest domestic airline
operator in the country.

e Enhanced product quality assurance

eProvision of technical assistance to clients through site visits and
product knowledge workshops

¢ Building for long-term business

Lubricants

For the year, the Lubricant Division rationalized its sales and product mix.
Run-out conditions due to port congestions resulted to lower volumes sales,
however, this forced the unit to be more strategic and moved to more
profitable SKUs/products. Percentage growths in our Specialties & Industrial
lines is noticeable, while still managing a decent increase in Motorcycle Oil
(MCO) share to the total company volume for 2014. This resulted to a higher
gross profit rate in 2014 compared to 2013.

Six (6) new Lubes Distributors across were been appointed in 2014 to cover
vacant territories.

Saturation drives were initiated across all 15 territories with the objective of
increasing the Company penetration & brand awareness. Distribution outlets
doubled to 2,402, where 524 signages were installed.

The Company gained ground in the motorcycle OEM sector with partnerships
with Ropali Corporation (120 branches) & Racal Motors (260 braches).



Marketing and Brand Activities:

Major regional events:

Inside Racing Bike Festival & Trade Show

The Company Sponsored the 8th Annual Inside
Racing Bike Festival and Trade show last March 22 and 23 at
Seashell Lane, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City.

2014 PHOENIX Cup 1/8 Mile Regional Shoot Out
Championships

Top drag racing teams and riders from all over
Mindanao gathered for the said even held on March 29-30,
2014 at Speed City, Crocodile Park, Maa, Davao City. This is
followed by Phoenix Accelerate Vega National Dragster 1/8
Mile Bracket Racing Competition held last June 7-8, 2014 in
the same venue.

PHOENIX Accelerate Vega Regional Autocross
Championships

Top autocross racers from cities inside and outside
Mindanao competed last March 29-30, 2014 at Speed City,
Crocodile Park, Maa, Davao City.

Other Motoring Events aim to boost PNX Lubes in 2014.

EVENT Date Venue

1. 2nd Convention of the
Federation of Motorcycle | Apr 12-13

Digos City, Davao

Motorcycle Clubs in the
Philippines

Clubs Del Sur
2. 20th Annual Convention of
the National Federation of Apr 4-6 Dakak, Dapitan City

3. 1st CHAMMP Motorshow May 4

Megatent, Libis,
Quezon City

4. 1st ROPALI Partakan Ride
and Rock Fest 2014

Apr 19 Sta. Ana, Cagayan

Puregold, Cagayan

5. 4th Unified Motor Show Apr 26-27 de Oro City
6. Phoenix Cyclomax :
Motocross May 24 Davao City
. : Carmona Race

Z,'. 8th Inside Racing Grand Nov 14-16 Track, Carmona

rix .

Cavite

8. PNX Motorsports Fest SRP Sugbu, Cebu
2014 Oct17-19 | ity




Delivering seamless logistics

Reliable Supply and Operations

The service chain starts at supply, and the product must be handled safely
and expertly at our depots and terminals, for delivery to our customers.

eImproving supply chain performance through integrated supply chain
operating system, inventory control and forecasting accuracy, and
distribution resource planning. Performance is measured in terms of
safety in operations, on-time delivery, and total end-to-end supply
chain costs.

eExpansion of storage and improvement of facilities in our depots and
terminals nationwide

e Completion of depot in Calapan, Oriental Mindoro, which will start
operating in January 2015, to cater to the south Luzon market.
Additional depots will be opened 2015.

e Centralization of the Scheduling unit to serve all depots and terminals,
with the goal of delivering within our standard lead time. In the next
year, we will acquire more lorries to serve our growing retail and
commercial accounts.

Operations, Logistics and Engineering

The Company achieved and exceeded target goals in operational startup in
new depots, and expanded its storage capacities in Luzon, Visayas, and
Mindanao, with special attention to “Greenfields” targets for dealer and retail
outlet growth. The Company additionally upgraded supportive facilities and
Human Resource capabilities to keep pace with the current growth of
business.

Retail Engineering continues to enhance retail station standards in
cooperation with Branding Business Unit.

These infrastructure and HR developments are designed to accommodate
predicted growth patterns for both commercial and consumer sales and will
assure that growth is not limited by logistical issues.

One example is storage capacity of 276 million liters with lined-up expansion
and additions in 2015. These are spread in locations such as Calaca in
Batangas, Cagayan de Oro City, Davao City, Subic in Pampanga,
Zamboanga City, Cebu City, New Washington in Aklan, and in Bacolod City.
Then, the newly inaugurated storage facility in Calapan, Mindoro.

On-going capacity expansion for areas in Cebu and Cagayan de Oro to
further support growth.

Customer-specific logistical development is a core strategy of the Company.

Since 2005, a customer-specific logistics development strategy has supported
its role as the exclusive logistics provider of leading budget carrier, Cebu
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Pacific Airlines, in all its Mindanao destinations. The Company also expanded
its logistics service to Cebu Pacific in areas in Visayas namely, Cebu, Kalibo,
llo-ilo, Caticlan and Tacloban.

Lubricant Manufacturing

Growth in both commercial and consumer lubricant sales has been and will
continue to be a priority. Pursuant to this, the Company has built strategic
logistical support through Depot Operations that established lubricant
warehousing and distribution capabilities in Cagayan de Oro, Zamboanga,
and Calaca, Batangas. This is in addition to the existing Central Warehouse
in Caloocan, Davao terminal, Cebu, and Bacolod.

Our Subsidiaries and Operations

The subsidiary companies and the services they provide to the Company
have always been a part of its vertical strategy that has allowed it to
successfully navigate the future of the deregulated downstream energy
business in the Philippines. These subsidiaries and their relationships to the
Company have created a symbiotic value creation and growth process for
both subsidiary and parent.

Phoenix Petroterminals and Industrial Park Corp. (PPIPC)

PHOENIX PETROTERMINALS & INDUSTRIAL PARK CORP.

Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial Park Corp. (PPIPC) is the developer of
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial Park (PPIP) located in Calaca, Batangas.
This industrial park covers 94 hectares of land, spanning barangays Salong,
Puting Bato West and Lumbang Calzada in Calaca.

In July 2014, PPIPC inaugurated its new port facility located at Brgy. Puting
Bato West, Calaca, Batangas. It is an L-shaped port facility with a pier deck of
120m x 18m, with 9m width trestle equipped with fenders, bollards, lighting
facilities and mooring dolphins. It is equipped with hoppers, conveyor system
and sprinklers that can discharge coal shipments of South Luzon Thermal
Energy Corp. (SLTEC) at the pier deck direct to its coal yards for faster
discharging and environment-friendly operations. The new port facility is
expected to enhance PPIPC's capability to accept more shipments from its
current and prospective locators.

PPIP is home to the steel manufacturing plant of Steel Asia Manufacturing
Inc., bulk solid warehouses of Arvin International Marketing, Inc., chemical
storage facilities of Asian Chemicals Corporation and Philippine Prosperity
Chemicals, Inc., the power plant of South Luzon Thermal Energy Corp., and
the biggest petroleum depot of Phoenix Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
nationwide.

As of end 2014, PPIP still has a land inventory of 48 hectares that is available
for sale or for lease to interested locators. PPIP is an ideal location to put up



manufacturing plants, warehouses, storage tanks and other facilities
especially those that are reliant on water transport.

Port volume of PPIP continued to pass the 1,000,000 MT mark achieved in
2013 as it handled 1,045,660 MT in 2014, or 4% higher compared to
1,007,742 MT achieved in 2013. Port revenues rose to P74.5 million, or 17%
higher compared to P63.4 million in 2013.

Chelsea Shipping Corporation (CSC)

In September 2012, Company acquired the entire outstanding capital stock of
Chelsea Shipping Corporation from Udenna Management & Resources
Corp., making CSC a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPPI.

The acquisition ensures control of product supply and minimizes and
eliminates potential risk of current and future supply and distribution
disruptions due to scarcity of tanker vessels.

The Chelsea Shipping Group is composed of Chelsea Shipping Corporation
and its subsidiaries Bunker Manila, Michael Inc., Chelsea Ship Management
& Marine Services Corp., Fortis Tugs, and PNX-Chelsea Shipping.

In 2014, the group posted revenues of Php 894.5 million and a net income of
Php 236.9 million with a total asset base of Php 5.26 billion. It is one of the
top five major petroleum tanker owners in the country, serving Phoenix
Petroleum Philippines, Cebu Pacific Air, Marine Fuels, and Batangas Bay
Carriers, among other companies, and sailing on local and regional seas.

In February 2014, CSC took delivery of M/T Chelsea Donatela, the 11th
vessel in the Chelsea Shipping Fleet. It is the sister ship of M/T Chelsea
Thelma, the largest Philippine-registered oil tanker, with the same
specifications of 14,000 DWT, 9,366 GRT and 146m in length.
Commencement of operations of M/T Chelsea Donatela began on July 2014.

In September, CSC acquired another vessel, M/T Chelsea Denise Il, which is
scheduled for delivery in March 2015.

The Chelsea Shipping Fleet currently has 12 vessels with a total capacity of
44,368 MT. These vessels are M/T Chelsea Thelma, M/T Chelsea Cherylyn,
M/T Chelsea Denise, M/T Chelsea Resolute, M/T Chelsea Intrepid, M/T
Chelsea Enterprise and M/T Excellence ( M/T Vela) owned by Chelsea
Shipping Corp. (CSC), M/T Ernesto Uno and M/T Jasaan owned by
Michael,Inc.; M/T Patricia owned by Bunkers Manila, Inc., M/T Chelsea
Donatela and M/T Chelsea Denise Il owned by PNX-Chelsea Shipping Corp.

The Chelsea Shipping Fleet is being managed by Chelsea Ship Management
& Marine Services Corp. (CSMMSC), with the exception of M/T Chelsea
Cherylyn, which is under ship management of Transnational Uyeno Maritime,
Inc. CSMMSC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSC, which was incorporated
in March 30, 2012.



The entire Chelsea Fleet is classed by reputable Classification Associations:

*1ACS Class Bureau Veritas - M/T Chelsea Cherylyn, M/T Chelsea
Donatela, M/T Chelsea Thelma
and M/T Chelsea Denise

Il

* Ocean Register of Shipping - M/T Chelsea Resolute, M/T Chelsea
Denise, M/T Chelsea Excellence,
M/T Chelsea Intrepid, M/T

Ernesto Uno and M/T Jasaan

* Filipino Vessels Classification System Inc. - M/T Chelsea Enterprise

In line with the company‘s vision to upgrade its entire fleet to comply with
international standards, M/T Patricia, M/T Chelsea Intrepid, M/T Chelsea
Cherylyn and M/T Chelsea Thelma are SIRE-compliant. The other remaining
vessels of the Fleet are presently undergoing inspection by a SIRE-accredited
inspector for SIRE qualification.

Three vessels of the Chelsea Fleet — M/T Chelsea Cherylyn, M/T Chelsea
Thelma and M/T Chelsea Donatela — are registered with the Board of
Investments and enjoy BOI incentives including Income Tax Holiday
incentive.

For its newest vessel, M/T Chelsea Denise Il, an application for registration
with the BOI has been filed and is pending approval.

For 2015, CSC plans to use its larger vessels for chartering locally or
regionally.

Health, Safety, Security, and Environment:
Making safety a way of life

The Company aims to build a safety-conscious culture that is deeply
engrained and readily apparent in every way a Phoenix employee thinks and
performs his or her job in the workplace.

It envisions to address occupational health, safety, security, and
environmental management issues and concerns and effectively integrate
them in the top management's day-to-day business decision-making
processes and strategic planning.

The formalization of its HSE policy in 2010 signifies top management’s full
commitment in supporting and promoting HSE management programs and
initiatives.

Its goal is to achieve a zero-accident operation. To attain this, the Company
inculcates upon all its employees, safety as a way of life. That it is everyone's
responsibility. Also, the Company provides continuing education and
comprehensive training on safe work practices and operational competence.
Employees are evaluated on their compliance through HSE audits and
reviews.
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More HSE programs and documents are underway, such as a Safety
Orientation Program for New Hires, Work Permitting Program,
Accident/Incident Investigation and Reporting System, Emergency Response
Organization, Bulk Receiving Operations, Tank Truck Loading Operations,
and Tank Truck Delivery Operations. New HSE programs will continue to be
developed and written as deemed necessary. The highlights of HSE
programs and activities are as follows:

e The continued process of attaining a safety culture within the
company premises.

e The continuing conduct of safety orientations for new employees
and those who have worked continuously for 2 years.

e Mandatory continuing safety training of forecourt personnel in
service stations.

e Trainings provided to depot personnel in terms of operational
knowledge in accordance with the company’s ISO certified
procedures, fire safety, and response team organization.

¢ Incident reporting made a standard program for all employees to
ensure that necessary actions and interventions are taken to
preclude similar incidents in the future..

e The attainment of NO LOST MAN HOURS in the workplace
without injury in all depots and terminals and offices.

e The setting up of continuing programs such as annual safety
inspections, preventive maintenance and defensive driving
seminars for company drivers who operate company owned
trucks as well as drivers of ex-bodega clients.

e Providing depots and terminals with the necessary safety
equipment for firefighting, personal protective equipment and other
HSE items (Oil Spill Booms, eyewash and shower stations, ETC)
in compliance with government requirements and industry
practice.

e Work permit issuance monitoring and compliance.

e Review of accreditation/updating requirements of service stations
and depot contractors with the end view of aligning safety
requirements and programs vis-a-vis company safety standards.

e Setting up of an HSE organization to oversee the implementation
of programs in all depots and terminals and the formation of a
management heath, safety, and environment committee to
provide directions across the organization.

e Safety shall remain to be a factor in all business decisions and
activities.

e Continuing assessments of depots and terminals on their
compliance with government requirements.

e The implementation of guidelines on safety and how to improve
the same in order to maintain high standards of safety awareness
and HSE capabilities.
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Enabling a strong company

Finance

Financial capability and competence has been and continues to be a core
strength and differentiator in the Phoenix success story.

Fund raising and Effective Investor Relations

The Philippine debt market celebrated two landmark events on November 10,
2014: debut and maiden issuance in the organized secondary debt market of
an independent oil company, Phoenix Petroleum and the first ever listing of a
Short Term Commercial Paper (STCP)- as security that hasn't been offered to
the public in more than a decade. The remarkable performance of the
Company has extended to the investing public as reflected in the over
subscription of the PNX STCPs due 2015 of almost two times (2X). The Php
2 Billion STCPs were offered by PNX to investors through its underwriters AB
Capital & Investment Corporation (AB Capital) and Multinational Investment
Bancorporation (MIB) from October 14 to 17, 2014 and were issued October
24, 2014. PNX uses the proceeds from the offer on its working capital
requirements.

Throughout year, the team actively managed investor relations by
participating in broker-sponsored investor forums locally and in SE Asia, as
well as meeting local and foreign-based Fund Managers and Analysts on a
one-on-one basis.

The BPM has both tactical and strategic objectives.

IT infrastructure Enhancements with hardware and software programs to
improve security to the Company network. The enhancement is also aimed
for improved capacity and speed for more effective internal processes and
customer support.

On October 1, 2013, the company’s SAP A1 ERP (Enterprise Resource
Program) went live. At an investment of Php90.72MM (inclusive of Business
Process Mapping), the SAP A1 ERP is a substantial improvement over the
Company's old SAP Business One system. The more robust ERP effectively
handles all financial transactions (budget, Purchasing, Invoicing, Banking and
Real Estate Contracts) across the organization. The system allows users to
enter transactions directly into the system at point of creation rather than
being created manually — backended by Finance. Besides streamlining and
simplifying many processes in the Company, the system has more robust
security. Moreover, management can process many previously manual
transactions such as Purchase Requisition online — thereby speeding up
processes with real time monitoring. This system although clearly an inwardly
focused one — ensures that the Company processes all stakeholders needs
as expediently as necessary with the required controls and approvals of
Management. In 2014, the reporting module is being developed and
enhanced.
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It is also aimed the company's subsidiaries will be running in SAP
environment. Thereby, rolling out SAP to two (2) of its subsidiaries, PPIPC
and SPTT last February 1, 2015 and March 1, 2015 respectively. CSC and
Subsidiaries is in the process of business process mapping and targeted to
be rolled out to SAP by January 2016.

People

People and knowledge have been the foundation of the Phoenix success
story from the beginning. This past year, the Company grew not only in
numbers from 521 staff to 550, but this also added extensively to its
knowledge and technical capability especially in the areas of marketing, brand
development and logistics to support the Company"s expansion.

Investments in Supply Chain & Logistics and Purchasing Business
Units.

Supply is in the forefront in reducing vulnerability to price and supply volatility
as impacted by world oil prices which have more than halved since June
2014, crashing on worries over global oversupply due to increasing shale
production, and weak demand in a fumbling world economy. It creates a
buffer against a form of bullwhip effect further influenced by refinery upsets
and inclement weather.

Supply focuses on improving supply chain performance and maximising
efficiencies. Operational objectives ensure that the next step in the supply
chain meets strategic and tactical goals. It provides compliance with Phoenix
standards, while constantly minimizing costs by controlling and managing
inventories. A set of tools delivers this objectives, namely: (1) integrated
supply chain operating system, (2) inventory control and forecasting
accuracy, and (3) distribution resource planning. In evaluating performance, it
focused on the following categories to create consistency and balance across
the chain: (1) safety in operations, (2) service measured by on-time delivery,
and total end-to-end supply chain costs.

Supply lays the foundation for future supply chain capability. To sustain the
momentum for improvement and efficiency, support its re-engineering
program, and ensure a future flow of talent into the organization, Supply
began an initiative to recruit graduates from top universities with technical
background. Along with the recruitment program, it provides on-going training
for existing employees to help them further enhance their supply chain
knowledge and skills. Thus, efforts is now on creating a strong pipeline at all
levels as part of its core mission to improve service, lower cost and develop
talent, capabilities /competencies.

The investment in more senior management and staff technical competency
in Purchasing combined with the higher capabilities of the SAP A1 ERP is
expected to increase overall efficiency and cost effectiveness of locally
purchased materials, supplies, equipment and services particularly the
Company's numerous building contractors (for the construction, repair and
maintenance of the Company's nationwide network of retail stations and
depots). Full manning complement of the Purchasing unit was achieved in
2014 with the hiring of additional technical buyers.
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Both Supply and Purchasing are expected to protect and enhance the net
margin and bottom line of the business through cost effectiveness of the
Company.

Brand of reliability, Vision of indispensability

The past eight years and the succeeding years, we will see the Company
continuing to build its permanent foundation for the expression of the
Phoenix brand. Based on a systematic and independent analysis of what
we do, who we are, how we behave, and where we are going, the Phoenix
Brand strategy is a permanent building block in the sustainability of our
growth and value creation.

The past year's brand development focused heavily on corporate brand, as
the Company built the retail outlet and commercial growth that built the
critical mass necessary to significantly expand more consumer-targeted
brand communications in the next 12 months.

Both Philippine and international opinion leaders and strategic relationships
were successfully targeted as Phoenix achieved corporate recognition in
awards and nominations in markets as diverse as Hong Kong and
Singapore.

Brand Phoenix is being progressively implemented via an integrated,
coordinated and seamless brand strategy across fuels, product brands,
retail network, personnel and corporate operations.

Few of the 2014 and 2013 brand activities/events:

1. The Company signs multi-year partnership with National Basketball
Association (NBA), a sports global brand with huge following across
the world.

Benefits of the partnership includes:

- participation in all NBA events in the Philippines such as Jr. NBA
presented by Alaska; NBA 3X presented by Sprite and the NBA Global
Games, NBA-themed promotions, hospitality visits of NBA legends and
players plus the use of naming rights --- Official fuel of the NBA.

- Phoenix run NBA-themed promotions both in 2013 and 2014.
Phoenix-NBA On the Road to Play-offs Promo offering Phoenix customers
limited edition aluminum NBA sports bottles at participating Phoenix
stations which featured 8 teams--- Chicago Bulls, Boston Celtics, Los
Angeles Lakers, Houston Rockets, New York Knicks, Oklahoma Thunders
and Miami Heat.

- Phoenix-NBA Fastbreak to Summer Promo offering limited edition car
sunshades which featured as well 8 teams---San Antonio Spurs, Los
Angeles Lakers, Houston Rockets, Oklahoma City Thunder, Indiana
Pacers, Miami Heat, New York Knicks and Chicago Bulls.
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- Phoenix was named as major sponsor in the once-in-a-lifetime NBA
Global Games held at Mall of Asia Arena last October 10, 2013. 50 game
tickets with overnight hotel accommodation and travel allowance was
raffled off to lucky Patrons in the Phoenix-NBA Gas up, Match up Promo.
50 Winners from Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao came together to watch
the NBA Global Games match-up between Houston Rockets and Indiana
Pacers. It may seem just a promotion but we actually made some dreams
happen.

- Phoenix hosted the Jr. NBA/Jr. WNBA program in Davao in 2013
and in Cebu in 2014 which attracted a record breaking number of
participants. Two players in Davao leg while 3 in Cebu leg made it to the
All-Stars and was rewarded an authentic NBA experience abroad.

2. Phoenix supported the Gilas Pilipinas, national basketball team in their
historic journey to the 2014 FIBA World Cup and Asian Games 2014. This
included support for the Kwentong Gilas documentary series. “Oras Na Ng
Gilas” promo run at our retail stations where motorists availed of limited
Gilas Pilipinas Sports Watch.

4. The Company also ran nationwide promos that was not NBA-themed.
The Phoenix Gas Na, Good As Cash Promo in 2013 where we gave away
Phoenix-Union Bank Visa Cash Cardsas prizes. Branded Cash cards were
pre-loaded with Cash worth P100K, P75K, 50K and 25K which they can
use to buy anything they want. The Phoenix OMG or “Oh My Gas” Load
Promo runin 2014 where we gave away free mobile load for worth P30,
P50 or P100 for a minimum fuel purchase.

5. The Company supported Ms.Earth 2014 as an official sponsor for the
said pageant held at University of the Philippines Theater, in Diliman,
Quezon City. Before the coronation night, the Ms. Earth 2014 Candidates
had series of activities with Phoenix including mall tours, school tours,
Phoenix Retail Station visits and charity visit. They joined sportsfest and
clean-up drive. Did also some Meet and Greet in various Phoenix Stations
in Metro Manila. Ms. Earth 2014 was won by the Philippine Candidate,
Jamie Herell, from Cebu City.

6. The Company won best booth or best pavilion display during the
Transport Show and Franchise Expo in 2012 and 2013. In 2014, won
Special Citation for Best Booth Design in the Franchise Asia Philippines.

7. The Company launched Phoenix Kalsada Brigada nationwide, our
motorists assist program offering FREE vehicle check-up to all Phoenix
customers. We did KalsadaBrigada during Holy Week and Undas week last
2013 and the customer participation significantly increased as compared to
previous years. Program also provided opportunities to tie-up with up-
coming brands to offering free products to our motorists.

8. In 2013, launched Phoenix Premium 98, our premium fuel with high
octane rating plus performance additives that enhances acceleration,
reduces engine friction, removes fuel deposit and overall improves and
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restores lost engine performance. Premium 98 is our flagship brand. A
product that combines value for money and performance that will make you
feel the difference in your car.

9. Phoenix launched the first phase of Phoenix Central, a Phoenix App
available in the App Store which gives information on nearest Phoenix
Station in your site, fuel calculator and motoring News & tips.

10. The Company was the presenter of the 23rd Trans port Show last May
22-25, 2014 at the SMX Convention Center, SM Mall of Asia, Pasay City to
increase brand visibility in events catering to the ABC market. Phoenix
Premium 98 was given centered stage in this event. Since 2012, Phoenix
Petroleum has been the presenter of the event.

11. Supported the 8th Mindanao Franchise Expo held at the Abreeza
Ayala Mall in Davao City last September 12-14, 2014 as Diamond Sponsor.

12. Joined and or sponsored various festivals such Sinulog in Cebu City,
Dinagyang in llo-ilo City, Kadayawan&Arawng Davao in Davao City,
Masskara and Panaad in Bacolod City and other smaller various festivities.

13. Participated in the 2nd BIMP-EAGA & IMT-GT Trade Fair and Business
Leaders' Conference as silver sponsor and official fuel partner of the
event. The Brunei Darussalam Indonesia Malaysia Philippines-East
ASEAN Growth Area (BIMP-EAGA) and the Indonesia Malaysia Thailand -
Growth Triangle (IMT-GT) was held at the SMX Convention Center, SM
Lanang Premier, Davao City on October 23-26, 2014.

Major Capital Expenditures

The following major projects were completed and/or on-going as of end
December 2014:
¢ New Pier in Calaca, Batangas
e On-going expansion in Cagayan Storage
e 50 Retail Stations completed and additional 61 on-going
construction of Phoenix Service Stations in various sites in the
country.
e On-going construction of Company corporate headquarters in
Davao
e Acquisition of 14,000 Metric Ton Dead Weight Marine Tanker.
e Acquisition of two (2) Tug-boats
e Acquisition of Land in Dumaguit, Aklan for expansion

Other Significant Operational Highlights

In an unceasing effort to improve its operations, the Company embarked on
two major efficiency-enhancing programs.
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Quality Management Systems

On February 1, 2008, the Company received its first accreditation from
Bureau Veritas for ISO 9001: 2000 accreditation. ISO 9000 is a family of
standards for quality management systems. The scope of the quality system,
intended for its Davao bulk plant and aviation fuel tank truck operations,
included “Receiving, Storage and Distribution of Petroleum Fuels”. In the last
quarter of 2008, audit for ISO process were done and the Company was
evaluated to be compliant. Subsequently, in yearly audit and re-certification,
the Parent Company outstandingly and consistently pass the said
accreditation.

Summary of ISO Certifications received as follows:

ISO 9001:2008

Location Scope Date
issued/Recertification
Davao Receiving, Storage Feb 01, 2008/Nov. 6,
Terminal and Distribution  of 2012
Petroleum Fuels and
Into Plane Refuelling
Service
Calaca Receiving, Storage Jul 10, 2010
Terminal and Distribution of
Petroleum Fuels.
Zamboanga Receiving, Storage Nov 10, 2011
Depot and Distribution of
Petroleum Products
and Into Plane
Services
Misamis Receiving, Storage April 8, 2014
Oriental and Distribution of
Depot (CDO Petroleum Fuels.
Facility)
Bacolod Receiving, Storage Passed and
Depot and Distribution of Recommended for
Petroleum Fuels. Certification

Bacolod and Cagayan de Oro facility is now on the stage 2 of the
accreditation.

EXTERNAL AND CORPORATE AFFAIRS

As part of the Company"s commitment to uphold best practices in corporate
affairs and social responsibility, the Company through its External and
Corporate Affairs Department has remained committed to maintain a good
and productive relationship with its stakeholders in the communities where
the Company operates.
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The Company sees to it that its various operational sites all over the country
are legally compliant with all permitting and licensing requirements of the
national and local government units.

The Company engages in regular consultations in communities, where it
operates and where it intends to operate in the future. It discloses as part of
its transparency program, information about its present activities and future
plans and seeks feedback regarding its performance. It aims to contribute to
the social and economic development of the areas where it operates.

The Company intends to implement a sustainable and culturally acceptable
business programs in consultation with stakeholders and in cooperation
with the local government units. Building literacy and women empowerment
shall be key priorities of the Company in community development..

The Company continues to pursue better media relationship through
business-media dialogues, meetings and media fora. The Company will
continue to make announcements through press releases and printing of
articles, research, annual reports.

Being a very busy and challenging year, the Company was very prominent in
2014 in public coverage as it was conspicuously present in television, radio,
print, and internet where all major achievements of the Company like the
disclosures, quarterly reports, annual reports, station openings and
inaugurations of stations and depots, Business Partners Night and the
Phoenix Open, and a host of other major activities were published in national
broadsheets and local dailies.

The Company spearheaded various corporate social responsibility projects
and activities aimed to help create awareness in the preservation and
protection of the environment, to support and strengthen education specially
the youth sector, and to provide community service.

In coordination with the Phoenix Philippines Foundation, various activities
were undertaken by the Company.

The Company established libraries and provided books to 20 public schools
in the Visayas and Mindanao and continued to provide assistance to its
adopted schools in Davao, Zamboanga and Calaca, Batangas as part of its
educational programs. In 2014, there are 14 adopted schools compared to 7
in 2013. it also continued its various livelihood program which in 2014 252
scholars grduated. Participated in "Brigada Eskwela" in various schools in
Davao and Cebu.

The Company also planted thousands of seedlings all over Mindanao,
Visayas and Luzon to support the preservation efforts and providing care to
our only environment. It signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the
Local Government for the adoption of 5-hectare watershed in Davao. It has
likewise assured financial support to the endangered Philippine Eagle for 5
years as it participated in the Adopt-An-Eagle Program of the Philippine Eagle
Foundation. The Company is a regular active sponsor and or participant of
activities like the Earth Hour and International Coastal Clean-up.

In valuing life, the Company has undertaken numerous blood-letting activities
in coordination with the Philippine National Red Cross, conducted medical

18



and dental missions in various provinces, and has sponsored the various
"Operations Manhood" which total 465 beneficiaries took advantage of
activity.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Phoenix Petroleum Philippines Foundation:
Partners in community-building

Phoenix Philippines Foundation (PNX Foundation) remains steadfast in its
commitment to serve the community as an indispensable partner. In line with
the national growth of Phoenix, in 2014, the foundation expanded its
programs in education, environment, health and safety, and outreach to serve
more people in more communities across the nation.

It takes the united efforts of a community to enable opportunities for many, to
sustain common resources, and to bounce back from tragedies. The
Filipino's resilience is drawn from the strength and compassion of others, and
it is this that inspires us to help build a brighter future for our countrymen.

Through Phoenix Philippines Foundation's programs in education,
environment, health and outreach, the Company hope to make a difference in
the communities it serves.

Education

ADOPT-A-SCHOOL PROGRAM

The Company has now seven adopted schools: in Davao City, Zamboanga
and Salong Batangas. 1,374 kindergarten pupils graduated from the
Company's adopted schools in Davao and Zamboanga last March 2014.

For the adopted pre-school libraries, the Company donated books, tables and
chairs.

LIVELIHOOD PROGRAM

252 students graduated in June 2014 from Electrical, Computer Technology,
Beauty & Hairstyling and Welding courses. The Company also turned over
three welding machines and three computers units to the training center in
Davao City. Beauty and Hairstyle students conducted a "Libreng Gupit"
activity for teachers, students and guests.

Environment

Since 2012 the Company adopted a Philippine Eagle, for five years. This is in
support of the Philippine Eagle Foundation®s wildlife conservation program to
preserve the eagle's population threatened with extinction.

Under the adoption program, the Company will grant an annual cash donation
of P125,000 to be used to take care of the needs of the eagle, the operation
and maintenance of the eagle's breeding facility, and the associated
conservation research and campaigns of PEF.
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The adopted bird, the ,Phoenix Eagle,” is a 15-year-old male eagle that
arrived in 2005 from Sultan Kudarat. The eagle had been shot, but with care
gradually recovered.

Aside from the Eagle adoption, the Company continued with its annual tree-
planting and fish dispersal programs. It planted 18,500 seedlings in areas of
Mindanao, Visayas and Luzon.

In Batangas and Davao, the Company organized a coastal cleanup with
Team Phoenix, barangay officials, and students, parents, and teachers of its
adopted schools.

At the Phoenix Petroterminal and Industrial Park in Calaca, Batangas where it
has a hatchery, the Company's Pawikan Conservation Program continues to
protect the endangered marine turtles.

Health and Safety

The Company, conducted "Operation Manhood" of which 464 young boys
benefited on such medical activity.

In partnership with the Philippine Red Cross, the Company organized
bloodletting activities in Mindanao, collecting a total of 1,669 cc of fresh
blood.

Outreach

The Company continues to do its tradition of gift giving, of which 750
recipients kids from Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao received gift packs and
school supplies.

Business

The Company was adjudged as the Best Independent Oil Company in Asia
by World Finance magazine in its 2013 Oil & Gas Awards. The annual
Awards is given “in recognition of those companies that have successfully
weathered the tough economic conditions while ensuring the continuing
success of the industry.” The London-based magazine cited the awardees
“for their forward thinking, business acumen, and services to the oil and gas
industry.”

e Top 7 Importer in the Philippines, awarded by the Bureau of
Customs, for paying a total of P4.733 billion in import taxes to the
government. Phoenix Petroleum became the fourth biggest importer,
after the major companies. In 2011, Phoenix was also the Top 7
Importer, paying P3.69 billion in duties and taxes.

e No. 1 Importer in the Port of Davao City, awarded by the Bureau of

Customs. This is the third consecutive year for the Company as Top
Importer / Taxpayer in Davao.
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e Top 3 Importer in the Port of Cagayan de Oro for CY 2013.
awarded by the Bureau of Customs. Phoenix Petroleum paid P429
million in duties and taxes for CY 2013.

e Top 6 Importer in the Port of Batangas for January - June 2013

e Top 2 Taxpayer in the City of Cebu among Supplier of Goods and
Services for CY 2011

Management

President/CEO and founder, Dennis A. Uy had its share of awards and
recognition in 2014 and 2013 for the work he has done with the Company.
Among which were as follows:

2013 - Agora Award for Outstanding Achievement in
Entrepreneurship-Large Scale given by the Philippine
Marketing Association for "growing a provincial-based
business into nationally successful brand, for embodying the
Filipino's enterprising spirit, for persevering despite the odds,
and for being and indispensable partner of the Filipino".

2013 - Nominated and became a finalist in the Asia
Business Leaders Award (ABLA) sponsored by CNBC Asia.
This was the third consecutive year that Mr. Uy was
recognized by ABLA.

2014 - Named as Outstanding Filipino Achiever for
Entrepreneurship during the Golden Globe Annual Awards
2014 " for his outstanding and significant achievement in
Entrepreneurship".

Chelsea Shipping Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Phoenix Petroleum also received the Best Petroleum Products
Conveyance Service Provider award in that event.

2014 - Awarded also as Most Outstanding Mindanao
Business Leader in the 3rd Mindanao Business Leaders &
Entrepreneur Awards. Mr. Uy won the Mega-Entrepreneur
category. Awardees were decided based on five criteria: Best
Practices, Corporate Social Undertakings, Degree of
Innovation, Creative and Ingenious Production and the Extent
of Expansion (local and international market).

Brand Awards

Best Booth (Non-Food 54-sgm category) in Franchise Asia Philippines 2013,
Asia's biggest franchise event. This is second year in a row for the Company
to win this award.

Best Pavilion Display in Trans Sport Show 2013

Best Booth in the 15th National Tuna Congress Trade Exhibit given by the
National Tuna Congress.
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Winner, 1st Mindanao Youth Choice Awards 2013 as "trusted brand in
petroleum product distribution and outstanding brand name in Mindanao".

Special Citation for Best Booth Design "for its remarkable brand promotion
through booth design and aesthetics: in the Franchise Asia Philippines 2014,
the biggest franchise show in Asia, held at the SMX Convention Center,
Pasay City last July 16-20, 2014.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company receives a citation given by the Department of Education
Adopt-A-School Program "in grateful recognition of the Company's strong
support to the Adopt-A-School Program, through the delivery of substantial
and meaningful programs of intervention to the public schools".

Sports

In 2013 Recognition for the Sports Development given during the 19th So Kim
Cheng Sport Awards for the Company's untiring support to sports
development in Davao City and Region XI.

Civic Awards

Datu Bago Award 2013 for President and CEO Dennis A. Uy, " for bringing
the name of Davao with pride to the national and Asia levels" for his
contributions to the business and community. The Datu Bago Awards is the
highest award the City Government of Davao bestows to a citizen.

2. Business of Issuer

i) Principal’s products or services and the Company’s market and
distribution method:

The Company's core businesses are: the trading of refined petroleum
products, lubricants and other chemical products on a wholesale basis
nationwide and the operation of oil depots and storage facilities, allied
services and shipping. The Company's ultimate markets are motorists,
companies using petroleum products and lubricants as well as airline
companies in need of specialized services.

It mainly sells refined petroleum products through its network of retail
service stations, carrying the “Phoenix Fuels Life” brand name. Its retail
service stations started in the Davao Regions in 2005 and soon spread
out around Southern Mindanao thereafter. Starting 2008, the Company
expanded its retail business in neighboring provinces, then into Luzon and
the Visayas. The Company also directly serves commercial and industrial
accounts.

The Company also distributes lubricants and chemicals. The Company

produced its own blend of lubricants variety and sells these under the
Phoenix brand name such as Cyclomax, a motorcycle oil brand.
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The Company provides storage space for the Jet A-1 fuel supply of Cebu
Pacific Airlines (CPA) for the latter"s requirements for their Cebu, Kalibo,
Davao, Cagayan de Oro, Cotabato, General Santos, Zamboanga City,
Pagadian City, Butuan and Ozamis City flights. The Company is the
exclusive service provider for CPA in all its Mindanao Operations. It also
supplies Jet A-1 fuels and services to Tiger Airways in Aklan.

ii) Percentage distribution of sales or revenues:

On 2014, the Company attained a Total Revenue of R34.734 billion which
R31.937 billion or 96.94% was accounted for by the sales of petroleum
products, and the balance accounts for the revenue on Charter Hire
(Shipping), fuel service, storage income and other income.

iii) Other products or services:

In addition to its lubricant lines, the Company continues to promote and
sell car care products into the market such as car fresheners, tire black,
and others. In response to the automotive market's demand for better oil
formulation for Heavy Duty Engine Oil, the Company launched Zoelo
Extreme, a high-quality shear-stable diesel engine oil, with better
formulation and packaged in a new label design. This formulation meets
API CI-4/SL standard that offers superior quality and heavy duty engine
performance among SAE 15w-40 Multi-grade engine oils. This variant is
also suitable for mixed fleet of diesel and gasoline engines.

iv) Competition:

The Company's main competitors are the major players in the
downstream oil industry namely, Petron, Shell and Chevron, other multi-
national industry players such as Total (of France), PTT (of Thailand) and
other independent local players like Seaoil Corp., TWA, Filpride, Phoenix,
Liquigaz, Petronas, Prycegas, Micro Dragon, Unioil, Isla LPG Corp., Jetti,
Eastern Corp., Perdido and Filoil Gas Co., as well as the end users who
directly import part of their requirements captured 28.9 percent of the
market. The three major players are estimated by the Department of
Energy (DOE) to have a cumulative market share of 71.1% of the total
Philippine market as of June 30, 2014 while the balance of 28.9% is
shared among the aforementioned multi-national players, the independent
players and importers. The Company was reported to have 4.00% of the
market, while Seaoil cornered around 2.9%, Total 2.7%, PTT 2.4%, Jetti
1.6%, TWA about 1.6% while the remaining balance of 13.7% is shared
by the other independent players and importers.

It should be noted that the Company competes with other players in the
industry in terms of pricing, quality of service and products, and strategic
locations and visual manifestation of its service station retail network.
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v) Sources and availability products and principal suppliers

From the start of its operation in 2005 until the first half of year 2009, the
Company procured its petroleum products within the Philippines. Its main
suppliers are PTT Philippines Corporation as the well as Total Philippines
Corporation. With the growth in volume and the availability of the storage
capacities in Calaca, Batangas and the Davao expansion, the Company
started importing refined petroleum products by September 2009 until the
present from Singapore and Taiwan. The Company also sources
products from Thailand, Korea and China through various foreign traders
and suppliers.

The Company continues to import some of its lubricants from Singapore
and Thailand.

vi) Transactions with and/or dependence on related parties.
The Company has existing synergies with related companies as follows:
e UDENNA Corporation.

Lease of properties from UDENNNA Corporation which are
identified under Leased Properties;

e Chelsea Shipping Corporation (CSC).

The Company has existing Contracts of Affreightment with CSC to
haul the Company‘s petroleum supplies. CSC serves other clients
including but not limited to Cebu Pacific Airways, Marine Fuels and
other petroleum companies. The Company acquired CSC last
September 2012.

vii) Patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises

The Company uses its registered trademark PHOENIX Fuels Life ™ to
identify its brand. Branding is a cornerstone of the Company"“s marketing
program. It sells its refined petroleum products like the Magma Diesel,
Raptor Premium Gasoline, Glide Unleaded 93-RON, Phoenix Regular
Gasoline, Flame Kerosene and Phoenix JET A1. Below are the approved
Trademark by the International Property Philippines (IPP) through the
Trademark Department.

Product/Device Reg. No. Date_ . of Term/Duration
Registration
Phoenix Raptor X Premium & | 4-2008-
Device 005932 Oct. 13, 2008 Oct 13, 2018
: . 4-2008-
Phoenix Regular & Device 005931 -do -do-
Phoenix Flame Kerosene & | 4-2008- “do- “do-
Device 005929
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Phoenix Glide Super | 4-2008- _do- -do-
Unleaded & Device 005933
Phoenix Magma Diesel & | 4-2008- -do- do-
Device 005936

, . 4-2008-
Phoenix Jet A-1 & Device 005934 -do- -do

. . 4-2008-

Cage Free Ur Spirit & Device 012148 Feb. 09, 2009 Feb. 09, 2019
Nest Necessities for Life & | 4-2008- “do- “do-
Device 012149

viii)  Total number of employees

The Company has a total of 550 as of December 31, 2014 from 521
employees in December 31, 2013. This is broken down as follows:

Chairman
President/CEO

Vice President
Assistant Vice President
Senior Manager
Managers
Supervisor/PTC*

Rank and File

* Professional, Technical and Confidential

2014 2013
1 1

1 1

5 5

11 8

27 8

33 17
171 159
300 294
550 521

There are no labor unions in the Company and its subsidiaries nor are
there any labor cases filed against the Company and its subsidiaries that
may materially and adversely affect the Company's result in financial or

operational position.

Aside from the statutory benefits, the Company grants group term life
insurance and hospitalization benefits fully paid by the Company. It also
provides free uniforms, free meals, and vacation, sick, emergency leaves
and recently Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) to all its regular
employees based on annual performance evaluation.

Major Risks Involved

Risk Factors

The Company recognizes, assesses and manages certain risks that could
materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of

operations and prospects.
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An integral part of its risk management process involves the establishment of
a Credit Committee, Pricing Committee, an Internal Audit Department, and
organization of special teams to conduct financial analysis, planning and
evaluation of company projects/plans and other business activities. Monthly
Business Unit reviews are conducted to identify risks, threats and
opportunities, and to ensure that concerned units manage or promptly
address identified risks.

Major Risks

The Company manages the following major risks relative to its business,
industry and area of operations:

Volatility of Prices of Fuels.

Oil prices, which have been and are expected to continue to be volatile and
subject to a variety of factors beyond the Company's control could affect the
Company's profitability, liquidity and sales volume.

Intense Competition.

Competitive pressures from the majors and all other independent/new players
could lead to a possible loss of market share or a decrease in prices, either of
which could result in decreased revenues and profits. The Company‘s
competitors are numerous, ranging from large multinational corporations,
which have significantly greater capital resources, to relatively small and
specialized regional companies.

Material Disruptions in the Availability or Supply of Fuel.

As a trading concern, the Company largely depends on its ability to find stable
sources of supply of fuel oil, diesel oil and blend components to assure
uninterrupted supply of requirements of its customers. Some of its fuel
purchases are negotiated transactions with suppliers offering fuel for
immediate or near term delivery, also known as the spot market. In times of
extreme market demand or other supply disruptions, there may be possibility
of having limited supply to fully satisfy requirements of customers or of having
to buy at higher prices in order to meet customer demand.

Reliance on Third Parties to Fulfill their Obligations on a Timely Basis.

The Company, at certain levels, depends on some third party providers for
various aspects of its business. As such, it runs the risk that suppliers and
service providers may fail to honor their contractual obligations. The
Company relies on suppliers of fuel to regularly provide it with its inventory.
Shipping companies and charter tankers are contracted to transport fuel oil,
diesel oil and blend components from suppliers” facilities to service centers.
The failure of these third parties to fulfill their obligations or to perform the
services they have agreed to provide could affect the Company's
relationships with its customers or may lead to its not being able to honor its
own contractual obligations to other parties.
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Regulatory Risk.

Risk can arise from changes in government policies and regulations that may
limit the Company"s ability to do business or require it to incur substantial
additional costs or otherwise materially adversely affect business, results of
operation or financial condition.

Risk Management and Mitigants

RISKS RELATING TO THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

The following discussion is not intended to be a comprehensive description of
all applicable risk considerations, and is not in any way meant to disclose all
risk considerations or other significant aspects.

Volatility of the price of crude oil may have an adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Company's financial results are primarily affected by the difference
between the price and cost of its petroleum products, which accounts for
more than 99% of the Company‘s total cost of goods sold. A number of
domestic and international factors influence the price of petroleum products,
including but not limited to the changes in supply and demand for crude oil,
economic conditions, conflicts or acts of terrorism, weather conditions, and
governmental regulation.

International crude oil prices have been volatile, and are likely to continue
being volatile going forward. International crude oil prices in 2014 records
another record drop. Crude production was on its high, with demand for oil
did not catch-up. Dubai spot crude oil 2014 high of US$111.16/bbl in June
2014 and went down to under US$52.89/bbl in December 2014. Mean of
Platts - Singapore (MOPS) followed the drastic decline, thereby affecting local
petroleum prices. In this year, the MOPS for GASOIL hits a low of US$
59.74/barrel from a high of US$ 125.68/barrel. There is no assurance that
prices will remain stable over the near- and medium- term.

The Company holds about twenty (20) to thirty (30) days of inventory and
uses the average method to account for its inventory. Should crude and or
MOPS prices suddenly drop significantly, this could adversely affect the
Company which could translate into the Company being forced to sell its
petroleum products at a selling price below acquisition costs of its existing
inventory. In a period of rising crude oil prices, social and competitive
concerns, and government intervention can further force the Company to
keep current selling prices, resulting in an inability to pass on price
fluctuations in a timely manner. The Government has previously intervened to
restrict price increases for petroleum products, following a declaration of a
state of national calamity. Another declaration of a state of national calamity
may result in the Company being unable to pass on prices effectively which
could adversely affect the profitability for the period of effect of the order.
Such inability to pass on price fluctuations may result to an adverse effect on
the Company's business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Demand for the Company's products may also be affected as a result of price
increases, following passing on of the increased costs of imported oil.

Though currently prices are at a low level, a sharp rise in oil prices will require
higher working capital and may force the Company to acquire higher
financing costs. A material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition and results of operations may follow should the Company face
challenges in securing short-term financing for working capital.

To mitigate this risk, the Company closely monitors the prices of fuel in the
international and domestic markets. Following industry practice, prices for the
upcoming week are set based on the world market price of fuel of the
immediately preceding week. These enable the Company not only to
anticipate any significant price movement but likewise plan out contingencies
to hasten the disposition of its existing inventory as necessary to various
distributors and other clients.

The Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations
may be adversely affected by intense competition.

The Company faces intense multinational, national, regional and local
competition in the sale of refined petroleum products and other related
products in the Philippines. Competition is driven and dictated primarily by the
price, as oil is one of the basic commodities. Differences in product
specifications, and other overhead costs such as transportation, distribution
and marketing costs, account for the price differentials amongst industry
players. Some competitors, notably Petron, Shell and Chevron, have
significantly greater financial and operating resources, and access to capital
than Phoenix, and could arguably dictate domestic marketing and selling
conditions to the detriment of the Company.

As competition is mainly driven by price, the Company's business, operational
and financial condition may be materially adversely affected if it is unable to
compete effectively against other players, which will be primarily driven by its
ability to manage overhead costs, streamline transportation and distribution
costs, and maximize utilization of its assets.

Smuggling and illegal trading activities of petroleum products have affected
the domestic petroleum market. These activities have translated to lower
sales price and volumes for legitimate market players in the domestic market.
The Company's financial condition and results of operations may be
adversely affected if the Government is unable to properly enforce and
regulate the domestic oil market.

Competition risk is primarily mitigated by the Company continually
strengthening and expanding its distribution network to improve its presence
in both growing and high potential markets. The Company continues to invest
in building brand equity to ensure that it is consistently recognized and
recalled by its target market, and improving customer service to a level at par
with or superior to its competitors.

The growth of the Company is dependent on the successful execution
of its expansion plans.
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Proper execution and successful implementation of the Company‘s expansion
plans is critical to maintain the growth of Phoenix going forward. These plans
are based on certain assumptions about oil demand, oil prices, competition,
financing cost and acquiring the necessary timely regulatory approvals,
among other things. The Company cannot and does not represent with
absolute certainty that these assumptions would materialize as predicted. In
the event that these prove to be incorrect, the Company‘s future financial
performance may be negatively affected.

To mitigate this risk, the Company continually reviews its network expansion
program by identifying and anticipating target locations, dealers and operating
and logistical requirements up to a year in advance. The Company is able to
mobilize financial and operating resources in a timely manner and allocate
resources effectively to support the Companys expansion plans. In both site
selection and dealer selection, a Panel of senior management reviews
CAPEX proposals and Dealer selection respectively.

The Company’s business strategies require significant capital
expenditures and financing, which are subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties. Its financial condition and results of operations may be
adversely affected by its debt levels.

The Company's business is capital intensive, particularly the importation,
storage and distribution of petroleum products. The Company‘s financial
condition, sales, net income and cash flows, will depend on its capital
expenditures for, among others, the construction of storage and wholesale
distribution facilities and equipment, the construction of retail gas stations and
the acquisition of tanker trucks. Its business strategies involve the
construction of new terminal facilities and the expansion of its service station
networks. If the Company fails to complete its capital expenditure projects on
time or at all or within the allotted budget, or to operate such facilities at their
designed capacity, it may be unable to maintain and increase its sales and
profits or to capture additional market share as planned, and its business,
results of operations and financial conditions could be adversely affected.

The Company has incurred additional indebtedness to support its capital
expenditure program. The Company's ability to follow this program and meet
its debt obligations will partly depend on the business" ability to generate cash
flows from its operations and obtain additional financing. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to generate sufficient cash flows
from its operations or obtain adequate financing for its capital expenditure
projects or to meet its debt servicing obligations, on acceptable terms or at all.
The inability of the Company to meet its capital expenditure program whether
through unsuccessful implementation or insufficient funding could adversely
affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Financing risk is mitigated as the Company follows a conservative financing
strategy to optimize its leverage and ensure that the costs of financing are
well within the Company's ability to meet these costs. The Notes issuance is
an important part of this financing strategy, as it provides the Company the
funding to support its medium term expansion and capital expenditure plans.

Any significant disruption in operations or casualty loss at the
Company’s storage and distribution facilities could adversely affect its
business and results of operations and result in potential liabilities.
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The Company's operation of its storage and terminal facilities and retail
gasoline stations could be adversely affected by several factors, including but
not limited to equipment failure and breakdown, accidents, power interruption,
human error, natural disasters and other unforeseen incidents and issues.
These disruptions could result in product run-outs, facility shutdown,
equipment repair or replacement, increased insurance costs, personal
injuries, loss of life and/or unplanned inventory build-up, all of which could
have a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations and
financial condition of the Company.

Company has purchased insurance policies covering majority of foreseeable
risks but do not cover all potential losses as insurance may not be available
for all such risks or on commercially reasonable terms. Operational
disruptions may occur going forward, and as such, insurance may not be able
to adequately cover the entire scope or extent of the losses or other financial
impact on the Company.

The Company aims to mitigate this risk by following best practices to prevent
the occurrence of or minimize the impact of accidents or other untoward
incidents. These include measures to isolate the physical effects of any
incidents (for example, the dispersed locations of its storage depots,
alternative storage arrangements), minimize their financial impact on the
Company (by ensuring that insurance coverage is adequate) and prevent
their occurrence (for example, by ensuring that maintenance and safety
procedures follow ISO standards and maintaining an adequate security
force).

Continued compliance with safety, health, environmental and zoning
laws and regulations may adversely affect the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

The operations of the Company’s business are subject to a number of
national and local laws and regulations, including safety, health,
environmental and zoning laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
impose controls on air and water discharges, storage, handling, discharge
and disposal of waste, location of storage facilities, and other aspects of the
operations of the Company“s business. Financial penalties, administrative,
legal proceedings against the Company, or revocation or suspension of the
Company's licenses or operation of its facilities may arise should the
Company fail to comply with relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has incurred, and expects to continue to incur, operating costs
to comply with such laws and regulations. In addition, the Company has made
and expects to continue to make capital expenditures on an ongoing basis to
comply with safety, health, environmental and zoning laws and regulations.

There can be no assurance that the Company will be in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations or will not become involved in future litigation
or other proceedings or be held responsible in any future litigation or
proceedings relating to safety, health, environmental and zoning matters, the
costs of which could be material. Safety, health, environmental and zoning
laws and regulations in the Philippines are becoming more and more stringent
over the years. There can be no assurance that the adoption of new safety,
health, environmental and zoning laws and regulations, new interpretations of
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existing laws, increased governmental enforcement of safety, health,
environmental and zoning laws or other developments in the future will not
result in the Company being subject to fines and penalties or having to incur
additional capital expenditures or operating expenses to upgrade or relocate
its facilities.

To mitigate this risk, the Company keeps itself updated on government
policies and regulations pertaining to the oil industry. Through its Corporate
Affairs department, the Company maintains lines of communication with
regulatory agencies to allow Phoenix to identify potential regulatory risks and
proactively respond to these risks.

Regulatory decisions and changes in the legal and regulatory
environment could increase the Company’s operating costs and
adversely affects its business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Even though the local downstream oil industry is a deregulated industry, the
Government has historically intervened to limit and restrict increases in the
prices of petroleum products. On October 2, 2009, a state of national
calamity in view of the devastation caused by typhoons “Ondoy” and
“Pepeng” was called by former President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo. Executive
Order 839 was issued which called for the prices of petroleum products in
Luzon to be kept at October 15, 2009 levels effective October 23, 2009. As a
result of the Executive Order, prices of oil products were kept at said levels by
the Company, affecting its profitability in Luzon for the period the executive
order was in effect. On November 16, 2009, the price freeze was lifted. There
were also similar price freeze in some areas in Visayas during period of
calamities in recent times. There is no assurance that the Government will not
invoke similar measures or reinstate price regulation in the future, which may
adversely affect the Company"s results of operations.

The Company's operations are subject to various taxes, duties and tariffs.
The Oil industry in the Philippines has experienced some key changes in its
tax and duty structure. Import duties for crude oil and petroleum products
were increased in January 1, 2005 from 3% to 5% which was then rolled back
to 3%. In 2006, an additional 12% VAT was imposed by the Government on
the sale or importation of petroleum products. As of July 4, 2010, import
duties on crude oil and petroleum products were lifted. Such taxes, duties and
tariffs may or may not change going forward, that could result to a material
and adverse affect on the Company‘s business, financial condition and results
of operations.

As indicated in the previous item, the Company has a group dedicated to
monitor compliance with regulations as well as anticipate any new regulations
that may be implemented by the authorities. This ensures that any additional
costs resulting from changes in the legal and regulatory environment can be
anticipated and prepared for by the Company.

The Company’s business, and financial condition may be adversely
impacted by the fluctuations in the value of the Philippine Peso against
the U.S. dollar.

The Company's revenues are denominated in PHP while a bulk of its
expenses, notably the cost of its imported petroleum products, is US$-
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denominated. In 2014, 93% of the Company"s revenues were denominated
in PHP, while approximately 83% of its cost of goods sold was denominated
in US$. The Company‘s reporting currency in its financial statements is the
PHP. Changes in the US$:PHP exchange rate may adversely affect the
financial condition of the Company. Should the PHP depreciate, this would
translate to higher foreign currency denominated costs and effectively
affecting the Company’s financial conditions. There can be no assurance that
the Company could increase its Peso-denominated product prices to offset
increases in its cost of goods sold or other costs resulting from any
depreciation of the Peso. There can be no assurance that the value of the
Peso will not decline or continue to fluctuate significantly against the U.S.
dollar and any significant future depreciation of the Peso could have a
material adverse effect on the Company“s margins, results of operations and
financial condition.

To mitigate this risk the Company limits its exposure to foreign currency
denominated liabilities. The risk posed by foreign exchange fluctuations on
the cost of its imported petroleum products is generally mitigated by the
Company's ability to pass on any such additional costs to its selling prices.

Sales to Cebu Air comprise a significant amount of the Company’s
sales.

Revenues from the supply of jet fuel to Cebu Air, the Philippines” largest
airline in terms of passengers carried, comprised almost 7% of the
Company's total sales for 2014. This makes Cebu Air the Company‘s largest
single corporate customer. While the Company has supplied Cebu Air with jet
fuel since 2005, there is no long term fuel supply contract between the
Company and Cebu Air. However, the Company enters into an annual supply
contract or agreement with Cebu Air to ensure continuous purchase by the
latter for the year ahead. Any disruption, reduction or material change in the
business relationship between Cebu Air and the Company could adversely
impact the Company's sales and results of operations. Aside from Cebu Air,
the Company has no other customer or buyer that accounts for more than
3.5% of the Company's sales.

To mitigate the risk, the Company continues to expand its base of industrial
customers, thus diversifying its risk that the loss of business from any one
customer would have a material effect on the Company"s sales.

The Company currently benefits from income tax holidays on the
operation of certain of its depots. If the Company did not have the
benefit of income tax holidays its profitability will be adversely affected,
as it will have to pay income tax at the prevailing rates.

Under its registration with the BOI, the Company enjoys certain benefits,
including an income tax holiday (“ITH”) on the operations of the Davao
Extension, the Calaca (Batangas) and the Zamboanga depots. In addition,
the Company got approval this year 2012 for BOI registration with
corresponding income tax holidays for its Cagayan de Oro City (Phividec) and
Bacolod depots. The ITH runs for a period of five (5) years from the
commencement of operations of each depot. Upon expiration of a tax holiday,
the Company's income from a depot will be subject to prevailing income tax
rates. In addition, if the Company fails to meet certain conditions imposed by
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the BOI, it may lose its right to the ITH. In such an event, the Company may
not be able to continue to avail of the benefits under the ITH. The loss of the
ITH would adversely affect the Company"s profitability, as it would have to
pay income tax at prevailing rates. In addition, there is no guarantee that the
Company will be able to secure similar income tax holidays for any new
depots that it may establish in the future or for the statutes granting the said
ITH to be superseded or amended. . For example, the Company‘s registration
as a New Industry Participant with New Investment in Storage, Marketing and
Distribution of Petroleum Products (with Certificate of Registration No. 2010-
184) provides that it is entitled to ITH until 15 November 2010. After the lapse
of the ITH, the Company became liable for the regular corporate income tax.
Any such inability by the Company to enjoy ITH benefits will have a material
adverse effect on its business prospects, financial condition and results of
operations.

The Company continuously monitors its compliance with the requirements
and conditions imposed by the BOI to mitigate this risk.

The Company depends on certain key personnel, and its business and
growth prospects may be disrupted if their services were lost.

Certain key executives and employees are critical to the continued success of
the Company's business. There is no assurance that such key executives and
employees will remain employed with the Company. Should several of these
key personnel be unable or unwilling to continue their present roles, the
Company may face difficulties in looking for replacements and the business
and operations may be disrupted as a result translating to a potential material
adverse effect on the financial condition and operations results of the
Company.

To mitigate this risk the Company ensures that its compensation and benefit
packages for its officers, staff and rank and file are competitive with industry
standards. Promotions and pay raises are merit-based and performance
appraisals are conducted regularly. Key personnel are also regularly sent to
training programs in the Philippines and abroad to ensure that their
knowledge and skills are continually updated.

The Company’s controlling shareholder may have interests that may not
be the same as those of other shareholders.

Udenna Corp, the ultimate holding company, directly or indirectly through
PPHI and UMRC, holds 58.10% of the Company's outstanding common
equity as of December 31, 2014. Neither Udenna nor PPHI is obligated to
provide the Company with financial support or to exercise its rights as a
shareholder in the Company"s best interests or the best interests of the
Company's other shareholders. Should there be a conflict between the
interests of Udenna Corp or PPHI and the interests of the Company, the
Company may be affected by the actions done by Udenna Corp.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its parent, Udenna
Corp, for the use of various properties for its operations and for office space.
Furthermore, the Company regularly charters the use of marine tankers from
its affiliate, CSC, for the hauling of its fuel products from suppliers® terminals
and from its own depots to Company depots and to its customers. The
Company also avails of the freight forwarding services of another affiliate, F2
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Logistics, Inc., for the delivery of goods to customers and for internal
movement of non-commercial cargo. While the Company believes that the
terms of these transactions were negotiated on an arms-length basis, there is
no assurance that the Company cannot avail of better terms if it contracted
with parties other than its affiliates.

To mitigate this risk, the Company follows good corporate governance
standards in dealing with its shareholders and other related parties. These
standards include, but are not necessarily limited to, “arms-length” practices
in all commercial dealings with related interests and transparency and full
disclosure in all such dealings.

If the number or severity of claims for which the Company is insured
increases, or if it is required to accrue or pay additional amounts
because the cost of damages and claims prove to be more severe than
its insurance coverage, the Company’s financial condition and results
of operations may be materially adversely affected.

The Company uses a combination of self-insurance and reinsurance to cover
its properties and certain potential liabilities. The Company's insurance
coverage includes property, marine cargo and third party liability. The
Company estimates the liabilities associated with the risks retained by it, in
part, by considering historical claims, experience and other actuarial
assumptions which, by their nature, are subject to a degree of uncertainty and
variability. A number of external factors affect the uncertainty and variability
including but not limited to future inflation rates, discount rates, litigation
trends, legal interpretations and actual claim settlement patterns. If the
number or severity of claims for which the Company is insured increases, or if
it is required to accrue or pay additional amounts because the claims prove to
be more severe than its original assessments, the Company's financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows may be materially adversely
affected.

To mitigate this risk the Company continually reviews and updates its
insurance policies so that it is reasonably protected from foreseeable events
and risks. Insurance coverage is acquired through competitive bidding to
ensure that the Company's premium costs are reasonable and at par with
industry standards.

Risks Relating to the Philippines

The Company’s business and sales may be negatively affected by slow
growth rates and economic instability globally and in the Philippines.

The Company, since its commencement of operations, has derived all of its
revenues and operating profits from sales of its petroleum products in the
Philippines. The Company‘s business has mostly been influenced by the
Philippine economy and the level of business activity in the country.

In the past, the Philippines has experienced periods of slow or negative
growth, high inflation, significant devaluation of the Philippine Peso and debt
restructuring, and has been significantly affected by economic volatilities in
the Asia-Pacific region. The Company cannot assure prospective investors
that one or more of these factors will not negatively impact Philippine
consumers" purchasing power, which could materially and adversely affect
the Company's financial condition and results of operations.
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In addition, global financial, credit and currency markets have, since the
second half of 2007, experienced, and may continue to experience, significant
dislocations and liquidity disruptions. There is significant uncertainty as to the
potential for a continued downturn in the U.S. and the global economy, which
would be likely to cause economic conditions in the Philippines to deteriorate.
A slowdown in the Philippine economy may adversely affect consumer
sentiment and lead to a reduction in demand for the Company‘s products.
There is also no assurance that current or future Government administrations
will adopt economic policies conducive to sustaining economic growth.

Political instability or acts of terrorism in the Philippines could
destabilize the country and may have a negative effect on the Company.

The Philippines has experienced political and military instability. In the past
decade, political instability has been observed headlined by impeachment
proceedings against former presidents Joseph Estrada and Gloria
Macapagal-Arroyo, and public and military protests arising from alleged
misconduct by previous administrations. There is no assurance that acts of
election-related violence will not occur in the future and such events have the
potential to negatively impact the Philippine economy. An unstable political
environment, whether due to the imposition of emergency executive rule,
martial law or widespread popular demonstrations or rioting, could negatively
affect the general economic conditions and operation environment in the
Philippines, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Terrorist attacks have been observed in the Philippines since 2000. The
conflict with the Abu Sayyaf organization continues. The Abu Sayyaf
organization is being identified and associated with kidnapping and terrorist
activities in the country including several bombing activities in the southern
region of the country and is said to have ties with the al-Qaeda terrorist
network.

On May 10, 2010, the Philippines held a presidential election, as well as
elections for national (members of the Senate and the Congress) and local
positions. This resulted in the election of Benigno Aquino lll as the new
President of the Philippines, effective June 30, 2010. Although there has been
no major public protest of the change in government, there can be no
assurance that the political environment in the Philippines will continue to be
stable or that the new government will adopt economic policies conducive to
sustained economic growth or which do not impact adversely on the current
regulatory environment.

On August 23, 2010, a hostage situation occurred in Manila resulting to 8
dead hostages. This resulted in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
government issuing a “black” travel alert for the Philippines. Up to this time,
this remains a political issue between the Philippines and Hong Kong effects
on the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

On October 2013 , an alleged group of Moro National Liberation Front
(MNLF) siege Zamboanga City that resulted to a more than weeklong gun
battle with the Philippine government forces. The said incident resulted to
more than 100 deaths and thousands families displaced. An increase in the
frequency, severity or geographic reach of terrorist attacks may destabilize
the Government, and adversely affect the country’s economy. There is no
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guarantee that the Philippines and the assets of the Company will not be
subject to such acts of terrorism, resulting to potential adverse effect.

The occurrence of natural catastrophes or blackouts may materially
disrupt the Company’s operations.

The Philippines has encountered and is expected to experience a number of
major natural catastrophes including typhoons, volcanic eruptions,
earthquakes, mudslides, droughts or floods. Such natural catastrophes may
cause disruption to the Company's operations, and distribution of its
petroleum products. Electricity blackouts are also experienced caused by
insufficient power generation following strong typhoons and other natural
catastrophes. These types of events may materially disrupt and adversely
affect the Company's business and operations. The Company cannot assure
prospective investors that the insurance coverage it maintains for these risks
will adequately compensate the Company for all damages and economic
losses resulting from natural catastrophes or blackouts, including possible
business interruptions.

If foreign exchange controls were to be imposed, the Company’s ability
to access foreign currency to purchase petroleum, petroleum products,
raw materials, equipment and other imported products, could be
adversely affected.

Generally, Philippine residents may freely dispose of their foreign exchange
receipts and foreign exchange may be freely sold and purchased outside the
Philippine banking system. The Monetary Board of the BSP, with the
approval of the President of the Philippines, has statutory authority, during a
foreign exchange crisis or in times of national emergency, to suspend
temporarily or restrict sales of foreign exchange, require licensing of foreign
exchange transactions or require delivery of foreign exchange to the BSP or
its designee. The Government has, in the past, instituted restrictions on the
conversion of Pesos into foreign currency and the use of foreign exchange
received by Philippine residents to pay foreign currency obligations. The
Company purchases some critical materials, particularly petroleum and
petroleum products, and some capital equipment from abroad and needs
foreign currency to make these purchases. Although the Government has
from time to time made public pronouncements of a policy not to impose
restrictions on foreign exchange, there can be no assurance that the
Government will maintain such policy or will not impose economic or
regulatory controls that may restrict free access to foreign currency. Any such
restrictions imposed in the future could adversely affect the ability of the
Company to purchase petroleum and other materials and equipment from
abroad in U.S. dollars.

3. Description of Property:

The Company‘s properties consist of its terminal, depot facilities, head office
building, pier and pipeline structures and its accessories, steel cylindrical
tanks, and stocks of all petroleum products stored and contained inside the
depot. In March 2009, after acquisition of PPIPC by the Company, the Group
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has additional Port Facilities, Land Held for Sale and Land Held for future
developments.

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts,
certain inventories of petroleum products released to the Company are held in
trust for the bank. The Company is accountable to the bank for the trusteed
inventories or their sales proceeds.

Leased Properties

Lease with Udenna Corporation

The Company‘s headquarters is currently located at Stella Hizon Reyes
Road, Bo. Pampanga, Davao City. The premises are covered by existing
lease contracts with Udenna Corporation and the Heirs of Stella Hizon Reyes,
as lessors.

Following are the relevant terms of the lease contracts:

The Company's sublease contract with Udenna Corporation was originally for
a term of three (3) years, from January 2007 to December 2009. The lease
was renewed for another term of three (3) years, commencing from 01
January 2013 to 31 December 2016, subject to further renewal under terms
and conditions to be agreed to by the parties.

On the other hand, the lease contract by Udenna Corporation with the Heirs
of Stella Hizon Reyes over 1.1 hectares is effective for twenty one (21) years,
which shall expire on March 20, 2027, subject to renewal upon terms and
conditions to be agreed to by the parties. The same term for purposes of
synchronization was implemented over the lease of the remaining area of 1.2
hectares with the lessor for the expanded area which is now leased directly
by the Company.

= The Company shall pay Udenna Corporation a monthly lease rental
for the parcels of land used as sites of its Depot Facilities in Davao
and a retail station site.

= The leased premises shall be exclusively used by the Company for
petroleum and fuel products storage and for its pier facilities or any
other related business. The Company is prohibited from using the
leased premises for any other purpose without the prior written
consent of lessors.

= The Company may not introduce improvements or make alterations or
changes without the written consent of Udenna Corporation, except
the construction of the necessary offices, storage tanks and other
improvements required by the business of the Company.

= Udenna Corporation shall have the right to pre-terminate the sublease
on any of the following grounds: (a) non-payment of rentals for at least
two (2) consecutive months; (b) if the Company, at any time, fails or
neglects to perform or comply with any of the covenants, conditions,
agreements, or restrictions stipulated in the lease contract; or (c) if the
Company shall become insolvent. Udenna Corporation shall give the
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Corporation one (1) month notice prior to the intended date of
termination. The Company may pre-terminate the lease, upon prior
thirty-day written notice to Udenna Corporation.

Payment of real property taxes on the land shall for the account of the
Lessor while the real property taxes pertaining to the improvements
found thereon shall be for the account of the Company, as lessee.

Leased Properties for Terminal/Depot Sites

The Company likewise executed valid lease agreement over various parcels
of lands in various areas of the country where its Terminal/Depots are located
and established as part of its expansion program, namely:

General Santos City. A fifteen-year (15) lease contract, with option
to renew for another five (5) years, was entered with Southern Fishing
Industries, Inc. for the 10,000 square meters property located at
Tambler, General Santos City. Contract was signed on May 7, 2008.

Zamboanga City. The Company entered to a lease agreement with
Jordan Fishing Corporation for an area of 10,000 square meters for a
period of ten (10) years, with an option to renew for another five (5)
years. The said lease agreement commenced November 16, 2008.
The depot in Zamboanga City has a 5.5 million liter capacity that
supports the retail network and the commercial and industrial
accounts.

Bacolod City. A land with an area consisting of 5,000 square meters
more or less was leased by the Company from Jordan Fishing
Corporation for ten (10) years starting January 01, 2008 with option to
renew for another five (5) years. The Depot in Bacolod City has a 9
million liter capacity that supports the retail network and the
commercial and industrial accounts in the area.

Mindoro. A land with an area consisting of 3,723 square meters more
or less was leased by the Company from Benjamin Espiritu for twenty
(20) years starting September 2013 with option to renew for another
ten (10) years. This will be the site of the Company Depot to support
its retail network and the commercial and industrial accounts in the
area.

Leased Properties for Company-owned, Dealer-operated (CODO)
Stations

In addition to the aforementioned leases, the Company likewise has existing
lease contracts with various property owners covering the properties where its
CODOs are situated. Relevant terms of said lease contracts are as follows:

The lease shall be for a term of fifteen (15) years, subject to renewal
upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon in writing and
signed by the parties.
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= The Company shall pay monthly rentals, subject to annual escalation
ranging from 3% to 10%, plus applicable real estate and government
taxes.

= The leased premises may be occupied and used by the Company
exclusively as a gasoline service station. In some areas, the leased
premises for the CODOs include the operation of convenience stores,
coffee shops, service bays and other facilities as might be deemed
appropriate for a gasoline service station and for no other purpose
without the written consent of the lessors.

= Given the nature of the business, the Company is expressly permitted
to sublease the leased premises.

4. Legal Proceedings
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company‘s Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as
then Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with
some government officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019 otherwise known
as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The
case is now pending with the Sandiganbayan.

In May 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of
Justice (DOJ) a complaint against the Group"s President and Chief Executive
Officer and other respondents for alleged violation of Sections 3602,
2501(1)(1) & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the
Philippines. In November 2012, the DOJ dismissed the case for lack of
probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the DOJ, upon motion
for reconsideration filed by the BOC, reversed its earlier resolution and
recommended the filing of Criminal Information against the respondents.
Criminal Information for alleged violations of Section 3602, in relation to
Sections 3601, 2530 1 (I) & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code
of the Philippines were filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of
Batangas and Davao City in August 2013. Separately, in September and
October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City, respectively, have dismissed
all charges against the Parent Company's President and Chief Executive
Officer.

On October 7, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion
for Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC
Batangas. On the other hand, on November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion
for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of Judge George A. Omelio
dated November 15, 2013 with RTC Davao. On December 6, 2013, RTC
Batangas issued an Order dated December 6, 2013 denying the DOJ'
Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On July 7, 2014, RTC
Batangas issued a Certificate of Finality of even date stating that its Order
dated December 6, 2013 affirming the Order dated September 17, 2013 is
now final and executory since no appeal was filed.
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On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an order of even date denying the
DOJ's Motion for Reconsideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on
behalf of the People of the Philippines, filed the Petition for Certiorari dated
October 27, 2014 with the Court of Appeals seeking the reversal of the
Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014 issued by public
respondents Judges Omelio and Hon. Loida S. Posadas-Kahulugan. The
Petition for Certiorari, with Docket No. CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN, is now
pending with the Court of Appeals.

There is also a pending Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the
BOC, seeking the reversal of the decision dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of
Appeals" Special Former Special Tenth (10th) Division in the Consolidated
Petitions of Dennis Uy, docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jorlan
Cabanes, docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals,
which involve the same basic facts and issues as those raised in CA-G.R. SP
No. 06500-MIN.

Except for the above, to the best of the Company"s knowledge there has been
no occurrence during the past five (5) years up to the date of this Report of
any of the following events which are material to an evaluation of the ability or
integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director, executive
officer, or control person of the Company:

(i) Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business
of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either
at the time of the insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

(i) Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, or any pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

(iii) Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities;
and

(iv)  Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or
foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory
organization, for violation of a securities or commodities law.

PART Il - SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT

(A)

Market price of and Dividends on Registrant’'s common equity
shares and Related Stockholders Matters

(1) Market Information
On 11 July 2007, the Parent Company's common shares became listed

for trading on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”).. The high and low
sale prices of each quarter for the year 2014 are hereunder shown:
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19

Highest Close

Lowest Close

Period Price Date
First Quarter 5.25 Mar 14
Second 6.51 May 27
Quarter

Third Quarter 6.66 Jul 09
Fourth Quarter 5.20 Oct 01

Price Date

4.71 Jan 02
4 .97 Apr 01
512 Sep 03
3.05 Dec 23

As of December 31, 2014, the market capitalization of the Company,

based on the closing price of P3.09, was approximately P4.415 billion.

(2) Top 20 Stockholders*
As of January 31, 2015

NAME OF STOCKHOLDER

PHOENIX PETROLEUM HOLDINGS INC.
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION - (FILIPINO)

UDENNA MANAGEMENT & RESOURCES CORP.

PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION - (NON-FILIPINO)

UDENNA CORPORATION

JOSELITO R. RAMOS

DENNIS A. UY

CAROLINE G. TAOJO
F. YAP SECURITIES

UDENCO CORPORATION

DENNIS A. UY&/OR CHERYLYN C. UY

DOMINGO T. UY

JOSE MANUEL ROQUE QUIMSON

EDGARDO ALVARADO ALERTA

ROMEO B. MOLANO

ZENAIDA CHAN UY

REBECCA PILAR CLARIDAD CATERIO

SOCORRO ERMAC CABREROS
ROSITA G. ARTOS
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NO. OF
SHARES

525,945,630
327,208,575
254,921,743
174,138,423
127,568,767
4,812,600

3,991,811

2,801,500
1,883,000

1,614,787
1,098,099
645,919
354,900
318,505
258,262
149,058
148,453

103,316

%
OWNERSHIP

36.81%
22.91%
17.84%
12.19%
8.93%
0.34%
0.28%

0.20%
0.13%

0.11%
0.08%
0.05%
0.02%
0.02%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%

0.01%
0.01%



82,000

20 IGNACIA BRAGA IV 70,980 0.01%

* disclosure based on records of the Stock Transfer Agent, BDO-Equitable
Trust Co., as of January 31, 2015.

(3) Dividends

The Company‘s dividend policy is to declare at least 30% of its prior
year's net income as dividends, whether in stock or in cash or a
combination of both, payable out of its unrestricted retained earnings
subject to statutory limitations.

Each holder of a common share is entitled to such dividends as may be
declared in accordance with the Company's dividend policy. The
Company's current dividend policy entitles holders of common shares to
receive dividends based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors. Such recommendation will consider such factors as operating
expenses, implementation of business plans, and working capital among
other factors.

For the year 2008, the Board of Directors approved on May 8, 2008 and
duly ratified by the stockholders on July 16, 2008, a 30% stock dividend
for stockholders of record as of July 11, 2008 to be issued from the
Company's unrestricted retained earnings. Distribution date was
scheduled on August 6, 2008. A total of 43,000,198 common shares were
issued valued at Par Value of R 1.00 per share or a total of
P43,000,198.00. Moreover, a cash dividend of R 0.10/share was also
declared for all stockholders on record as May 30, 2008. Payment date
was set on June 26, 2008 for the total amount of R 14,500,000.00.

For 2009, the Shareholders ratified and approved on May 29, 2009 a 40%
stock dividend. Details are as follows:

Ex-Date July 03, 2009
Record Date July 08, 2009
Distribution Date August 03, 2009
No. of Shares Distributed 73,660,677 shares

For 2010, on April 12, 2010, the Company's Board of Directors approved
a R 0.05 per share cash dividend. Details are as follows:

Ex-Date July 12,2010
Record Date July 15, 2010
Payment Date August 10, 2010
Total Amount P 13,656,430

On July 15, 2010, the Parent Company‘s stockholders ratified and
approved a 40% stock dividend (or a total of 107,664,266 shares), valued
at par of P1.00 per share and distributed on October 20, 2010 to all
stockholders of record as of September 24, 2010.
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For the year 2011, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend for
common shareholders with details as follows:

Dividend Rate Php 0.10/share
Ex Date March 22, 2011
Record Date March 25, 2011
Payment Date April 20, 2011

Total Amount Distributed Php 37,682,494

On March 15, 2011, a 30% Stock Dividend was declared by the Board of
Directors and subsequently approved by the stockholders during the March
11, 2011 Annual Stockholders® meeting. All stockholders of record as of
April 8, 2011 were entitled to the stock dividend declaration that was
distributed on May 6, 2011. A total of 113,047,475 common shares were
distributed for this declaration. Similarly, the Board of Directors declared
and approved the payment of cash dividend at the rate of 11.5% per annum
to all preferred shareholders totaling to B 70.7 million. Preferred shares
issuance by the Company is not listed and traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

For the year 2012, the Board of Directors declared Cash Dividend for
Common Shareholders with details as follows:

Dividend Rate Php 0.10/share
Ex Date March 20, 2012
Record Date March 23, 2012
Payment Date April 23, 2012
Total Amount Distributed £ 48,987,241.50

Similarly, a 50% stock dividend was declared by the Board of Directors on
January 26, 2012 and subsequently approved by the Stockholders during
the March 08, 2012 Annual Stockholders® meeting. All stockholders of
record as March 28, 2012 were entitled to said stock dividend declaration
that was distributed on April 26, 2012. Total distributed for this dividend is
113,047,475 shares. Also, the Board of Directors declared and approved
the payment of cash dividend at the rate of 11.5% per annum to all
preferred shareholders totaling to 2 70.7 million. Preferred shares issuance
by the Company is not listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

On March 8, 2013, the stockholders ratified the BOD approval of 30% stock
dividends (or a total of 329.7 million shares), valued at par and distributed
on June 10, 2013 to stockholders of record as of May 15, 2013. Cash
dividends of 10 centavos per common shares totaling to P103.6 million
were also declared and paid in 2013. In addition, total cash dividends
declared and distributed to preferred stockholders amounted to P57.5
million in 2013.

On January 29, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of common share
cash dividend of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to
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(B)

(C)

stockholders of record as of March 17, 2014. In addition, total cash
dividends declared and distributed to preferred stockholders amounted to
P41.2 million in 2014. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in
2014.

(4) Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities

All of the shares of the Company are duly registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

(5) Re-acquisition/buy-back of its Own Securities

On September 21, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the buy-back
program of the Company's common shares, worth a total of
P50,000,000.00 or 5.15% of the Company"s then market capitalization.
Using PSE facilities, the program commenced on the second week of
October 2007. The program will conclude upon exhaustion of the
approved allotment, subject to the disclosure requirements of the SEC
and the PSE. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the
Company treasury shares have cumulative costs of R -0-. No re-
acquisitions of shares were made in 2009 to 2014.

The funds allocated for the repurchase of the shares was taken from the
Company's unrestricted retained earnings. The program was basically
designed to boost up and/or improve the shareholders value through the
repurchase of the shares whenever the same is trading at a value lower
than its actual corporate valuation. The program did not involve any funds
allotted for the Company“s impending expansion projects/investments nor
any of those allotted for the payment of obligations and liabilities.

Description of Shares

The Company‘s shares consist of common shares with a par value of R
1.00 per share and preferred shares with a par value of 2 1.00 per share.
As of January 31, 2014, total outstanding common shares, with voting
rights, is 1,428,777,232. Preferred share issued by the Company as of
December 31, 2014 is 5,000,000 shares with a par value of R 1.00 per
share.

In December 20, 2013, the above preferred shares were redeemed. On
the same date, the Company issued same number of preferred shares of
5,000,000 shares with Par value of Php1.00/share and is issued at Php
500,000,000.00 with dividend rate of 8.25% per annum.

Employee Stock Option Plan

The Company‘s Board of Directors approved the Employees" Stock
Option Plan (ESOP) during its April 12, 2010 Board Meeting. Under the
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ESOP program, the Parent Company will allocate up to a total of 5% of its
issued and outstanding common shares to be awarded to eligible
employees. The ESOP was approved by the shareholders during the
2011 Annual Stockholders® Meeting.

The ESOP initial Offer date is set at March 01, 2013 as approved by the
Board of Directors last BOD January 24, 2013 Board Meeting.

PART Ill - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(A)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions

The following is a discussion and analysis of the PPPI and its Subsidiaries'
financial performance for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. In the
discussion of financial information, any reference to “the Company” or
to the “Group” means PPPI and its Subsidiaries.

The selected financial information set forth in the following table has been
derived from the Company"s audited consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

The Company’s financial statements were audited by Punongbayan & Araullo
for 2014, 2013 and 2012, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.

In P thousands, except for Per Share

As of and for the years ended
December 31

amounts 2012 2013 2014
Income Statement Data:

REVENUES. ... 34,585,552 43,551,986 34,734,384
Costofsales........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiiii 31,961,749 40,248,166 31,404,504
Netprofit......cooooiii 651,310 665,058 616,363
Balance Sheet Data:

Current ASSetS....c.ovviiiiii e, 8,967,002 13,068,514 13,576,057
Non-current Assets.........coovvvviiiiiiiinn. 7,540,188 9,283,414 11,424,504
Total ASSEtS ..uvineieii 16,507,190 22,351,928 25,000,161
Total Liabilities..........c.ccooeiiiiiiiii, 12,010,644 15,839,648 17,949,935
Stockholders"Equity...........ccoooiiiiiiinnn. 4,496,546 6,512,280 7,050,226
Earnings per Share-Adjusted.................... 0.48 0.45 0.40

Book Value per Share...............cocooiiiiinnne 4.96 4.54 4.93

Analysis of Results of Operations for 2014 and 2013
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Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of Php 34.734 billion in 2014, which is
20% lower than its 2013 level of Php 43.552 billion, primarily due to the 18%
decrease in sales volume of refined petroleum products coupled with the
decline in average selling price in 2014. However, this was minimized due to
the higher revenues from fuels service, shipping, storage and other revenue
by 54%.

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products decreased
by 21% from Php 43.14 billion in 2013 to Php 34.10 billion in 2014 mostly
from lower sales volume for wholesale accounts. However, the lower sales
volume to wholesale accounts was minimized by sales volume to retail
(station sales) accounts that increased by 22% due to growth in the
distribution network and same store sales. The decrease in sales volume to
wholesale accounts was a conscious effort of the Company to prudently
manage resources and focus more on profitability. The Parent Company had
four hundred eighteen (418) Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of
December 31, 2014 compared to three hundred sixty-eight (368) retail
stations as of the same period last year. As of December 31, 2014, the Parent
Company has a number of retail stations undergoing various stages of
construction that are projected to be opened early next year.

The Group generated Php 634 million from its fuels service, storage, port and
other income in 2014 versus Php 412 million in 2013, a 54% increase
compared to the same period last year. This is due to the increase in storage
rentals and time charter revenue from third parties compared to the previous
year, and revenue from tug-boat operations.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and services of Php 31.405 billion, a
decline of 22% from its 2013 level of Php 40.248 billion, primary due to an
18% decrease in the sales volume of petroleum products. The higher decline
in percentage of costs of sales by 22% compared to the decline of 18% in
volume is a result of the lower average costs of petroleum products for this
year. This year's average cost for the three major petroleum products such as
Gasoil (Diesel), MOGAS (Gasoline) and Kerosene (JETA1) is lower by 8%
compared to the same period of 2013. Furthermore, for 2014, the sales ratio
of retail accounts compared to commercial/industrial (C&l) accounts improved
compared to the same period in 2013 due to the Company‘s deliberate
strategy to push more volume to retail accounts. Retail stations normally sell
more premium products like gasoline compared to C&I which is
predominantly diesel.

Selling and administrative expenses declined by 3.5% as a result of lower
variable costs but offset by the increase in rentals, depreciation, salaries and
wages as a result of the continuous expansion of the Group's business
operations. With its growing retail presence nationwide and the scaling-up of
operations, the Company incurred increases in manpower and logistics costs,
resulting to an increase in operating costs.

Net Income
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The Group's net income for the year 2014 is Php 616 million versus 2013 net
income of Php 665 million, a decrease of 7%. The Company was able to
temper the 18% drop in sales volume by improving its sales mix in favor of
retail sales and improve margins by increasing efficiencies and savings
particularly from its trading and supply management operations. With the
better sales mix and higher selling margins, the net income to sales ratio
(return on sales) improved to 1.77% in 2014 compared to 1.53% in 2013.

The Parent Company is registered with the Board of Investments on
November 16, 2005 as a new industry participant with new investments in
storage, marketing, and distribution of petroleum products under RA 8479
(Downstream Oil Industry Regulation Act) and, as such, continues to enjoy an
income tax holiday for five (5) years from November 16, 2005.

The Parent Company obtained additional registration approval from the Board
of Investments (BOI) under R.A. 8479 or Oil Industry Deregulation Law for its
Calaca, Batangas Terminal. This entitles the Parent Company to an Income
Tax Holiday (ITH) on the revenue activities from this additional storage
capacity for five (5) years starting February 2010. Another BOI registration
was granted for the Davao Terminal Expansion facility effective February
2010, thus entitling the Parent Company another set of incentives including
the five (5) year ITH in its Davao Terminal Marketing and Storage activities.
These additional ITH incentives will allow the Company to enjoy an effective
income tax rate well below 30% as it continuously expands its storage and
obtains further incentives from the BOI.

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOIl on November 25,
2010 as new industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing,
and distribution of petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil
Industry Deregulation Act) for its storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City.
Under its registration, the Company is required to observe certain general and
specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus
Investments Code of 1987.

The Parent Company also received new approvals from the BOI for its two (2)
new facilities. Both the Cagayan de Oro City and the Bacolod City facilities
were registered and issued certification by the BOI on May 12, 2012. The
registration entitles the Parent Company ITH for five years from registration
plus other fiscal and non-fiscal incentives accorded to BOI registered entity.

Financial Condition
(As of December 31, 2014 versus December 31, 2013)

Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2014 stood at Php 25
billion, higher by 12% compared to the Php 22.3 billion as of December 31,
2013. This is mainly due to increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment with
the continuous expansion in retail stations, storage and shipping assets.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 56% from Php 357 million in
December 31, 2013 to Php 556 million due to timing of collection of
receivables as against payment of various liabilities and the maintenance of a
minimum cash balance for day to day operations.
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Trade and other receivables increased marginally by 7% from Php 7.344
billion as of December 31, 2013 to Php 7.832 billion as of December 31,
2014, due to an increase in credit sales to customers.

Inventories declined by 25% at Php 2.871 billion as of December 31, 2014
from Php 3.812 billion as of December 31, 2013. The volume year on year is
comparably same level for both years. However, the average unit price in
2014 year-end inventory ended lower by 37% compared to 2013 due to lower
global prices. The Company targets to maintain an average of one month
worth of inventory to ensure stable supply in retail stations and
commercial/industrial clients. However, the actual level varies depending on
the timing of the actual arrival dates of the fuel tankers.

Due to related parties in December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is Php
10.373 million and Php 2.748 million respectively. The decrease of Php 7.625
million or 277% is due to charges made during the year.

Input taxes-net decrease by 34% in December 31, 2014 is the result of
offsetting of higher output taxes this year due to increased level of inventory,
input taxes of capital expenditures, and increase in paid input taxes from
higher inventory levels.

Other current assets amounted to Php 1,147 million and Php 489.9 million as
of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 respectively. The increase
represents prepaid rentals on leased retail service stations properties and
depot sites, prepaid insurance, creditable withholding taxes, and other current
assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, increased to Php 10.689 billion compared to Php
8.628 billion as of December 31, 2013 due to investments in a new marine
tanker for fuel importations, additional depot capacity in existing and new
areas, and new retail stations in various stages of completion in Luzon,
Mindanao, and Visayas as part of the Company"s objective to further expand
its retail station network.

Loans and Borrowings, both current and non-current, increased marginally by
1% from Php 13.752 billion as of December 31, 2013 to Php13.843 billion as
of December 31, 2014. The slight increase of Php 90 million was a result of
the timing of availments of working capital lines.

Trade and other payables increased by 138% from Php 1.570 billion as of
December 31, 2013 to Php 3.735 billion as of December 31, 2014. This is the
result of longer suppliers' credit.

Total Stockholders" Equity increased to Php 7.050 billion as of December 31,
2014 from Php 6.498 billion as of December 31, 2013 as a result of the period
net income for the three quarters less the cash dividend declared and paid
during the year for both common shares and preferred shares.
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Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Company's key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they
are computed are listed below:

December 31, December
2014 31,2013
Current Ratio’ 1.11:1 1.33: 1
Debt to Equity-Total? 2.55:1 244 1
Return on Equity-Common® 9.01% 12.10%
Net Book Value Per Share* 4.93 4.54
Debt to Equity-Interest Bearing® 1.96 : 1 212 :1
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted ° 0.40 0.45

Notes:
1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities
2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Period or Year Net income divided by average total stockholders*
equity

4 - Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total
number of shares issued and outstanding

5 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholder’s equity (net
of Preferred)

6 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average
number of outstanding common shares

These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of
the Company's financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the
Company's ability to maximize the value of its stockholders" investment in the
Company (Return on Equity, Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per
Share). Likewise, these ratios are used to compare the Company‘s
performance with similar companies.

The Company's debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2014 is higher at 2.55 : 1 due to
higher accounts payable trade. However, interest bearing DE this year
improved to 1.96 : 1, compared to 2.12 : 1 in 2013.

The foregoing key indicators were chosen to provide management with a
measure of the Group's financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity)
and the Group‘s ability to maximize the value of its stockholders® investment
in the Group’s (Return on Equity, Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings
Per Share). Likewise these ratios are used to compare the Group's
performance with its competitors and similar-sized companies.

Material Changes to the Group“s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more) 56%
increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

This is a result of the timing of collections and disbursements during the
period. Minimum levels of Cash are also maintained to support maturing
obligations.
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7% increase in Trade and other receivables

Primarily due to increase in advances to suppliers as a result of the
differences in the initial value of various shipments in transit versus the final
price computation.

25% decrease in inventory
A result of lower average price per unit by 37% in 2014.

277% increase in Due from related parties
Various charges and billings during the period-net.

47% increase in other current assets
As a result of increased prepayments e.g. rental, insurance, etc. plus the
creditable withholding taxes.

34% increase in Value Added Tax-net
Increase in Input VAT as a result of higher inventory plus accumulated Input
Taxes on capital expenditures.

134% increase in other current assets
Increase in Prepayments, Creditable Withholding Taxes and Supplies
Inventories.

24% increase in property, plant and equipment
Due to vessel acquisition, retail network expansion, storage expansions and
other capital expenditures.

138% increase in Trade and other payables
Trade Payable to foreign suppliers for purchases of inventory.

73% decline on Due to related parties
Settlement of various advances from prior years.

6% decrease in deferred tax liability
As a result of decline on the deferred tax liability for tanker vessel appraisals
increments.

25% reduction on non-current liability
Due to some retirement of cash security deposits in favor of other form of
security.

Material changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more)

21% decrease in Sales for petroleum products
Principally due to 18% lower sales volume compared to 2013. However, it
was partly offset by the higher service revenue.

54% increase in fuel service, shipping, storage income, and other revenue

Higher turnover on service volume specifically on storage volume of new
terminal, additional revenue from time charters, and tugboat revenue.
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22% decrease in cost of sales
Primarily due to decreased sales of petroleum products and lower unit prices
this year compared to 2013.

20.2% increase in Finance Costs (net)
Due to interest on the installment payables, bank term loans used for
expansion, plus Trust receipts availed to finance inventory.

53.2% increase in other income/Costs
Due to periodic inventory losses recorded during the period plus other various
costs.

102% increase in income tax
Due to the increase of income not related to its BOI registered activity.

There are no other material changes in the Group®s financial position (5% or
more) and condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion.
Furthermore, there are no material events and uncertainties known to
management that would impact or change the reported financial information
and condition of the Group.

Analysis of Results of Operations for 2013 and 2012
Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of Php 43.552 billion in 2013 which is
26% higher than its 2012 level of Php 34.586 billion, primarily due to the 31%
increase in sales volume of refined petroleum products. However, this was
minimized due to the lower revenues from fuels service, rent, storage and
other revenue. Substantial volume for these aforementioned services were
converted to an All-in product sale to customer starting third quarter of 2012
which full year impact is 2013.

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products increased
by 27% from Php 34.080 billion in 2012 to Php 43.132 billion in 2013 resulting
principally from a wider distribution network and expanded institutional
customer base and also as a result of improved price competitiveness. In
spite of the 31% increase in volume, revenue is only up by 27%, as a result of
a lower average selling price for the current as a MOPS for 2013 for Gasoil
(benchmark for Diesel) and Mogas92 (benchmark for Gasoline) is lower by
2.26% and 3.50% respectively compared to year 2012. The Company had
three hundred sixty-eight (368) Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of
December 31, 2013 compared to three hundred (300) retail stations end
December 2012. The Company has a number of retail stations undergoing
construction and are projected to be opened in 2014.

The Group generated Php207.059 million from its fuels service, storage, port
and other income in 2013 versus Php303.567 million in 2012, a 32% decline
compared to 2012. This was caused by the conversion of service revenue for
Mindanao, except Davao City, to an all-in-sales of Jet A1 arrangement
instead of mere service which in turn contributed to the volume and revenue
growth of the Company.
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Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and services of Php40.246 billion, an
increase of 26% from its 2012 level of Php31.962 billion primary due to a 31%
increase in the sales volume of petroleum products. However, the average
unit cost this year was lower compared to prior year as a result of lower
petroleum product prices more specifically during the second quarter of 2013.

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 35% as a result of higher
volume and the continuous expansion of the Group“s business operations.
With its growing retail presence nationwide and the scaling-up of operations,
the Company incurred increases in manpower, and logistics costs including
depreciation of additional new stations and facilities.

Net Income and Comprehensive Income

The Group®s net income for 2013 is Php665.058 million versus 2012 same
period net income of Php651.310 million or a 2.11% increase. The Company
managed its profitability in spite of the price volatility due to improved
inventory, trading and supply management.

Total Comprehensive Income is lower in 2013 by 24% from B 874 million in
2012 to B 661 million in 2013 as accounted by the effect of the recorded
revaluation of vessel tankers in year 2012.

Analysis of Financial Condition and Balance Sheet Accounts
(As of December 31, 2013 versus December 31, 2012)

Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2013 stood at Php22.352
billion, a growth of 35% over the Php16.507 billion as of December 31, 2012.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 19% from Php438 million in
December 31, 2012 to Php357 million due to timing of collections of
receivables as against payment various liabilities and prudent management of
cash level enough to cover maturing liabilities.

The Group's liquidity position continued to be strong with Current Assets
amounting to Php13.069 billion as of December 31, 2013, up from PHp8.967
billion as of December 31, 2012.

Trade and other receivables increased by 106%, from Php3.557 billion as of
December 31, 2012 to Php7.344 billion as of December 31, 2013, which were
mainly due to increase in trade receivable as a result of increasing sales
revenue. Bulk sales to government and airline was also consummated at year
end of 2013 which forms big bulk of the trade receivable. The Group
continues to enhance its credit policies to minimize overdue accounts.

Inventories increased by only 3%, from Php3.689 billion as of December 31,
2012 to Php3.813 billion as of December 31, 2013. The Company maintains
an average of around one month worth of inventory to ensure stable supply in
retail stations and commercial/industrial clients.
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Due from related parties in December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is
Php2.748 million and Php8.300 million respectively. The decrease of
Php5.552 million is due to collection of prior period charges to related parties.

Input taxes-net increased by 14% in December 31, 2013 is the result of slight
increase in inventory which input taxes is paid and the input taxes on
additional capital expenditures during the year.

Other current assets are at Php504.3 million and Php296.7 million as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 respectively. The increase
represents, creditable withholding taxes, supplies inventory, prepaid rentals
on leased retail service stations properties and depot sites, prepaid insurance
and other current assets.

As of December 31, 2013, the Group®s property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, increased to Php8.629 billion compared to
Php6.999 billion as of December 31, 2012 due to investments in additional
depot capacity in existing areas and new sites. For the year, the Company
completed its Depot facility expansion in Davao City and additional storage
tanks in Calaca, Batangas and Zamboanga City. New depot sites are also
being developed in various sites. In addition, more retail stations were also
constructed and or under construction in Luzon, Mindanao and Visayas as of
end 2013.

Other non-current assets increased by 61% from Php 167.8 million in 2012 to
Php 270.4 million December 31, 2013 as a result of additional rental and
security deposits of various lease agreements.

Loans and Borrowings increased by 39% from Php9.915 billion as of
December 31, 2012 to Php13.752 billion as of December 31, 2013. The
increase was a product of short term financing (LC/TR) to cover inventory
purchases and trade receivables.

Trade and other payables decreased by 2%, from Php1.547 billion as of
December 31, 2012 to Php1.570 billion as of December 31, 2013. This slight
increase in spite of increasing sales volume is the result of the of trade
payables to cover inventory where more booked to short term financing with
banks (LC/TR).

Total Stockholders® Equity increased to Php6.512 billion as of December 31,
2013 from Php4.497 billion as of December 31, 2012 as a result of the
Php1.188 billion equity placements plus the income earned during the period
less the cash dividend to preferred shares of Php43.125 million and to
common shares of Php103.606 million declared during the first semester.

Analysis of Results of Operations for 2012 and 2011
Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of B 34.586 billion in 2012 which is 26%
higher than its comparative 2011 level of B 27.451 billion. This was brought
about by the 26% and 8.3% increase in sales volume of petroleum products
and lubricants, respectively. Service revenue also posted an increase of 34%
compared to immediately preceding year. There is no real estate sales
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recorded this year by the Group compared to a realized B354 million real
estate sales in its PPIPC industrial park in Calaca, Batangas in 2011.

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products and
lubricants increased by 22% from R 26.720 billion in 2011 to 2 34.080 billion
in 2012 resulting principally from a wider distribution network and expanded
institutional customer base. The 26% increase in sales volume accounts the
increase in revenue. Average Means of Platts Singapore (MOPS), the
benchmark for pricing of petroleum in the Philippines, increased by 1.23% for
Gasoil (benchmark for Diesel) and 2.41% for MOGAS92 (benchmark for
Gasoline).

PPPI had three hundred (300) Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of
December 31, 2012 compared to two hundred twenty (220) as of December
31, 2011. A number of these service stations are yet to fully realize their
potential peak sales volume considering that they have been in operation for
only less than a year.

The Group generated R505 million from its fuels service (i.e. shipping, hauling
and into-plane), lease of its storage facilities, Port Revenue and other service
revenue in 2012 versus R 377 million in 2011, or a 34% increase compared to
last year. Ship Charter revenue accounts for the biggest increase at R 68
million or 51% percent increase compared to prior year. Storage and Service
Revenue also increased by 49% and 23% respectively.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded this year"s cost of sales at R31.962 billion, an increase of
26% compared to the 2011 figure of B 25.328 billion. The increase was
triggered by the 26% increase in volume. Weighted average cost per liter this
year is at the same level as that of last year. The slight increase in product
costs in 2012 was balanced by the sales mix.

The 18% increase in selling and administrative expenses is a result of the
increasing volume and the ongoing expansion and growth of the Group®s
organizational build-out and business operations. The Major items that
increased as a result of this retail network expansion and increasing volume
include rental, depreciation, travel and transportation, repairs, taxes and
licenses and other expenses. PPPI is also continuously doing branding and
promotional campaign to improve on brand awareness in the market, which
resulted to higher advertising expenses.

Net Profit and Comprehensive Income

The Group's total net profit increased by 17% to B 651 million during year
2012 compared to P 558 million for 2011. This is a result of the Group's
growth on volume on all of its business segments and the integration of the
net income of the newly acquired subsidiary, Chelsea Shipping.

Total Comprehensive Income increased 69% from 2 518 million in 2011 to R

874 million in 2012 as accounted by the increase in net income and the effect
of the revaluation of vessel tankers.
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Analysis of Financial Condition and Balance Sheet Accounts
(As of December 31, 2012 versus December 31, 2011)

Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2012 stood at R 16.507
billion, an increase of 27% over the P 12.959 billion as of December 31, 2011.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 53% from R 924 million to B 439
million as part of the Group cash management to retain cash level for current
operational requirements and bank accounts average daily balance.

The Group‘s liquidity position continued to hold strong with Current Assets
reaching B 8.967 billion as of December 31, 2012, up from B 6.902 billion as
of December 31, 2011.

Trade and other receivables increased by 24%, from B2.865 billion as of
December 31, 2011 compared to P 3.557 billion as of December 31, 2012 as
a result of the increase in sales revenue in 2012 compared to the preceding
year. The Company continues to exercise prudence in its credit policies in
order to manage customer receivables risk. The receivable is spread over a
number of industries and a number of clients.

Inventories increased by 73%, from B 3.689 billion as of December 31, 2011
to R2.133 million as of December 31, 2012 as part of the Company's
inventory management strategy. The Company maintains more or less one
month of inventory to ensure stable supply in retail stations and
commercial/industrial clients. In addition, in this period of rising fuel prices, it
is necessary to build commensurate levels of inventory to improve potential
margins.

Lands Held for Sale are parcels of subdivided lots owned by PPIPC, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the PPPI. These lots are intended for sale to prospective
buyers. The increase in 2012 from the 2011 value is for the development of
the Park that was introduced this year. There are ongoing active negotiations
with prospective buyers on some parcels of these lots.

Due from related parties net balance payable is 2 77.3 million as of
December 31, 2012 compared to a payable balance of B 10.8 million in 2011.
The Company's parent holding company and related party extended
advances to support its cash requirement for its capital expenditures on a
temporary basis to bridge immediate cash flow requirements.

Restricted deposits increased by 20% from R 69 million in December 31,
2011 to R 82.7 million in December 31, 2011 due sinking set-up for dividend
plus interest income to these deposits.

Input-VAT-net increased by 73% from B 226.5 million in December 31, 2011
to R393 million in December 31, 2012. These are accumulation of input VAT,
current and deferred as a result of the continuous capital expenditures of the
Group and the increase in inventory equivalent input taxes.

Other current assets increased by 44% from B 206.2 million in December 31,
2011 to B 296 million in December 31, 2012. These are prepayments on
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taxes, rentals on retail service stations and depot sites, creditable withholding
tax and other various prepayments.

As of December 31, 2012, the Group®s property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, increased to B 6.999 billion compared to R 5.572
billion as of December 31, 2011 as a result of the Company"s continuous
expansion of retail service stations, Storage Facilities, additional ship,
capitalized dry-docking costs and other minor capital expenditures.

Lands held for future developments are parcel of subdivided lot owned by the
wholly owned subsidiary PPIPC. The balance is increased by 6% as a due to
minor development introduced in the property. These lots may be sold at its
current state or be developed for better selling prices which will yield better
returns to the Group.

Total Loans and Borrowings increased by 69% from total R 5.877 billion as of
December 31, 2011 to B 9.915 billion as of December 31, 2012. This is due
to the financing for vessel double hulling, purchase of brand new vessel. The
total loan amount is R 214 million and US$ 14.5 million for the double hulling
and purchase of brand new vessel respectively. In addition, the Parent
Company availed of long term debts to refinance short term debts. Short term
loans and borrowings are related to the financing of the inventory build-up
and accounts receivable trade gapping.

Trade and other payables decreased by 50%, from B 3.084 billion as of
December 31, 2011 to P1.547 bilion as of December 31, 2012 as trade
payables at the end of the year are mostly booked under trust receipts. The
increase in Other Payable was mostly payables to contractors and suppliers
for construction of depots and retail stations.

Other non-current liabilities increased by 65% in December 31, 2012. Most of
this is accumulation of Cash Bond placed by dealers and customer to secure
their credit purchases.

Total Stockholders® Equity increased to B 4.496 billion as of December 31,
2012 from B 3.714 billion as of December 31, 2011 due to the issuance net
income posted during the year. Increase Revaluation Reserve to R 294
million contributed to the increase. This however was reduced by the effect of
the R 92 million cash dividend declared and distributed during the year to both
common and preferred shareholders.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Company's key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they
are computed are listed below:

2013 2012 2011

Current Ratio' 1.33:1 156:1 0.97:1
Debt to Equity? 243:1 267:1 249:1
Return on Equity® 12.08% 15.86% 16.42%
Net Book Value Per Share* 4.55 4.96 5.61
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted ° 0.45 0.48 0.40

56



Notes:

1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities

2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity

4 —Total stockholders’ equity net of preferred divided by the
total number of shares issued and outstanding at year-end

5 — Net income after tax (net of Preferred dividend) divided by
weighted average number of outstanding common shares
adjusted to Stock dividends

These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of
the Company's financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the
Company's ability to maximize the value of its stockholders"investment in the
Company (Return on Equity, Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per
Share). Likewise, these ratios are used to compare the Company's
performance with similar companies.

The Company debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2013 is 2.43: 1 due to payables to
cover level of inventory to support the sales requirement in the first month of
2014. The immediately preceding two years been steady at 2.67: 1 and 2.49:
1 for 2012 and 2011 respectively. However, the DE for interest bearing
liabilities is 2.11:1 and 2.21:1 for 2013 and 2012 respectively. The DE is
expected improve in succeeding years out of the Groups projected income
and various initiatives.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

(B)

The financial statements of the Company were audited by Punongbayan &
Araullo for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and for the year
ended December 31, 2011. Said external auditor has no shareholdings in the
Company, or any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to nominate
persons or to subscribe to the securities of the Company, in accordance with
the professional standards on independence set by the Board of Accountancy
and the Professional Regulation Commission.

External Audit Fees and Services

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of the last three
fiscal years for professional services rendered by the Company‘s external
auditors.

Audit and Related
Fees

Amount in Thousands Php

Particulars Nature 2012 2013 2014

Punongbayan and Audit of FS for the
Araullo year 2008 - Parent

and Subsidiaries
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Punongbayan and Audit of FS for the
Araullo year 2009 - Parent
and Subsidiaries
Punonabavan and Audit of FS for the
Araullog y year 2010 —Parent
and Subsidiries
Audit of FS for the
Punongbayan and year 2011 - Parent 2,110.06
Araullo and Subsidiaries
Punonabavan and Audit of FS for the 3,302.60 60
Araullog y year 2012 - Parent | 630
and Subsidiaries
Punonabavan and Audit of FS for the 2,609.42 2,536.95
Araullog y year 2013 - Parent
and Subsidiaries
Punonabavan and Audit of FS for the 3,266.38
Araullog y year 2014 - Parent
and Subsidiaries
Sub-total 2,740.06 5,912.02 5,863.33
Tax Advisory
Services
\S;)éf;@b Gorres and Tax Consultancy 119.94 190.12 144.76
Sub-total 119.94 190.12 144.76
All Other Fees
. . Professional Fee
(E)’;éfe Accounting | ¢ BO| Registration
of Depot Facilities
Sub-total
GRAND TOTAL 2,860 6,102.14 6,088.09

In accordance with the Company‘s By-laws and Manual of Corporate
Governance, in 2007, the Company formed its Audit Committee. The
Company's Audit Committee is composed of at least three (3) members of the
Board, preferably with accounting and finance background, one of whom shall

be an

Independent Director and another should have

related audit

experience. The chairman of the Audit Committee is s an independent
director and he shall be responsible for inculcating in the minds of the
members of the Board the importance of management responsibilities in
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maintaining a sound system of internal control and the Boards oversight
responsibility.

The following are the members of the Audit Committee: Monico Jacob
(Independent Director) as Chairman, and Domingo T. Uy and J.V. Emmanuel
De Dios as members.

The Internal Audit systems of the Company are in place since 2008 but these
auditing tools were strengthened this year. The Internal Audit’s role and
responsibilities are defined in the Audit Charter approved by the Board of
Directors. Primarily, it assists the Audit Committee of the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibility to the shareholders by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of
governance, risk management and internal control processes.

Internal Audit, in fulfilling its role, performs the following general functions: 1.)
evaluating the Company's governance processes including ethics-related
programs; 2.) performing an objective assessment of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control framework, identifying risk exposures and
recommending strategies to mitigate them; 3.) evaluating the reliability and
integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process; 4.)
analyzing and evaluating business processes and associated controls; 5.)
determining compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants

The Company has not had any disagreement with its previous and current
external auditor / independent public accountant on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or
procedure.

PART IV - MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITYHOLDERS

(A) Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrants
The Company’s members of the Board of Directors are herewith described
below with their respective experiences.
Board of Directors

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company are elected during
the annual stockholders® meeting to hold office until the next succeeding
annual stockholders® meeting and until their successors have been appointed
or elected and qualified. The following is the list of the incumbent members of
the Board of Directors, and their business experiences during the past five (5)
years:
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Domingo T. Uy
Chairman

Mr. Domingo T. Uy, Filipino, 68 years old, is a co-founder and has been a
member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 2002. Mr. Uy was
elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on February 15,
2007. He is also a Director of Granland Resources Corporation, a
corporation involved in real estate development. Mr. Uy is actively involved in
socio-civic programs and is a Director of the Philippine National Red Cross,
Davao Chapter. He is also the Past President of the Davao City Sta. Ana
Lions Club and the Kang Ha Uy Association - Davao Chapter.

Dennis A. Uy
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dennis A. Uy, Filipino, 41 years old, is the founder of the Company and
has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since inception. He is
the Chairman and President of Phoenix Petroleum Holdings, Inc., the holding
company of the Company, and Udenna Corporation, the ultimate parent
company. The subsidiaries of the Company are Chelsea Shipping Corp.,
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial Park Corp., Subic Petroleum Trading &
Transport Philippines, Inc., PFL Petroleum Management, and Phoenix Global
Mercantile, Inc. Among the subsidiaries of Udenna Corporation are Udenna
Management & Resources Corp, One Subic Power, Global Synergy Trade
and Distribution Corp., Udenna Development Corporation, Value Leases, Inc.,
Udenna Environmental Solutions, and Udenna Energy Corporation. Mr. Uy is
also Chairman of F2 Logistics, Phoenix Philippines Foundation, and Udenna
Foundation He is a member of the Young Presidents Organization - Philippine
chapter and the Philippine Business for Social Progress. Mr. Uy is the
Honorary Consul of Kazakhstan to the Philippines since November 2011. He
is a graduate of De La Salle University with a degree in Business
Management.

Romeo B. De Guzman
Director, Chief Operating Officer

Romeo B. De Guzman, Filipino, 65 years old, was elected Director of the
Company in 2009. He is Chief Operating Officer of the Company, bringing
with him 35 years of outstanding experience in the oil industry. Before joining
the Company, he was with Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, where he
was Vice President for External Affairs for Asia Pacific and a member of the
Board of Directors up to Dec. 2006. He was with the said company holding
various management and executive positions. He also worked with Getty Oil
Philippines Inc. for 10 years, prior to joining Pilipinas Shell. He carries with
him a Marketing Management and an MBA degree from San Sebastian
College — Manila.

Jose Manuel R. Quimson
Director

Jose Manuel R. Quimson, Filipino, 66 years old, has been a Director of the
Company since February 15, 2007. He is concurrently the General Manager
of Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial Park Corp and the Chief Operating
Officer of Chelsea Shipping Corp. Mr. Quimson is a member of the Board of
Directors of the Udenna Corporation and its subsidiaries. Previously, he was
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President of Petrotrade Philippines, Inc. a company providing bunkering
services to international vessels. Mr. Quimson has more than 30 years of
work experience in the shipping industry.

Socorro T. Ermac-Cabreros
Director, AVP for Corporate Legal and Corporate Secretary

Socorro T. Ermac-Cabreros, Filipino, 49 years old, was elected Director and
appointed Corporate Secretary on February 15, 2007. She is concurrently
Asst. Vice President for Corporate Legal of the Company. She is also the
Corporate Secretary and member of the Board of Directors of Udenna
Corporation and its subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Company, she was a
Legal Counsel of Philippine National Bank in Davao City. She has worked for
the government such as Office of the Ombudsman for Mindanao and later as
Prosecutor for the Province of Davao del Norte after engaging in the private
practice of law. She finished her law degree at the Ateneo de Davao
University College of Law. She is the immediate past President for the Davao
City Chapter of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines.

Atty. J.V. Emmanuel A. De Dios
Director

J.V. Emmanuel A. De Dios, Filipino, 50 years old, was elected Independent
Director of the Company on February 15, 2007 and regular director on March
7, 2008. He is the CEO of GE Philippines, and prior to that was President and
CEO of Nido Petroleum Pty Ltd., an Australian Stock Exchange-listed oil and
gas company. He was Managing Director of Merritt Advisory Partners, Inc.
and was a member of the Board of Directors of Davies Energy Systems, Inc.
He also served as Chairman of the Board of the Philippine National Oil
Company Exploration Corporation and was former Undersecretary of the
Philippine Department of Energy. Atty. De Dios obtained his Master of Laws
degree from Harvard Law School and completed his Bachelor of Laws at the
Ateneo School of Law.

Joseph John L. Ong
Director

Joseph John L. Ong, Filipino, 55 years old, married, is the Chief Finance
Officer of the Company. Prior to his employment in the Company, he spent
almost ten (10) years at Primeworld Digital Systems, Inc. (Pacific Internet
Phils.) initially as Vice President and CFO and eventually as Executive Vice
President — Operations and Chief Finance Officer from 2008 - 2009. He also
worked for twelve (12) years with Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (then known as La
Tondena Distillers, Inc.), then the country’s 2™ largest beverage company
and a listed subsidiary of San Miguel Corporation. He was its Vice President
— Treasury from 1995 — 1999, at which time he headed the team that took the
company public in 1994 and was primarily responsible for institutional-
investor relations. Prior to the San Miguel Group, he held various positions at
the Bank of the Philippine Islands & Ayala Investment & Development Corp.
(before it merged with BPI) from 1980-1986. He received his Bachelor of
Science in Commerce from De La Salle University in 1980.
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Paul Dominguez
Director

Paul Dominguez, 65 years old, was Presidential Assistant for Mindanao and
Chairman of the Mindanao Economic Development Council (MEDCo) during
the term of President Fidel V. Ramos, tasked to oversee efforts towards
accelerating development in Southern Philippines. After serving in the Ramos
administration, Mr. Dominguez became the Mindanao representative to the
World Trade Organization - General Tariffs and ASEAN Free Trade Area
(WTO-AFTA) Philippine Advisory Commission, Honorary Chairman of the
Mindanao Business Council, and Country Director for the Philippines in the
Board of Directors of the BIMP-East ASEAN Business Council. Mr.
Dominguez was appointed by President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo as
Presidential Adviser for Regional Development in January 2001, and in April
2002 as Senior Consultant for Mindanao. He also served as the Special
Envoy to Brunei Darussalam, Indonesia and Malaysia. Mr. Dominguez started
his corporate career in 1971 with the Davao Light and Power Co. In 1974, he
joined the Lapanday Agricultural Development Corp., a major agribusiness
firm in Mindanao, as Assistant General Manager. He continued his
involvement in agribusiness with the Sarangani Agricultural Company where
he served as Executive Vice President from 1979 to 1985. From 1985 to
1992, he was President of C. Alcantara and Sons, Inc. a leading wood
manufacturing company in Mindanao. Mr. Dominguez currently serves as
director of several Philippine corporations. He previously served on the
Advisory Board for Southeast Asia of Colonial Insurance Co. and
Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Cherylyn C. Uy
Director

Ms. Cherylyn Chiong-Uy, 35 years old, is a graduate of Business and Finance
from Ateneo de Davao University. Ms. Uy is one of the pioneers/incorporators
of Udenna Corporation, a corporation composed of 17 subsidiaries which are
divided into two (2) groups, the petroleum and non petroleum group. She is
the Corporate Treasurer of Udenna Corporation. Ms. Uy is also the President
of Phoenix Philippines Foundation, Inc., the corporate social responsibility
arm of the Company. She is the Corporate Treasurer of Udenna
Management and Resources Corporation and Chelsea Shipping Corp.

Consuelo Ynares-Santiago
Independent Director

Consuelo Ynares-Santiago, Filipino, 74 years old, is a Retired Justice of the
Philippine Supreme Court. Justice Santiago (Ret) is currently an independent
director of Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corp., a leading insurance brokerage
company based in New York, USA and SMC Global Power Holdings, Inc.,
one of the country’s leading power company which is the power generation
unit of the countrys largest beverage, food and packaging industry, San
Miguel Corporation. She is also a Consultant of various respectable
government offices such as Office of Vice-President Jejomar C. Binay, Office
of Senate President Juan Ponce-Enrile and Philippine Judicial Academy and
a Chair Advisory Council of the Office of Alternative Dispute Resolution under
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the Department of Justice. She earned her Law Degree at the University of
the Philippines. After admitted to the bar, she started her career as a Legal
Officer of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). After 5 years of legal
practice, she decided to enter the Judiciary and spent 36 years of her career
as Municipal Judge, Metropolitan Trial Court judge, Regional trial Court
Judge, Associate Justice of Court of Appeals and became an Associate
Justice of the highest court of the country, the Supreme Court. During her
time in the Supreme Court, she joined various committees, one of those was
House of Representative Electoral tribunal (HRET) as Chairperson, and a
member of Presidential Electoral Tribunal. She was also a Bar Examiner of
Labor Law and Social Legislation during the 1996 Bar Examination and
Taxation Law on 1998 Bar Examination.

Monico V. Jacob
Independent Director

Monico V. Jacob, 67 years old, has been Independent Director of the
Company since March 7, 2008. He is President and Chief Executive
Officer of the STI Education Services Group and iAcademy. He is
Chairman of Global Resource for Outsourced Workers (GROW), Inc.,
STI-Universal Workers, Inc., Accent Healthcare/ STI Banawe, Inc.,
and Total Consolidated Asset Management, Inc. He is a Partner of the
Jacob and Jacob Law Firm and is a member of the Board of Directors
of Jollibee Foods, Inc., Century Properties, Lopez Holdings, Inc. and
2Go Shipping. He is Chairman and Managing Partner of CEOs
Incorporated. He was formerly Associate Commissioner of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, General Manager of National
Housing Authority, and CEO of the Pag-lbig Fund. He is a former
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Petron Corporation and of
the Philippine National Oil Company.

Executive Officers

The following is a list of other executive officers and their business
experiences during the past five (5) years:

Ramon Edison C. Batacan, Filipino, 56 years old, was appointed Chief
Corporate Counsel and concurrently Chief Compliance Officer of the
Company in 2013. He is founder and currently Managing Partner of BM&V
Law Firm. He served as member of the Board of Regents of the University of
Southeastern Philippines (USeP) and currently director of the Rizal Memorial
Colleges. He was past president [2001-2003] of the Integrated Bar of the
Philippines, Davao City Chapter and past governor [2007-2009] of the IBP-
Eastern Mindanao Region. He is also currently a faculty of the Ateneo de
Davao University College of Law handling Property, Negotiable Instruments
Law and Law of Natural Resources and Environmental Law. Atty. Batacan
graduated with the degree in Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering
(BSME) at the University of Mindanao (UM) in 1979. He earned his masters
degree in Business Administration (MBA) at the University of Southeastern
Philippines (USEP) in 1986. He earned his law degree at the Ateneo de
Davao University College of Law in 1990, cum laude and was admitted to the
Philippine Bar in 1991.
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Chryss Alfonsus V. Damuy, Filipino, 41 years old, is the Treasurer and the
Vice-President for Finance of the Company. Prior to his employment with the
Company, he was the Controller of Lapanday Foods Corporation and held
various positions in its subsidiaries including the Fresh Asia Produce as
Accounting Manager and the Mindanao Fresh Produce Services Corporation
as Assistant Accounting Manager. He also worked as Chief Accountant of
the Regional Educators Multi-purpose Cooperative and as its Branch Officer.
Mr. Damuy started his professional career as College Instructor of the Holy
Cross of Davao College where as a dean's lister, he earned his Bachelor of
Science Degree in Accountancy in 1997. Mr. Damuy is a Certified Public
Accountant.

Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla, Filipino, 45 years of age, is the Vice President for
External Affairs, Business Development, and Security of the Company. Prior
to his employment with the Company, he was Chief Legal Counsel of the
Unioil Group of Companies where he headed the Legal, Human Resources,
and Administrative Departments. He also served as Director for Freeport
Services Corporation, a 100% subsidiary of Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority
and was once a Legal Consultant of the Department of Environment and
Natural Resources. Atty. Zorrilla was engaged in the litigation practice with
Pangilinan Britanico Sarmiento and Franco Law Offices before he entered
corporate practice. He formerly worked as Corporate Legal Counsel of
publicly-listed Fil-Estate Group of Companies under its Litigation and Labor
Department. Atty. Zorrilla completed his law studies at the San Beda College
of Law in 1994 and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1995. He also took
up his masteral studies at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business. He is an
Army Reservist and a concurrent Commander (Lt. Colonel) of the Philippine
Coast Guard Auxiliary.

Edgardo A. Alerta, Filipino, 59 years old, is the Vice President for Sales
Mindanao. He handles both Commercial and Retail Sales in Mindanao. Mr.
Alerta, who is a licensed Mechanical Engineer, has more than 25 years work
experience in the energy and petroleum industries from the government and
multinational corporations. Prior to joining the Company, he worked with
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation for 15 years where he started as a
Marketing Sales Executive and later progressed to District Sales Manager.
He also worked as a Technical Services Engineer of Getty Oil Philippines and
was an Energy Examiner of the Department of Energy. He holds two degrees
in Engineering: Bachelor of Science Degrees Major in Mechanical
Engineering and Electrical Engineering from the Cebu Institute of Technology.
He was the Councilor in the Municipality of Matanao, Province of Davao del
Sur for 12 years until June 30, 2013.

Ericson S. Inocencio, Filipino, 40 years old, is the AVP for Commercial
Sales - Mindanao. Eric has more than 18 years of extensive experience in
the petroleum industry . Prior to joining the company, he was connected
with Chevron Phils. where he held various positions primarily leading the
Commercial and Industrial business as District Sales Manager for more than
5 years (Commercial Luzon 2008-10 & Commercial Vismin 2010-13) and as
concurrent National Fleet Cards Sales Manager (2010-2013). He started his
petroleum career in Caltex Phils. as a Commercial Account Manager covering
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key segments of Manufacturing, Transport, Wholesale, Power and Marine
industries then progressed to different key positions and leadership roles. He
handled Marketing support function for the Commercial Business in charge of
developing and executing local & global process/programs which includes
profitability modelling. He likewise acted as a Pricing specialist for Marketing
Sales both Retail and Commercial business. Eric covered the Motor Vehicle
Safety program as a Team lead for Philippines driving the program for more
than three (3) years. He is a certified Mechanical Engineer from De La Salle
University and attended his MBA at Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Joselito G. de Jesus, Filipino, 60 years old, is the Assistant Vice-President
for Commercial Sales-Luzon. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. de Jesus was
the Assistant Vice-President for Reseller Trade of Petron Corporation. He
joined the oil industry in late 1970°% when became a Corporate Planning
Analyst, then later on Corporate planning Manager/Coordinator, of the
Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC). Mr. de Jesus also became a
Manager in the Corporate Planning Department of PNOC Shipping and
Transport Corporation and at the same time, he was also an assistant to the
Chairman of PNOC. In the late 90" Mr. de Jesus transferred to Petron
Corporation and stayed with the said Company for almost 17 years. He is a
graduate of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in
Marketing and Finance from University of the Philippines and a Master of
Business Administration of Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Jose Victor L. Cruz, Filipino, 54 years old, is currently the Assistant Vice
President for Retail Sales-South Luzon. Mr. Cruz has more than twenty-five
(25) years of experience in the oil industry covering retail, commercial,
lubricants sales, international business (aviation and shipping for Chevron
and Texaco), marketing and distribution, and corporate affairs. Prior to joining
the Company in 2010, Mr. Cruz was Vice President for Retail Network
Operations of Flying V in 2008 before he was promoted to Chief Operating
Officer in 2009. He was COO of Citadel Commercial, Inc. from 2001-2002
before he ventured into private enterprise. He held various positions in Caltex
Philippines Inc. from 1983 up to 1991 when he handled CPI's International
Business. Eventually, Mr. Cruz was appointed Executive Assistant —
Marketing Commercial in 1992. In 1994, he held the position of District
Manager — Luzon South Commercial and in 1996, as DM — Luzon Retail. Mr.
Cruz completed his MBA curriculum at the De La Salle University. He is a
graduate of B.S. Industrial Management Engineering, Minor in Mechanical
Engineering and is a Professional Industrial Engineer under the Philippine
Institute of Industrial Engineers.

Edwin M. Jose, Filipino, 55 years old is the Assistant Vice President for
Retail Sales-North Luzon. Mr. Jose has logged more than 29 vyears in
petroleum industry, with exposure in Retail, Commercial, LPG and Corporate
Planning and Logistics of Petron Corporation. Before joining Phoenix, his
Petron career started in Corporate Planning and Logistics. In the Retail
Trade, he handled positions from Area Sales Executive, Retail Network
Development and Sales Development Manager. After Retail, he was
assigned to the Liquefied Petroleum Gas business where he handled the
retail, commercial and independent refiller business for the entire Luzon area
and his breakthrough programs in LPG such as the “one number delivery
system” , the “80-20 sales project” and pioneering LPG metering for
commercial accounts such as Jollibee, among others were reasons why
Petron Gasul effectively captured market leadership in the retail sector. He
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was then given assignment as Government Accounts Manager handling the
National Power Corp and other Independent Power Producers, US and Phil.
Military. His last position in Petron is District Manager for Metro Manila under
Reseller Trade. After his stint with Petron, he set up franchise of two 7-11
convenience stores that are still operational to date. He is an Industrial
Engineering degree holder from the University of Sto. Tomas, and an MBA
candidate at Ateneo de Manila University.

William M. Azarcon, Filipino, 68 years old is currently the Asst. Vice
President for Operational Engineering and Logistics. Mr. Azarcon has twenty-
six (26) years experience in the oil industry, covering engineering operations,
retail and distribution of bulk & packed products nationwide. Mr. Azarcon used
to work for Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation and served as Field
Engineer in Operations nationwide constructing Depots & related facilities, i.e,
jetties, submarine pipelines®, bulk storage tanks among others. He likewise
served as Head of Operations of North Luzon and transferred to Retail
Engineering as Retail Engineering Manager nationwide. He also served as
RVI (Retail Visual ldentity) Manager. After retiring from Shell, Mr. Azarcon
engaged in business as Retail Engineering Contractor of Shell. He holds a
degree in Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from Mapua.

Rebecca Pilar C. Caterio, Filipino, 43 years old, is currently the Assistant
Vice President for Credit and Collection of the Company. Previously, she was
the Controller of Lapanday Packaging Inc., a company engaged in the
manufacturing of cartons and in the production of fresh pineapple and
vegetable. She was also the Accounting Manager of Fresh Asia Produce
Company International Corporation, a company which is also owned by the
Lapanday Group and is primarily engaged in the trading and marketing of
bananas. Ms. Caterio started her professional career with the SGV & Co. as
a Staff Auditor. She is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the
Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants (PICPA) since 1993. Ms.
Caterio holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Commerce, Major in
Accounting from the Ateneo De Zamboanga.

Reynaldo A. Phala Filipino, 48 years old, is the Assistant Vice President for
Treasury. He joined the Company in 2008 as its Credit and Collection
Manager. Before joining the Company, he led a progressive banking career
for 17 years, which he started at UCPB. He also worked with the Department
of Trade and Industry as Municipal Trade and Industry Officer for a year. He
graduated from Mindanao State University-General Santos City with the
degree Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering as a consistent academic
scholar and passed the licensure examinations for Civil Engineers in May
1989. He recently finished his Master in Business Administration (MBA)
under the Regis Program at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Maria Rita A. Ros, Filipino, 55 years old, is currently the Assistant Vice
President for Supply. Ms. Ros has more than thirty (30) years of experience in
the oil industry covering materials management, supply chain management,
production planning, imports-exports, warehousing and logistics. She held
various positions in Petron Corporation from 1981 up to 2011 when she
handled Biofuels and Special Projects, and Supply Optimization. Ms. Ros set
up a personal business before joining Phoenix Petroleum Philippines, Inc. in
November 2013. She is a graduate of B.S. Chemical Engineering from the
University of the Philippines, and is a licensed Chemical Engineer, and took
up Basic Management at the Asian Institute of Management.
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Gigi Q. Fuensalida, Filipino, 38 years old, is presently the Assistant
Corporate Secretary of the Company. Prior to her employment with the
Company, she was one of the Senior Associates of the Villaraza Cruz
Marcelo and Angangco Law Office. For six years, Atty. Fuensalida
specialized in Civil, Commercial and Criminal Litigation wherein she
developed strategies for complex litigation and actively participated in the
prosecution and defense of criminal cases before the regular trial courts,
quasi-judicial bodies and the appellate courts. Atty. Fuensalida holds a
degree in Bachelor of Arts Major in Political Science from the Ateneo de
Manila University. She further obtained her Juris Doctor degree from the
same institution and graduated with honors in 2002. Atty. Fuensalida is a
member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 2003.

(1) Significant Employees

There are no significant employees or personnel who are not executive
officers but are expected to make a significant contribution to the
business.

(2) Family Relationships

With the exception of Messrs. Domingo T. Uy and Dennis A. Uy who are
related to each other by consanguinity within the first civil degree, there
are no other family relationships either by consanguinity or affinity up to
the fourth civil degree among the directors, executive officers, and
persons nominated and chosen by the Company to become directors and
executive officers of the Company.

(3) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company‘s Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as
then Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with
some government officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019 otherwise known
as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The
case is still pending with the Sandiganbayan.

The Department of Justice (“DOJ”) filed a case against Dennis Uy with the
Regional Trial Courts of Batangas City (“RTC Batangas”) and Davao City
(“RTC Davao”) for alleged violation of the Tariff and Customs Code of the
Philippines. RTC Batangas and RTC Davao issued its Orders dated 17
September 2013 and 11 October 2013, respectively, DISMISSING the
twenty-five (25) Informations filed by the DOJ against Mr. Uy for lack of
probable cause. On both cases with RTC Batangas and RTC Davao City, the
DOJ separately filed a Motion for Reconsideration. And in both cases though
independently and separately, the RTC of Batangas and RTC of Davao City
DISMISSED all charges against Mr. Uy. RTC Batangas issued a Certificate
of Finality on 07 July 2014 and therefore, the dismissal of the 3 criminal cases
has before final and executory since no appeal was filed by the DOJ.
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(B)

On the other hand, the DOJ through the Office of the Solicitor General filed a
Petition for Certiorari dated 27 October 2014 with the Court of Appeals. The
case is now pending.

In the meantime, in the matter of the Petition for Certiorari filed by Jorlan
Cabanes and Dennis Uy against Sec. Delima of the DOJ and Bureau of
Customs docketed as CA GR SP No. 131702 before the Court of Appeals
Former Special 10th Division where the CA annulled and set aside the
Resolutions dated 24 April 2014 and 13 August 2013 of the DOJ and further
ordered and directed the DOJ to withdraw and dismiss all Informations filed
against Mr. Uy and Mr. Cabanes before the RTC of Batangas and Davao
City, the DOJ through the Office of the Solicitor General filed a Motion for
Reconsideration from its Decision. The Motion for Reconsideration is still
pending resolution.

Except for the above, to the best of the Company"s knowledge there has been
no occurrence during the past five (5) years up to the date of this Report of
any of the following events which are material to an evaluation of the ability or
integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director, executive
officer, or control person of the Company:

()] Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business
of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either
at the time of the insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

(ii) Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, or any pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign,
excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

(iii) Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree or any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities, or banking activities;
and

(iv) Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court or
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange
Commission ( “SEC”), or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or
foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory
organization, for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Executive Compensation

(1) Executive Compensation
The Company's executives are regular employees and are paid a
compensation package of 12 months pay plus the statutory 13" month

pay. They also receive performance bonuses similarly to that of the
managerial, supervisory and technical employees.
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The members of the Board of Directors who are not employees of the
company are elected for a period of one year. They receive
compensation on a per meeting participation.

There are no other arrangements for which the members of the board are
compensated.

Summary of Compensation Table

Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors (in thousand

Pesos)
Bonuses /
Name Principal Position Year | Salari | 13" Month / | Total
(s) es Other (in B)
(inB) | Income
(in B)
Dennis A. Uy President and Chief | 13

Executive Officer

Romeo B. De Guzman | Chief Operating Officer | 6

Joseph John L. Ong Chief Finance Officer 4 Y

Chryss Alfonsus V. | VP Finance & |7

Damuy Comptroller

Allan  Raymond T. | VP — External Affairs , | 6

Zorrilla Business Development

and Security

Total 2014 P
24,074

Total 2013 P
24,783

Total 2012 P
22,431

Total 2011 P
18,814

Estimates in 2015 P
26,000

(C) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

As of January 31, 2015, the security ownership of Management is as

follows:
Title of Name/Address of Amount and Citizenshi % of
Class of Beneficial Owner Nature of p Ownershi
Securities Beneficial p
Ownership
Directors:
Common Dennis A. Uy 3,991,811 Filipino 0.28%

Stella Hizon Reyes Rd.,
Bo. Pampanga, Lanang, direct beneficial
Davao City owner
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Common

Common

Common

Common

Common

Common

Common

Common

Common

Dennis A.
Cherylyn C. Uy

Uy &lor

Stella Hizon Reyes Rd.,
Bo. Pampanga, Lanang,

Davao City

Domingo T. Uy

Insular Village Phase I,
Lanang, Davao City

Romeo B. De Guzman
Hillsborough, Alabang
Village, Muntinlupa City

Socorro T. Ermac
Cabreros

223 V. Mapa St., Davao
City

Jose Manuel R.
Quimson

28 Osmefia St.,
Xavierville Subd., Loyola
Heights, Katipunan,
Quezon City

J.V. Emmanuel A. De
Dios

95 A. Melchor St

Loyola Heights, Quezon

City

Joseph John L. Ong
80 Pola Bay, Southbay

Gardens, Paranaque
City

Consuelo Ynares
Santiago

Santiago Cruz &

Associates Law Office
Unit 1702 East Tower
PSE Center, Pasig City

Monico V. Jacob
7" fir

Philippine  First

Bldg, 6764 Ayala Ave.,

Makati City
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1,098,099

direct beneficial
owner

645,919

direct beneficial
owner

1,306,742

direct beneficial
owner

103,316

direct beneficial
owner

354,939

direct beneficial
owner

857,116

direct beneficial
owner

431,836

direct beneficial
owner

1

direct beneficial
owner

1

direct beneficial
owner

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

0.08%

0.05%

0.09%

0.01%

0.02%

0.06%

0.03%

0.00%

0.00%



Common Paul G. Dominguez 1 Filipino 0.00 %

Alson Development

Corp. direct beneficial
329 Bonifacio St.,, Davao owner

City

Senior Management:

Common Chryss Alfonsus V. 70,980 Filipino 0.00%
Damuy
Ph2 Blk 07 Lot 07, direct beneficial
Wellspring Highlands owner

Subd. Catalunan
Pequeno Davao City
8000
Common Ramon Edison C. 70,980 Filipino 0.00%
Batacan
05 Sierra Madre St., direct beneficial
Rolling Hills Subd., owner
Bacaca, Davao City
Common Edgardo A. Alerta 318,505 Filipino 0.02%
Fortune Executive
Homes direct beneficial
Lanang, Davao City owner
Common Rebecca Pilar C. 148,453 Filipino 0.01%
Caterio
Margarita Village, direct beneficial
Bajada, Davao City owner
Common Gigi Q. Fuensalida 70,980 Filipino 0.00%

155 Brillantes St.
5th Avenue, Caloocan direct beneficial

City owner
Common Reynaldo A. Phala 24,830 Filipino 0.00%
Block 5 Lot 20
Pioneers Village direct benéeficial
owner

The other executive officers of the Company, Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla —Vice
President for External Affairs, Business Development and Security, Jose Victor L.
Cruz — Asst. Vice President for Retail Sales-South Luzon, Edwin M. Jose- Asst. Vice
President for Retail Sales-North Luzon, William M. Azarcon — Asst. Vice President,
Operations & Logistics, Ma. Rita A. Ros — Asst. Vice President, Supply, do not own
shares in the Company.
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The number of aggregate shares for all directors and executive officers is Nine
Million Four Hundred Ninety Four Thousand Five Hundred Nine (9,494,509).

There are no persons holding more than five percent (5%) of a class under a voting
trust or any similar agreements as of the date of this Report.

(e) Change in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangements that may result in a change
of control in the Company since the beginning of its fiscal year.

(D) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The Company's related parties include its parent company, subsidiaries,
stockholders, the Company's key management and others as described
below.
a.) Rentals

The Group has an operating lease agreement with Udenna Corporation, the

ultimate parent Company. The total rent expense of the Company is presented
as follows:

2011 2012 2013 2014 TOTAL

6,273,396.64 18,189,649.93 56,934,318.17 65,545,819.59 146,943,184.33
b.) Contract of Affreightment
The Company entered into a Contract of Affreightment with Chelsea Shipping
Company, a wholly owned subsidiary, to haul the Company's petroleum
supplies for both regional and domestic.

c.) Due to and Due from Related Parties

PPPI grants and obtains advances to and from its parent company,
subsidiaries and other related companies for working capital purposes.

The breakdown of due from related parties as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 is as follows:

2013 2014

PPHI

Balance at beginning of year -
Additions -

Collections

Balance at end of year - -

UMRC
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Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Collections

9,472,308.32

(14,436,098.98)

(4,963,790.66)

4,963,790.66

Balance at end of year

(4,963,790.66)

Total Due from Related Parties

Balance at beginning of year 9,472,308.32 (4,963,790.66)
Additions -

Collections (14,436,098.98) 4,963,790.66
Balance at end of year (4,963,790.66) -

The Group“s advances to related parties are presented as Due from Related Parties
in the consolidated balance sheet.

(E)

Corporate Governance

Please refer to the Revised Annual Corporate Governance Report (‘ACGR”)
of the Company hereto attached as Annex “A” pursuant to Securities and
Exchange Commission Advisory dated March 12, 2015.

The Company's ACGR is also posted in the Company“s Official Website

www.phoenixfuels.ph
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
Exhibits
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference in this report.
o Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year

ended 31 December 2014
¢ Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules

Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following disclosures have been reported and disclosed to the Commission for
the year 2014 up to March 18, 2015 which were duly supported by disclosure letters:

2014 Disclosures (including disclosures up to March 18, 2015):
e Press Statement re listing of additional STCP with PDEX
March 18, 2015
o Results of Organizational Meeting of Board of Directors
March 12, 2015

e Results of Annual or Special Stockholders' Meeting
March 12, 2015

e PSE Disclosure on rollover of STCP
March 09, 2015

e Declaration of Cash Dividends
March 04, 2015

e [Amend-1]Declaration of Cash Dividends
February 27, 2015

e Press Release re SEC approval of P1.5 B STCP
February 25, 2015

o Disclosure on the pre-effective clearance STCP
February 23, 2015

e Press Release re renewal of Agreement CebPac and PPPI
February 23, 2015
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-18_Press_Statement_re_listing_of_additional_STCP_w_PDEX.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-11_Results_of_ASM_2015.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-27_Amended_disclosure_re_cash_dividend_of_PNXP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-24_Press_Statement_re_SEC_approval_of_P1.5_B_STCP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-23_Disclosure_on_the_pre-effective_clearance_STCP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-23_Press_Statement_re_renewal_of_agreement_CebPac_and_PPPI.pdf

Material Information/Transactions
February 17, 2015

Clarification of News Reports
February 16, 2015

Disclosure of Audited FS December 31, 2014
February 12, 2015

Press Release for FS December 31, 2014
February 12, 2015

Declaration of Cash Dividends of PNX Preferred Shares
February 09, 2015

Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS)
February 06, 2015

Material Information/Transactions
February 05, 2015

[Amend-1] Notice of Annual or Special Stockholders' Meeting
February 05, 2015

Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS)
February 05, 2015

[Amend-1] Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q)
February 03, 2015
[Amend-1] Quarterly Report (SEC Form 17-Q)
February 03, 2015

Notice of Annual or Special Stockholder’s Meeting
February 03, 2015

Public Ownership Report
January 19, 2015

Top Stockholders as of December 31, 2014
January 13, 2015

BOD Attendance MCG Certification
January 09, 2015

2014 Annual Report
December 18, 2014

PNXP Dividend Payment for 4Q
December 16, 2014

SEC Form 17-Q (09302014)
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-17_2014_Audited_FS_with_notes.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-16_L-clarification_re_news_article_in_Manila_Times_re_approval_by_SEC_on_STCP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-12_Disclosure_of_Audited_FS_12312014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-12_Press_Statement_for_FS_12312014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-9_Disclosure_on_PNXP_dividend_declaration.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-6_SEC_Form_20-IS_DIS.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-5_Disclosure_on_replacement_of_CCU_as_nominations_committee.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-5_Notice_to_stockholders-ASM_2015.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-5_SEC_Form_20-IS_DIS.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-3_Amend-1_Quarterly_Report_SEC_For_17-Q_09302014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-3_Amend-1_Quarterly_Report_SEC_For_17-Q.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-3_Notice_of_Annual_or_Special_Stockholders_Meeting.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-19_Public_Ownership_Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-13_Top_Stockholders.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-9_BOD_Attendance_MCG_Certification.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/SEC-Form-17-A_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/12-16_PNXP_dividend_payment_for_4Q_12202014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/11-12_SEC_Form_17-Q_09302014.pdf

November 12, 2014

Press Release for 3rd Qtr 2014 Performance
November 12, 2014

Clarification re business news article 11102014
November 11, 2014

Press Release for listing of STCP with PDEX
November 10, 2014

SEC Form 23-B (Udenna Corp 10302014)
October 30, 2014

Press Release for issuance of STCP
October 22, 2014

Material Information/Transactions
October 15, 2014

Public Ownership Report
October 07, 2014

List of Top 100 Stockholders
October 07, 2014

Press Release: Renewal of CebPac and PPPI
September 08, 2014

Press Release: PPIPC new port facility
August 29, 2014

Revised Manual of Corporate Governance
August 01, 2014

Press Release: 1st Half 2014 Performance
July 30, 2014

Quarterly Report

July 28, 2014

Public Ownership Report
July 07, 2014

Top 100 Stockholders
July 04, 2014

Retirement Plan Disclosure
June 27, 2014

Foreign Ownership as of May 31, 2014
June 04, 2014

Board Lot Report
June 04, 2014
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/11-12_Press_Release_for_3rd_Qtr_2014_Performance.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/11-11_Clarification_re_business_news_article_11-10-2014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/11-10_Press_Release_for_listing_of_STCP_with_PDEx.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/10-30_SEC_Form_23-B_Udenna_Corp_10302014.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/10-22_Press_Release_for_issuance_of_STCP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/10-15_Disclosure_on_approval_of_SEC_Registered_STCP.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/10-7_Public_Ownership_Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/10-7_List_of_Top_100_Stockholders.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/9-8_Press_Release_-_Renewal_of_CebPac_and_PPPI.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/8-29_Press_Release-_PPIPC_new_port_facility.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/8-1_Revised_Manual_of_Corporate_Governance.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/7-30_Press_Release.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/7-28_Quarterly_Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/7-7_Public_Ownership_Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/7-4_Top_100_Stockholders.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/6-26_Retirement_Plan_Disclosure.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/Foreign-Ownership-as-of-May-31-2014_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/Board-lot-as-of-May-31-2014_2.pdf

Results of ASM 2014 — Amended
June 03, 2014

Revised Manual of Corporate Governance
June 03, 2014

SEC Form 17-Q (03312014)
June 03, 2014

[Amend-1] Quarterly Report
May 16, 2014

Press Release: Q1 2014 Performance
May 16, 2014

Quarterly Report
May 16, 2014

Registration Statement on Preferred Shares (SEC Form 12-1, as Amended)
May 14, 2014

Foreign Ownership as of April 30, 2014
May 09, 2014

Board Lot Report as of 30 April 2014
May 09, 2014

Material Information — Transactions
May 08, 2014

[Amend-1] Public Ownership Report
April 14,2014

[Amend-1] List of Top 100 Stockholders
April 08, 2014

[Amend-1] Results of Annual or Special Stockholders® Meeting
April 08, 2014

Public Ownership Report
April 08, 2014

List of Top 100 Stockholders
April 08, 2014

[Amend-1] Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership of Securities
March 31, 2014

PNX CG Guidelines Disclosure Survey 2013
March 28, 2014

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership of Securities
March 26, 2014
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/Results-of-ASM-2014-Amended_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/Revised-Manual-of-Corporate-Governance_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/SEC-Form-17-Q-03312014_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-16-Amend-1-Quarterly-Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-16-Press-Release.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-16-Quarterly-Report_2.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/Info-Memo-RSPref.-Shares.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-7-Foreign-Ownership-as-of-April-30-2014_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-7-Board-Lot-Report-as-of-30-April-2014_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/5-8-Material-Information-Transactions.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/4-14-Amend-1-Public-Ownership-Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/4-8-Amend-1-List-of-Top-100-Stockholders_2.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/4-8-Amend-1-Results-of-Annual-or-Special-Stockholders-Meeting_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/4-8-Public-Ownership-Report.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/4-8-List-of-Top-100-Stockholders.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-31-Amend-1-Statement-of-Changes-in-Beneficial-Ownership-of-Securities.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/PNX-CG-Guidelines-Disclosure-Survey-2013_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-26-Statement-of-Changes-in-Beneficial-Ownership-of-Securities_1.pdf

Compliance Report on Corporate Governance
March 26, 2014

Results of Organizational Meeting of Board of Directors
March 10, 2014

Results of Annual or Special Stockholders® Meeting
March 10, 2014

[Amend-1] Declaration of Cash Dividends
March 03, 2014

[Amend-2] Information Statement
February 21, 2014

Material Information/Transactions
February 21, 2014

Material Information
February 17, 2014

Press Release: Results of Audited FS 2013
February 17, 2014

Notice of Annual or Special Stockholder’s Meeting
January 29, 2014

Declaration of Cash Dividends
January 29, 2014

Other SEC Forms, Reports and Requirements (2)
January 16, 2014
Other SEC Forms, Reports and Requirements (1)
January 16, 2014

Change in Number of Issued and/or Qutstanding Shares
January 16, 2014

Press Release for 2013 Performance
January 16, 2014
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-26-Compliance-Report-on-Corporate-Governance_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-10-Results-of-Organizational-Meeting-of-Board-of-Directors_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-10-Results-of-Annual-or-Special-Stockholders-Meeting_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/3-3-Amend-1-Declaration-of-Cash-Dividends_2.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-21-Amend-2-Information-Statement.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-21-Material-Information-Transactions_2.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-17-Material-Information_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/2-17-Press-Release.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-29-Notice-of-Annual-or-Special-Stockholders-Meeting_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-29-Declaration-of-Cash-Dividends_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-16-Other-SEC-Forms-Reports-and-Requirements-2_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-16-Other-SEC-Forms-Reports-and-Requirements-1_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-16-Change-in-Number-of-Issued-and-or-Outstanding-Shares_1.pdf
http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/media/k2/attachments/1-16-Press-Release_1.pdf

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Davao on April 08, 2015.

By:

DENNIS A. UY JOSEPH JOHN L. ONG
President & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

CHRYSS ALFONSUS V. DAMUY SOCORRO ERMAC CABREROS
Vice President, Finance Corporate Secretary
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o be an indispensabie partner In (he journey of everyone

whose |ife we fouch e
PHOENIX
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group), is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, including the following additional supplementary information which is filed separately
from the basic consolidated financial statements:

a) Supplementary schedule required under Annex 68-E of the SRC

b) Map showing the relationship between and among related entities

¢) Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Councils as of 31
December 2014

d) Schedule showing financial soundness indicators

e) Schedule showing reconciliation of Retained Earnings available for dividend declaration

Management's responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies,
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

o
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidatedsfiriancial Htements, and the additional
supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockl’g]ders.”

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stotkholders for the period
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, has examined the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and, and in its rgpqr_t_;\t'p the Board of Directors
and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such
examination. L

Signed this 16th day of February 2015, Davao City -

Pt
> Py
Chief Financial Officer
HEAR OFFICE: fhoenix Bulk Depol, Lanang, Davao City 8000, MANILA OFFICE: 25(F Fort Legend Towers, 3rd Avenue comer 3IsLSL, CEBU OFFIGE: Phoenix Magiikay Gasofine Station. M.C. Bricnes SL.
Philippines Ferl Bonifacko Global Gity, Taguig Gity 1634, Phifippines Nationel Highway, Maguikay, Mandaue City, Cebu 6014,
Trunkline: +63 (83) 235-8888 Trunkiine. +632-403-4013 Prilppines
Fax: +63 (B2) 2330168 Fax, +832-402-4009 Tel. No.. +83 (32) 236-8168/ 236-8148

www.phnunixfuéls;ph
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Republic of the Philippines)
City of Davao ) S.S.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on FEB 16 zms in Davao City,
Philippines. Affiants have confirmed their identities by presenting competent evidence of identity, viz:

Name Competent Evidence of Identity
Domingo T. Uy TIN 140-162-193
Dennis A. Uy TIN-172-020-135
Joseph John L. Ong TIN 101-116-899

and that they further attest that the same are true and correct.
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f‘@v Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth

Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants
19ih and 20th Floors. Tower 1

to Accompany Supplementary Information e cuepise cent
67646 Ayala Avenue

Required by the Securities and Exchange 1200y
. " . ilippines

Commission Filed Separately from the 3 ous 2288

Basic Financial Statements F+63 2 800 5506 oo

The Board of Directors

P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Stella Hizon Reyes Road

Barrio Pampanga, Davao City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standigds on Aﬁaﬂng, the
consolidated financial statetnents of P-H-O-E-N-I-X, Petroleunt Philippines, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended December-31, 2014, on which we have
rendered our report dated February 11, 2015, Our audit was made:for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic consolidated ﬁnancial}taté_;:nents; taken as a whole.
The applicable supplementary information {see List of S_uppIerriénté;y Information)
are presented for purposes of additional analysis in compiliance withthe requirements
of the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 (as amended),and are not a required part of
the basic consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards. Such supplementary i_nf()bir;&atic')n are the responsibility
of the Group’s management. The supplementary informatignhave been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic cohsolidated financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

O
By: u . Murcia II1
Pattner

CI'A Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
DTR No. 4748317, January 5, 2015, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (until Sept. 5, 20106)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (until Mar. 31, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (until Nov. 7, 20106)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)

Carlified Public Accountanis
P&A is & member fitm wiliin Granl Thornter: Inisnational Lid

Ofiices in Cebu, Davao, Cavite February 1 l, 201 5

BOAPRE Cert of Reg No. 0002
SEC Growr A Azerzdalion Mo, 0002.FR-3



Schedule

A

B

K

P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
LIST OF SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Deseription ) Page
Financial Assets N/A

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Cmployees, Related Partes,

and DPrincipal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) : 1

Amounts of Receivable from Related Pasties which are Eliminated during

the Consolidation of Financial Staternents 2
Intangible Assets - Other assets 3
Long-Term Debt 4.7

Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term loans from related Companies) N/A

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers N/A
Capital Stock G
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 7
Mapping of the Organization Structure 8

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 9-11



P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petrolcum Philippines, Inc, and Subsidiaries
Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employceces, Related Partics and Principal Stoclholders (Other than Related Paruics)
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Ending Balancc

. . 20 F () i 7. af e
Name and Designation of debior Balance at b'eg inning of Adeditrons Amaunits collected Amaunts Currcnt Nost-current Balance at end of
pered written off period
Udenna Environmental Services, Inc. P 2,747,994 r - g 2,747,994 P - P - 4 - r -
P-11-0)-F-MN-1-XPhilippines Toundarion, Inc. I - 10,373,556 ; - 10,373,356 - 10,373,356
r 2,747,994 P lﬁ.."ﬁ?ﬁ.ﬁ r 2,747,9% P - B 10,373,356 o= : P 10,373,356




P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Schedule C - Amounis of Receivable from Related Parties
which ar¢ Eliminated during Consolidation of Financial Stalements
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Balance at Amount
Name and designadon of debror beginning of period Addigons Amounts Collecred | written off Currcat Not Current | Balance acend of penod
Advancey to Snbsidianies
Subic Petroleum T'eading & Transport Phils, Inc. P 1,598,820,975 P 1,002,806,335 I* 2601627810 LI P - P P -
PFL Petroleum Management, [ne. 27,564,867 100,000 100,060 - 27,564,867 - 27,564,867
Chelsea Shipping Comp. 171,992,570 60,000,789 24,000,000 - 207,993,35¢ 207,993,359
P -03-15-N-1-X Gilobal Mercanle, Ine. 2,669,365 194,416 6,000 - 3,857,781 2,857,781
Phocnix Petroterminals & Indusinal Park Com. 3,830 25,364,963 25,000,000 ——— 368,793 — 368,793
P 1,801,051,607 P 1,088,467,003 I* 2,650,733,810 E—- .. r 238,784,800 P P 238,784,800
Trade Recefvapies
Chelsea Shipping Corp. P 398,601,065 P 593975081 P 656,268,240 I’ p 336307000 p - P 336,307,900
Phoenix Petroterminals Indusiral Park Corp. 67,014 884 147,092,804 165,221,951 48,885737 - 48,885,737
PFL Petroleum Management, Inc. 55,674,151 225,854,089 205,963,014 75,565,226 - 75,505,226
Subic Petroleum Trading & “I'mnspornt Phils, Inc. - 320,872,054 223,774,881 - 97,097.173 - 97097173
Ronkers Mantla Inc. 12,182,589 1,476,553 4,673,036 8,986,106 8,986,106
Michacl Tncorporated 7,779,075 35,446,479 2092339 - 22,302,158 . 22,302,158
P 541,251,764 P 324,717,060 P 1276824524 P - P 5894430 P - P 589,144,300




Description

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleom Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule D - Intangible Asscts - Other Assets
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Deductions

Other changes
additions
{deductions)

Charged to cost and Chacged to other

Beginning balance | Additions ar cost
expenscs dCCOuUns

Endigg balance

Oxher Non-Current assets
Goodwill

P 84516663 p_ - P 84516663




P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petrolcum Philippincs, Inc. and Subsidiarics

Schedule E - Long-Term Debt

DECEMBER 31, 2014

Vitte of frseee and type of obleation

Amonnt anthorized by
indeninre

Asmiownt shown wnder

capiion’ Crrrent portian of fong-

reran debr’" i related batance

Amonnt shown ander
capitan’Long-Ternt Debt" i

Terms

related batance sheet
sheet
Mortgage Payable P o 1611934 P ( 406,699 Interest rares ranging from 7.51% to 11.37% per annum wirh
- / tenns anging from 18 te 36 inoaths
[nstallment, notes and loans payable
AB Capital and [nvestnent Comperadon 691,300,000 674,104,179 - iO[(’I.'tSl rates eaaging 4% to 4.5% per annum wath cerms
ranging [rom 90 we 354 days
Banco De Oro Hnibank, Tnc., 500,000,000 - 500,000,000 Interest rate of 6.64% maturing on July 17, 2017,
Banco D¢ Ora Unibank, lac., 500,000,000 485,000,000  Inrerest rare of 7.74% maturing on August 24, 2016,
BIJO Prvare Bank, Tnc. 800,000,000 800,000,000 - Interesr rate of 3.5% matudng in January 2015
o 33,469,037 7,462,297 5671567 Ineerest rares ranging from 9.75% to 10.25% per annum with
BPI Leasing Comoraton terms of 60 moenchs.
Buﬂrd‘nf.'!'rusn.:cs of Peivate lducalion Retrement Annuity 106,667 106,667 Interest rate of 4% with term of 60 days.
Aszsociahon ‘
China Banking Corporarion 2,500,000,000 - 2,476,160,490  Inreeest rare of 7.75%, matudng on Nov. 12, 2047
China Banking Comoration 100,000,000 100,000,000 - Interest mte of 4.75%, maurng on Febuary 17,2017
Chinatrst (Philippines) Commercial Bank Comorton 295 000,000 195,000,000 'rf““’“” rate of 4%, maturing on Jasuary 5, 2015 and
“ebuary 16, 2015,
Franciscan Missionanes 7,538,213 7,538,213 - Inserest rate of 3.5%, maturing on anuary 16, 2015,
Maybank Philippmes, Inc. 200,000,000 - 194,000,000 larcrest cate of 7.7377% due on Aug. 24,2016
Maybank Philippines, Ine. 300,000,000 - 165,000,000 Yotcrest rare af 5.5% due on [uly 26,2017
Maybank Philippinces, Inc. 411,330,000 - 142,939978  Interest rate of 6.5% duc on Dee. 20, 2017
Maybank Philippines, [ne. 573,802,000 - 308,288,808 lnierest rate of 5.95% duc on Dec. 20, 2015
Maybank Plulippines, [nc. 330,000,000 330,000,000 - Inrerest rare of 4.5% due on e, 17, 2015
Rabinsons Bank 50,000,000 - 48,500,000  Interest ratc of 7.7377% due on Aug. 24, 2016
Multinaional [nvestmient Bancorponadon 1,303,700,000 1,268,648,323 - Intcr.c::t rares anging from fl% ter.5% pec anmam wich teems
ranging from 90 to 354 days.
Multinatienal Invesoment Baneomoration 2,010,347 2,010,347 - Inrerest cate of 3.75%, maturing on January 16, 2015,
Multinadonal [nvesemene Bancomormdon 41,400,509 41,400,509 - Interest rate ol 3.5%, matudng on January 14 -16, 2015.
Multnadonal Investment Bancomoradon 15,513,771 15,513,771 - Interest race of 4%, matorng on [anuarey 12, 2013
Multinatonal Investment Bancorporation 70,000,000 70,000,000 - Intcrest mte of 4.8%, mamdng on Januagy 12 andi4, 2015.
Muldnananal Investment Bancomoration 350,000,000 350,000,000 Interest rate of 3.5%, matoong on January 15, 2015,
Philippine Bank of Cominunications 150,000,000 75,000,000 - Intesest rate of 4.5%, matnng on Janvary 4, 2015.
Raobinsons Bank 70,000,000 70,000,000 - [nterest rake of 4.75%, maturng on January 13, 2015,



P-H-0O-E-N-I-X Pcteoleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiacies
Schedule E - Long-Term Debt
DECEMBER 31, 2014

Title of ivsue and bype of obigation

Aumannt shown under

. e . Awonnt shown inder
Awmonnt anthoriged by caption” Current partion of fong-

caption’ Long-Term Debt” in

Terms

fndentire term deb?’* in related balanee
related balance sheer
sheet

Robinsons Bank P 100 000,000 I’ 82,000,000 P Incerest rate of 4.75%, maoanug on 1eb. 17, 2015,
Shoeeat, Inc. 23,344,259 23,344,259 - lnterest tate of 3.75%, maturing on January 16, 2015.
Stella Maris Collepe 1,013,410 1,013,416 - Intercst rate of 3.5%, maturing on January 16, 2015.
Banco e (Oco Unibank, Inc, 404 632,095 95,363,645 309,268,250  Intccest rate of 4% 10 4.59% matunng an Sept 28, 2013
Development Bank of the Philippines 300,000,000 136,000,000 164,000,000 Intceest tate of 7.5% per annum payable pee quarter.
PPhilippine Bank of Commuuications 3,939,594 3.939,394 - Inceeest rate of $.5% maruring on e, 28, 2015
Philippine Bank of Communicarions 4,015,152 4,015,152 - [nterest rate of 9.5% maturing on May 15, 2015
Philippine Bank of Communicadons 7,636,364 7,036,364 - Interese rate of 9.5% matutng on Jan 2, 2015
I"hilippine Bank of Communicatons 2,348 485 2,348,485 - Interest cale of 9.5% marurng on May 25, 2015
Robinsons Bank 3,300,000 3,300,000 - Intetest rate of 6.0% maruring on Sep 3, 2015
Robinsons Bank 44,900,000 44,900,000 Interest mee of 6.0% maturing un el 18, 2015
Robinsons Bank 8,600,000 8,600,000 - [neerest rate of 6.0% maturing on May 14, 2005
United Coconul Planters Bank 7,100,000 7,100,000 - Trrerest cate of 6,75% marunng on Feb 18, 2005
Unired Coconut Planters Bank 5,300,000 5,300,000 Tnterest eate of 6.75% marunng on lFeb 5, 2015
United Coconut Planters Baak 3,300,000 5,300,000 Interest rate of 6.75% mamang an Feb 5, 2015
United Coconut Planters Bank 2,200,000 2,200,000 Interest rate of 6.75% ruacuring on lan 9, 2015
United Cocanut Planters Bank 10,700,000 10700000 Intecest rae of 6.75% marunng on Feb 5, 2015
Multnarional Investment Bancorporanion 7,193,829 7,193,829 lntercst rate of 4.25%, maruring on Jan. 28, 2015
Mulgnatonal Investment Bancorporaaen 20,760,043 20,760,043 Interest rate of 4.25%%, maturing oo Jan. 28, 2015
Multinational Investment Bancorporanon 5,043,005 5,043,095 interese rale of 4.25%, maturing on Jan. 21, 2015
Multinational Investment Bancorpotation 55,308,629 55,308,629 Interest nte of 5.0%, maturing on Jan, 14, 2015
Multinational Investment Bancomporaton 14,108,699 14,108,699 Intecest rate of 4.25%, marng on Jan. 21, 2015
Muldnanonal [nvestment Bancorporation 11,000,000 11,000,000 I nterest rate of 5.0%, maturing on [an. 12, 2015
Multinational Investment Bancorporation 53,423,102 53,423,102 Interest rate of 5.0%, marurng on Jan. 13, 2015
Maybank Philippines, Inc. 50,000,000 50,000,000 Interest rate of 5.0%, matiring on Jan. 6, 2015
Maybank Plilippines, Inc. 50,000,000 50,000,000 Enterest rate of 5.0%, macuring on Feb. 4, 2015
Ranco e Oro Unibank, Inc., 595,063,873 08,357,685 496,706,188 Interest rate of 4% to 4.59% maturing on Sept 28, 2018
Asia United Bank 88,888,589 22,222,222 66,666,667  [nterest rate of 4% t 4.59% manmning on Scpt 28, 2018

“I'otal [nstallment, notes and koans payable 11,187,349,868 4,837,262,525 5,362,210,948

TOTAL P 14,187,349.868 P 4,838,874,459 P 5,363,617,647




P-Li-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippincs, Inc. and Subsidiarnies
Schedule H - Capirtal Stock
December 31, 2014

Number of shares held by

Number of shares fssucd| Numberof sharcs Directors
. . 4 ;
. Number of shares and outstanding as reserved for oprons, . ’
Title of Issue ) . Reluted partics officers and Others
authorized shown under the refated | warranis, coversion
cruployees

and other rights

balance sheer caption

Preferred shares - 1 par value 50,000,000
Non-voting, non-participating,
non-conveetible into common shares
Tssued and cutstanding - 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Comman shares - P1 par value 2.500,000,000
1428777232 - 915,786,717 1,797,165 511,193,350

Tssued and outstanding - 1,428,777,232



P-HO-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaties
lable for Dividend Declatation

Schedule I - Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Avai

December 31, 2014

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING

Net Income based on the face of AFS
Less: Non -actaal/unrealized income, net of ax:

Deferred tax income

Net Income Actual/Re alized

Less: Changes in Retained Eamings for the Year
Dividend declarations during the period
Common shares cash dividends
Preferred shares cash dividends

Transfer of revaluaton reserves to retained earnings

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS,
AS ADJUSTED, ENDING

(P
(

142,877,723)
41,250,000))

20,568,898

P 2046541766
616,362,972
33,992,758 )

582,370,214

163,558,825)

P 2,465,353,155




P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE J - MAPPING OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
DECEMBER 31, 2014

UDENNA CORPORATION
(Ultimate Parent Company)

Phoenix Petroleum
Holdings Inc.
(Parent Company)

Udenna Trade
Corporation®

Global Synergy Trade
& Distribution
Corporation *

Phoenix Petroleum Philippines Inc. (PPPI}
41% owned by PPHI

28% ogwned by Udenna & UMRC

319 owned by Investing Public

PNX-UDENNA

insurance Brokers, Inc.
*

PFL Petroleum
Management Inc.
{Subsidiary)

Phoenix Global
Mercantile Inc.
(Subsidiary)

Udenna Foundation,
Inc

Phoenix Petroterminal

& Industrial Park
Corporation

{subsidiary)

Subic Petroleum
Trading and
Transport Phils.
(Subsidiary)

Udenna Development
[UDEVCO) Corporation
*

Chelsea Shipping
Corp.
{Subsidiary)

Phoenix Foundation

Philippines (PPFI)

Udenna Tower Corp. *

Udenna Management
R Resources Corp. *

Value Leases Inc. *

Udenna Energy
Corporation *

Udenna
Environmental
Services Inc*

Udenna Capital Inc. *

Chelsea Ship
PNX-Chelsea Management &

Fortis Tugs
Corporation
{Subsidiary)

Bunkers Manila
inc. (Subsidiary)

Michael In¢. (M)
(Subsidiary) Shipping Corp. Marine Services

(Subsidiary) Corp.

Norse/Phil Marine
Services Corp.
(Associate)
45% owned by CS5¢

{Subsidiary)

“Related party under common control




P-H-0-E-M-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule X - Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Ssandards and Interpreladons
Adopled by the Secusities and Exchange Commission and the
Ficancial Reponing Standards Council a5 ar December 31, 2014

F : > EEENs I L =
PITILIPTINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDE AND INTERPRETATIUNS Gl Ll it e T B _‘3"; 1
K B L. pT A nr s st o P 28 1 bt | ﬁtkp el
Framnework for the Preparation and Presentation uf Financial Starements v
Concepual Framewnirk Phizge A: Objectives aud Qualisine Characteristics 4
Practice Staternent Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
Fise-rime Adoption of Fhdppme Financial Reporrmyz Sia | 7
Amendtenid i PERS 1 Addwonal Exenprivms (o First-rime Adoplers v
PERS | Amendment o PERS 1: Lamited Exeinprion frem Companuse PERS T Disclosures for
(Reviged) First-tune Adople-
Amendments w PFRS 1 Severe |yperinfanon and Removal of Fixed Date for Firsi-tine
Adopiers
Amendmeis w PERS 1D Govenment [oans
Share-bazed Pyymem v
PFRS 2 Amendmens w PERS 2 Vesting Comdhrans and Caneellanons 7
Amendments 1o PRS2 Group Cash-zerded Shave-based Payment Transacrons v
PFRS 3 3 T
(Revised) Busiess Combinzanons V4
lasurance Contraces '
PFRS 4
Amendments 1o PAS 39 and PIRS 4: Fwancial Guaraniee Contracts 7 |
PFRS 5 Non-curreat Assets Held for Sale and Discontinped Operations v
PFRS 6 Cxplorarion for and Evaluanon of Mineral Resources ,/
Financial Insteuineniz Nisclosures s
Amendments 1o FIRS 7: Transidon '
Arncendments o PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclzssifcation of Finanaal Assets v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificaion of Financial Assets - Effective Dace Y
and Transiion
PFRS 7 Amendments  PERS 7 Improving Disclosures abour Fuaucrd Instmomnents v
Amcndments to PFRS T: Disclosurcs — Tmnsiers of Financal Assets J
Amendments 0 PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offseuting Financial Assets amd Financil Labitives
Amendments 1o PFRR 7: Mandatory Effectve Date of PERS € and Transmon Disclosures v
deflectere wben PITRY 9 16 first apnlicd)
PFRS § {purating Segments v
PFRS9 Fuaneinl Insreomenss” feffictn ¢ Jammary 1, 2008) ” .
Comsoldated Fnancial Sarements v
Amendments 10 PERS 10 Transimon Guidance v
PFRS 10
Amendments 1o PFRS 1 Invesiment Endues %
Amendments (o PFRS 10 Investment Entitivs — Applying the Consohdaton Exceprion” v
fetfeiioe Jumeary 1, 2036}
Joint Arrangements v
PFRS 11
Amendments 1o PERS 11 Transinon Guwdance s
Insclosure v fterests in Ooher Corites v
Amendments to PIFRS 12: Trnsinon Guidance v
PFRS 12 Amendments 10 PERS 12 Invesmment Entines v
Amendments 1o PFRS 10: Investment Entities - Applying the Consolidaron Exception” s
feffeciave Jamary 1, 2016]
PFRS 13 Toaie Value Measurcrment v
PFRS Regulatory Delveral Aecounts® fefective fameary {, 2008) v




PHILIPUINE FINANCIAT REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

I Aitoped

a0
Biut Applisable

Philippine Accounting Stendards (PAS)

—_

Presenmnon of Fupancal Starements

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Punable Financial [nstuments and Obbgatdons Adsing

PAS 1 on Lwquidation ¥ J
(Revised) : - F
Amendments 1a PAS 1: Peesentadon of liems of Qther Comprehennve Incame v
Amendiments ke PAS 1; Disclosute Lisivanve* (et Jamay 1, 2016) v
PAS 2 Tuventosies e
PAS? Starement of Cash [lows 4
PASB Accountug Pebiins, Changes m Accounung Fsdmares and Errors a
PAS 10 Events 2fter the Reporting Period 7
PAS 11 Construction Conircts o
PAS 12 Income Taxcs ) - v 1]
Amenchncnt o PAS 17 - [letesmed Tax: Recovery of Underying, Assews '
PAS 16 Peoperty, Pl and Equipmint v ]
PAS 17 Leases v |
PASIS  [Revenue v |
PAS 19 Ii?.mplo_\t-c Nencies v 1
(Revised) [ Amendment ro PAS 19, Definal Benefit Plans - kinployee Contnbuuons® {effecire fufy 1. Y
201
PAS 20 Accounung for Govenunent Grants and Disclosure of Goverainent Assisande 4
‘e Effaetz of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rares
PAS 21
Amendment Met Tawvesiment w a Foregn Operanon v
Fl:{\esﬂ'zs:: " Borrowng, Casts v
fl:seﬂ?;td) Related Parey Disclosures '
PAS 26 Agcounting and Repatumg by Retirement Benelic PMaus v
PAS 27 Separaie Financial Statemenits J/
(Revised) Amendmeints o FAS 27: Juvesunenr Enunes v
PAS 28 nvestinents in Associates and Jont Venwres '
(Revised) — - -
Amendment o PAS 28: Investment Fntities - Applving the Consalidation Excephion N
PAS 29 Financial Reporung in Hyperinilatonary Econamics v
Tinancial Tusmuments: Peesentalion e
Amendments 1o DAS 32 aod PAS |: Putable Finaacial Tnstrumenis and Obliganons Arising
PAS 32 on Laguidaton 7
Amendiment 1o PAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendhaents © PAS 32 Offening Fmancal A<sets and Fmancal Linhilit == 4
PAS 3} Farmmgs per Share v
PAS M4 fnienm Finanerl Reporiing, v
PAS 36 Impawment of Asaets '
Amendment o 17A3 36, Recoverable Amoune Disclsures for Hon-lnancal Assers Fd
PAS 37 Provigions, Contngent Liabilites and Contingent Asscls i —|
PAS 38 Turangible Asscis v l

210 -



PHILIFPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

i
| Bl

o e i s L
Adopied Adopazd MaChpplicobles
{stancial Insrruimenes. erogaioon and Mezsurement &
Amenthnents 1o PAS 30: Transtion and Ininal Recogrtian of Finangud Assets and
W STES o v
Fmancial Liabilines
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intmgroup Tranzacnons v
Amendments 10 PAS 39: The Fair Value Oprion ¥
PAS 39 Ameudments @ PAS 39 and PFRS 3: Financial Guarutee Conracts v ]
Amendments o PAS 39 and PRI 7: Rechssiiicarsa nf Financis! Arseis v
Amendments o PAS 30 ami PERS 7 Rechssiticauon ol Financial Assets — Effective Date Y
and Ymansinon
Amendments to Philippine [nterpretanon TFRIC 9 and 1PAS 39 Embedded Denvanves '
Amenitisear to PAS 39; Ehpitle Hedged Trems v
Amendment 1@ PAS 39: Novatiai of Deavanves aid Condouaaon ol Hedg: Accountng o
PAS 40 Isvestment Property 4
PAS 41 Agriculture g
Phitippine Interpretations - International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commirtee (IFRIC)
[FRIC | Changes w Existing Decommussioning, Restornuou and Simalar Liabilines™~ s
1FRIC 2 Aembery' Share in Co-operauve Entitics and Smilar Instrmnents S
IFRIC 4 Dewnmrang Whether an Arangement Conains a Lease
TERIC § Riphis 0 lmerursts Awsing ltom Deconmmisssnug, Restorauon and Fnviroemenl )
ey Fumels*”
g Fare a Snecific Marker - Wasee Flecrieal ;
IFRIC 6 1_ ,[\n_m;__ Trom Pardoparing w 3 Specific Market - Wasie Flectrical and blectronie Y
e
[FRIC 7 il the Restatement Approach under PAS 2, Fnancid Reparring in | lypenutlavnary y 1
Lconpmivs
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivazives* = v
Sanendments o Phitlippine Interpretation JFRIC-9 and PAY 39: Finbedded Denvanves™” rd
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impaicment v
[FRIC 12 |Service Concession Arcangements 4
I[FRIC 13 |Customer Loyaly Programmes **
PAS 19 - The Limit on 2 Defined Benefin Asset. Minimum Funding Reguiraments and theie Y
IFRIC 14 Interncnon __ : : i : _
Amendments o Philippine Interpretzuions IFRIC - 14, Prepaymenss of a Muisum Funding p
Reguiremeut and their [neeracuon
IFRIC 16 Hedges of 2 Net Invesiment in a Foreigu Opcranion v
IFRIC 17 Dizmbununs of Nop-cash Assets 10 Qwners*® v J
IFRIC 1§ [Transfers of Assets from Cuswnners®” v
IFRIC 19 |Extingwshing Financal Liabilines with Equity Instruments™ v
IFRIC 20 [Stnpping Costs in the Produenon Phase of a Surface Mine v
IFRIC 21 Levieas* 7
Philippine Intecpretations - Standing Interprecations Commitice (51C)
S1C-7 lnteodacion of the Fure = v
SIC-18 Government Assistanee - No Speafic Ruliion o Operarag Aopaties v
SIC-13 Jouuly Controlled Viines - Non-Manetaey Comnbutinns by Venrurers 5/
S1C-15 Operating Leases - Incennves v
[
SIC-25 Income Tascs - Changes in the Tax Stzrus of an Enary or its Sharehotders*< e
S1C-27 Livalnansg the Substance of Trangactions fnvolvuiy the Legad I'onn of a bease e
SIC-29 Service Comcession Arrangements: Disclosures v
SIC-31 Revenue - Barwer Transactions Involving Advertising Senvices*? v
SI1C-32 Inangble Assets - Web Site Cusis™ v

+ These sandards will be elicetive for periods subsequent 1© 2014 and are no cady adopted by the Growp.

£+ These smndards have been adopred in the prepamtiun of consolidated fnancal statements bue the Group has no significaine ransactions covered

in all y

ears presenicd.

-




P-HO-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Financial Soundness Indicators
December 31, 2014

2014 2013
A) LIQUIDITY RATIOS
1 Current Rauo: Current Assess
Current Liabilities 1.11 1.33
2 Quick Rato: Currenr Assers - Inventories
Current Liabitics 0.88 0.94
3 Cash Ratio: Cash and Cash Equivalens
Current Liablities 0.05 0.04
B) SOLVENCY RATIOS
1 Solvency Ratio: After Tax Net Profit + Depreciation
Long term liabilities + Short term Liabilities 0.07 0.08
2 Debt o Equity Ratio: Total Liabliries
Equiry 2.55 2.44
C) ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO
Tortal Assets
Equiry 3.55 3.44
D) INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
Interest Expense 1.85 2.08
E) PROFITABILITY RATIOS
1 Gross Profit Margin: Sales - Cost of Goods Sold
Sales 0.10 0.08
2 Return on Assets: Ner Income
Total Assets 0.03 0.03
3 Return on Equity: Ner Income

Equiry 0.10 0.10
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The Enterprise Center
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Philippines

T +63 2 988 2288
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www.punongbayan-araullo.com

The Board of Directors

P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Stella Hizon Reyes Road

Barrio Pampanga, Davao City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Y
Management is responsible for the preparation andfair prgse':ft’ation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Phi 'ﬁpine Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as managemgnt detegmines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial ‘statemergts that aze free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. e

=

Asditors’ Responsibility | 3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these cofsolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that WE’C(:)I'..Qply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain tZasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Certitied Public Accountants
B8 is a mamber M within Geanl Thorntan (nternatione| Lid

Offices In Cebu, Davao, Cavite

BOAPRC Cert. of Reg Mo 0002
SEC Group A Accrnifitation No, Q002-FK.3




Q Punon_gbayanﬁ&AraulIo

An instinct for growth”

.2

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropmate to
ptovide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinzon

In out opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum
Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and their
consolidated financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reportng Standards.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

b
By: V. Murcia 111

tner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059
PTR No. 4748317, January 5, 2015, Makad Cirty
SEC Group A Accrediration
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 {untl Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (untl Mar. 31, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (untl Nowv. 7, 2016)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)

February 11, 2015

Certified Public Acgountanis
P&A is a memper firm within Grant Thomlen Inlemational Lid




P-H-0-E-N-I-X FETROLEUM FPHILIPPINES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2014 2013
SSE
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 555,508,720 I 357,220,520
Trade and other receivables - net 7 7,832,712,11 7,343,793,926
Inventorics 8 2,870,829,069 3,812,532,673
Land held for sale and land development costs 9 485,985,811 503,672,474
Drue from related parties 20 10,373,356 2,747,994
Restricted deposits 10 70,406,743 95,419,646
Input value-added tax - net 603,608,784 448,838,093
Prepayments and other current assets 11 1,146,632,540 489,913,177
Total Current Assers 13,576,057,214 13,054,138,503
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment - net 12 10,688,608,904 8,628,490,469
Land held for future development 14 312,617,496 297942281
Tnvestment in an associate 13 2,250,000 2,250,000
Goodwill - ner 16 84,516,663 84,516,663
Other non-current assets 15 336,110,518 270,215,050
Toral Non-current Assets 11,424,103,581 9,285,414,463
TOTAL ASSETS P 25,000,160,795 P 22337552966
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
lnrerest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 P 8,479,025,750 P 8,207229484
Trade and other payables 18 3,734,569,995 1,570,427,327
IDue to related parties 26 17,204,725 64,101,243
Total Currenr Liabilities 12,230,800,470 9,841,818,054
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 5,363,617,647 5.544.509,333
Deferred ax liabilites - net 25 71,872,184 76,530,691
Other non-current liabilities 19 283,644,395 376,789,584
Toral Non-current Liabilitics b 5,719,134,226 5,997,829,608
Total Liabilities 17,949,934,696 15,839,647,662
EQUITY 27
Preferred stock 5,000,000 5,000,000
Common stock 1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232
Addidonal paid-in capital 3,367,916,774 3,367,916,774
Revaluation reserves 372,138,419 272,621,771
Other reserves ( 622,952,239) 622,952,239}
Retained earnings 2,499,345,913 2,046,541,766
7,050,226,099 6,497,905,304

Total Liquity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P 25,000,160,795

I 22,337,552,966

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



P-H-O-E-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amouats in Philippine Pesas)
Notes 2014 2013 2012
REVENUES
Sale of goods 26 P 34,100,287,928 P 43,139,691,819 P 34,080,171,520
Charter fees 2 392,681,626 205,235,733 201,813,941
Rent and storage income 30 100,583,267 79,208,785 113,295,479
Port revenues 2 84,647,031 65,206,403 54,385,910
lFuel service and uther revenues 2 56,184,644 62,643,613 135,885,455
34,734,384,496 43,551 980,354 34,585,552,305
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 20 31,404,503,935 40,248,166,084 31,961,749,413
Selling and administrative expenses 21 1,916,826,177 1,991,460,138 1,473,661,6006
33,321,330,112 42,239,626,222 33,435,411,019
OTHER CHARGES (INCOME) .
Finance costs 2 804,137,896 669,030,064 519,720,493
Finance income 22 { 3,394,843) { 8481,577)  ( 24,629,351}
QOthers { 6,642,368) ( 14,625113)  ( 16,133,556}
793,900,685 045,923 374 478,957,586
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 619,153,699 666,436,758 671,183,700
TAX EXPENSE 25 2,790,727 1,379,153 19,873,548
NET PROFIT 616,362,972 665,057,605 651,310,152
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Irems that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or [oss
Revaluanon of wankers 27 180,637,550 6,847,358 331,807,097
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit obligation 2 ( 31,217,783)  ( 3147,836) ( 13,366,797 )
Tax expense 235 { 29,334,251 ¢ 1,109,855 95,550,091)
Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax 120,085,546 2,589,667 222,950,209
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 736,448,518 1? 667 647,272 P 874,260,361
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 28 P 0.40 P 0.45 P (.48

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Seatemments.




P-H-0-E-N-I.X PETROLEUM PHILIPFINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Moles 2014 013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before ax P 619,153,699 P 666,436,758 P 571,183,700
Adjustmunts for
Interest expense 22 728,178,099 617,451,997 467,358,205
Depreciaton and amortzaton 21 660,281,915 528,460,077 405,815,569
Impaiement losses 22 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057
Tnteeest income 22 { 3,394,843 { 8,481,577 ) ( 10,567,992
Operaung profit before working capital changes 2,044,296,334 1,821,766,257 1,571,640,539
increase in trade and other receivables ( 528,995,729 ) { 3,804,750,049 ) { 725,368,304 )
Decrease {increase) in inventones 941,703,604 ( 123,772,997 { 1,556,132,271}
Decrease (mczease) in land held for sale and land
development costs 17,686,663 ( 1,641,915) ( 50,443,441 )
Dcerease (incrense) in rescncted deposits 25,012,903 { 12,725,617 ) { 13,657,192)
Increase in input value-added rax ( 154,770,691 ) ( 55,869,471) { 166,461,101 )
Inereasc m prepayments and other current assels { 656,719,363 ) ( 207,552,655 ) { 76,150,578 )
Lecrease in installment contract recervable “ - 9,002,788
Inerease {decrease) in trade and other payables 2,164,142,568 23,322,143 { 1,536,482,533 )
Cash penerated from {used in) operations 3,852,356,389 ( 2,361,224 304 ) ( 2,548,057,493 )
Cash paid fyr income taxes ( 610,696 ) { 1,635.260 ) ( 564,033 )
MNer Cash From (Used in) Operadng Activides 3,851,745,693 ( 2,162,859,564) { 2,548,621,126)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property and equipment 12 {  2473554358)  (  2,051908624) 1.401,621,187)
Increase in other non-cucrent assets ( 122,883,739 ) { 149,078,003 ) ( 184,693,102)
Incsease in Jand held for foture development { 14,675,215 ) ( 8,864,054 ) ( 17,096,393 )
Advanees to related parties 26 { 10,373,356 ) ( 17,362,078 ) ( 9,467,416}
Inrterest received 2,750,097 7,831,603 92,406,440
Collections from related parties 2 2,747,994 22,914,084 27,479,102
Proceeds frem disposal of pruperty and equipinent 949,543 1,634,386 2,734,603
Net Cash Used in Invesung Activities ( 2,615,039,234 ) ( 2,196,632,686 ) ( 1,572,657,053 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Pruceeds from additonal interest-bearing loans and burrowings 35,866,969,673 2%,837,925,969 20,255,892,079
Repaymests of intceest-bearing loans and borrowings ( 35,776,065,003 ) { 26,001,508,949 ) { 16,217,888,445 )
Interest paid ( 798,999,617)  ( 688,363,445 ( 545,207,465 )
Paymenis of eash dividends ks { 184,127,723 ( 161,105,942 ) ( 106,487,242 )
Increase (degrease) ny odhier non-currene liabilices { 99,338,981 ) 3,951,722 225,101,428
Repayments o related parties 26 { 46,956,518 ) ( 21,390,502 ) { 153,064,039
Proceeds from issuance of shaces of stock b1 - 1,508,192,980 -
Procceds from borrowings from wilated parties - 177,435,185
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activitics { 1,038,418,259 ) 4,478,201,833 3,635,781 501
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 198,288,200 ( 81,290,417 ) { 485,497,578
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 357,220,520 438,510,937 924,008,515
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR P 555,508,720 r 457,220,520 P 438,510,937

Supplemental [nformation on Non-eash Investing and Financing Activities:

1) Stock dividends declared and distributed by the Group amounted to ni in 2034, P329.7 million in 2013 and P244.9 million in 2012 (see Note 27.6).

2} On July 6, 2012, the Board of Ditectors of the Pacent Company approved the acquisition of 160% shares of stock of Chelsea Shipping Corp. (CSC) via
share-for-share swap. The agreed purehase priec amounted 1o 1'1,578.0 milion payable as 90% issuance of new cummen shares of the Parent Company and 3107
cash. Accurdingly, 171.3 million new common shares were issucd in faver of Udenna Management & Resuutces Corp., a related party under common control. The

acquisition of C8C is accounted for as business combinarien using pooling-of-interest method (sce Note 1.3 and 27.3).

3) Certain hawling end heavy cquipment with carrying amount of P19.5 mullinn, #23.7 million and P25.5 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecuvely,
are carried under finance leases (see Notes (2.5, 17.6 and 30.5),

4) The Group's tankers were revalued by an independent appraiser in each year from 2009, Revaluarion tesceves amounted to 4079 million, P286.6 milion
and P'294.2 million 25 of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, sespectively (sce Notey 12.2 and 27.5).

5} lnterest payments amounting to P70.7 milion, P71.4 million and 1°77.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were capitalized as part
of the cost of property and equipment (see Notes 12.3 and 17).

See Notes to Consolidatad Fipanciaf Starements,




P-H-O-E-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

11 Incorporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleun Phdippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the
Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41% owned by P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
(PPHI), a company organized in the Phdippines.

The Parent Company’s shates of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock EExchange (PSE).
The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of petroleumn products on wholesale and
retail basis and operating of gas stations, oil depots, stotage facilities and allied services. The
registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barro Pampanga, Davac City.

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHI’s ptimary purpose is to
provide management, investment and technical advice for cominercial, indusrral,
manufacturing and other kinds of en tetprises. PPHT's registered office is located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate parent is Udenna Corporation, which is primarily organized to purchase,
acquire, take over and manage all or any part of the rights, assets, business and property;
undertake and assume the ligbilities of any person, firm, association, pattnership, syndicate of
corporation; and to engage in the distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution
control devices, units and services, and all other pollution control related products and
emission test servicing, ‘The ultimate parent company’s registered office is located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 418 operating retail service stations, comprising of 141
setvice stations in Luzon, 56 in the Visayas and 221 in Mindanao and a total of 61 service
stations under constructon as of December 31, 2014
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1.2 Subsidiaries, Associate and their Operations

The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following cntities as of December 31
(the Parent Company and the subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group™):

2014 2013

P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI) 100% 100%
P-H-O-E-N-1-X Global

Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) 100% 100%
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial

Park Corp. (PPIPC) 100% 100%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) 100% 100%
Chelsea Shipping Corp. (CSC) 100% 100%
Bunkers Manila, Inc. (BMI)* 100% 100%
Michael, Inc. (MI)* 100% 100%
PNX — Chelsea Shipping Corp.

(PNX — Chelsea)~ 100% 100%
Chelsea Ship Management Matine

Services Corp. (CSMMSC)* 100% 100%
Fortis Tugs Corp. (FTC)* 100% 100%
Norse/Phil Marine Services Corp. (NPMSC)** 45% 45%

* Wholly owned subsidsaries of CSC
¥ Assoczate of CSC

All the subsidiaries were organized and incorporated in the Philippines.

PPMI is primarily engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running and supervising
the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such as
petroleum service statdons. PPMI was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on January 31, 2007,

PGMI was registered with the SEC on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture,
production and creation of all kinds of motort, and all other transportation lubricants, fAuids
and additives of all kinds and other petroleum products putposely for motor vehicles and
other transportation. PGM]I has temporarily ceased its operation since 2008,

PPIPC is engaged in real estate development. PPIPC was registered with the SEC on
March 7,1996. PPIPC is also registered with the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB) under Executive Order No. 648 and was granted to sell parcels of land on the
Group’s project, the Phoenix Petroleum Industrial Park (the Park).

SPTT was registered with the SEC on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and
selling, supply and distribution, mmportation and e€xportation, storage and delivery of all
types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation and automotive use. It does not carry
any inventory at any given time.

C5C was incotporated in the Philippines on July 17, 2006 and started commercial
operations on January 1, 2007 and is engaged in martime trade through conveying,
carrying, loading, transporting, discharging and storing of petroleum products, goods and
merchandise of every kind, over waterways in the Philippines,
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BMI was registered with the SEC on March 7, 2000 to serve the growing demand of marine
fuel (bupker) of foreign vessels calling on the ports of the Philippines. Aside from

PNX - Chelsea was incorporated on February 2, 2011 and is engaged in the ownership and
operation of vessels for domestic trade for the purpose of conveyance or carriage of
petroleum products, goods, wares and merchandise of every kind and description.

CSMMSC was incorporated on March 30,2012 to catry on the business of ship
management and to act as agent, broker, ship chandler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of managing,
Operating, supervising, administering and developing the operation of vessels.

FTC was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and started commercial operations on
November 8, 2013. It is engaged in the towage and salvage of marine vessels and other
crafts includj.ng their cargoes upon seas, lakes, rivers, canals, bays, harbours, and other
waterways between the various ports of the Philippines, and to acquire by purchase,
charter, lease or modes recognized by law of obtaining fitle to or use of such equipment
and properties, real or personal, which may be necessary to achieve such purpose.

NPMSC was incorporated on January 30, 2013 to engage in the business of providing
technical ship services and to act as agent, broker, ship handler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of operating,
supervising, administering and developing the operation of vessels belonging to or which
are or may be leased or operated by said shipping corporations and individuals, and to
equip any and all kinds of ships, barges and vessels of every class and description owned by
any shipping corporation. NPMSC started commercial operations on June 10, 2013,

PPMT’s registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City and its principal place of business is located ar Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Barto Pampanga, Davao City.

The registered office of PGMI, CSC, BM1, MI and PNX — Chelsea, which is also their
principal place of business, is located at Stella Fizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga,
Davao City.

PPIPC’s registered office is located ar 4 Floor, Phinma Plaza, 39 Plaza Drive, Rockwell
Center, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at 26® Floor, The Fort
Legend Tower, 3 Avenue corner 31 Street, The Fort Global City, Taguig City,

"The registered office of SPTT, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Units
113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal Highway, Subic Bay Freeport
Zone, Zambales.



The registered office of NPMSC, which is also its prmcipal place of business, is located at
2/F Harbot Centre 1] Bldg., Railroad and Delgado Sts., South Harbor, Port Area, Manila,

13 Acquisition of CSC

the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on July 6, 2012 and was subsequently
tatified by the Parent Company’s stockholders on September 6, 2012,

1.4 Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2014 {including the comparative consolidated financial statements for
December 31, 2013 and 2012) were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s BOD on
February 11, 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages.
‘These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(a)  Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

"The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board
of Accountancy (BOA).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of assets, habilities, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(6)  Presentation of Consolidated Financial Siatements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The (roup presents
all items of income and expenses 1n a single consolidated statement of comprehensive
Imcome.
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Functional and Lresesntation Cum*rzgy

These consolidated financial statements ate ptesented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute arnounts except
when otherwise indjcated,

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using its functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates.

Adoption of New and Amended PERS
Effective in 2014 that are Relevant 1o the Group

In 2014, the Group adopted for the first time the following amendments and
Interpretation to PEFRS that are relevant to the Group and effective for the
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2014

PAS 32 (Amendment) ¢ Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
PAS 36 (Amendment) ¢ Impairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets
PAS 39 (_Amendment) : Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement - Novation of
Detivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accoun ting
PFRS 10, 12 and PAS 27
(Amendments) : Consolidated Financial Statements,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, Separate Financial
Statements — Exemption from
Consolidation for Investment Entities
Philippine Interpretation
Internadonal Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 21 © Levies

Discussed in the succeeding pages are the relevant informaton about these amended
standards and interpretation.
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PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendment provides guidance to address
Inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. 1t clarifies that an entity must cutrently have a right of set-
off that is not contingent on a future event, and must be legally enforceable in
the normal course of business; in the event of default; and, in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties. The
amendment also clarifies that gross settlement mechanisms (such as through a
clearing house) with features that both climinate credit and Liquidity risks and
process receivables and payables in a single settlement process, will satisfy the
crterion for net settlement. The amendment has been applied retrospectively
in accordance with its transitional provisions. The Group’s existing offsetting
and settlement atrangements for its financial instruments with its
counterparties are not affected by the amendment; hence, such did not have an
impact on the presentation of financial assets and financial liabilides on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for any periods presented,

PAS 36 (Amendment), Impacrment of Assets — Recovsrable Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets. The amendment clarifies that disclosute of information
about the recoverable amount of individual asset (including goodwill) or a
cash-generating unit is required only when an Impairment loss has been
recognized or reversed during the reporting period. 1f the recoverable amount
is determined based on the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost
of disposal, additional disclosures on fair value measurement required under
PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement, such as but not limited to the fair value
hierarchy, valuation technique used and key assumptions applied should be
provided in the consolidated financial statements. This amendment did not
result in additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements since
the Group did not recognize or reverse impatrment losses on its non-financial
assets during the year.

PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement —
Novation of Derivatives and Continpation of Hedpe Aecounting. The amendment
provides some relief from the requirements on hedge accoun ting by allowing
entities to continue the use of hedge accounting when a derivative is novated
to a clearing counterparty resulting in termination or expiration of the original
hedging instrument as a consequence of laws and regulations, or the
introduction thereof. As the Group neither enters into transactions involving
derivative instrumnents nor does it applies hedge accounting, the amendment
did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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(v)  PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27 (Amendments), Consolidatsd Financial Statements,

Disclosures of Interests in Other B nizies, Separate Financial S tatements — Exemption from
Consolidation for Investment E ntities. The amendments define the term
“Investment entity” and provide to such an investment entity an exemption
from the consolidation of particular subsidiatics and instead require to measure
Investment in each cligible subsidiaty at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with PAS 39, Financal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, both in its consolidated Ot separate financial
statements, as the case maybe. The amendments also require additional
disclosures about the details of the entity’s unconsolidated subsidiazies and the
nature of its relationship and certain transactions with those subsidiares. This
amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements as the Group does not have investment entities.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Lewtes. This interpretation clarifies that the
obligating event as one of the criteria under PAS 37, Proisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, for the recognition of a liability for levy imposed
by a government is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers
the payment of the levy. Accordingly, the liability is recognized in the
consolidated financial statements progtessively if the obligating event occurs
over a period of time and if an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum
threshold, the lLiability is recognized when that minimum threshold js reached.
This amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial staternents.

(6) Effective Subsequent to 2014 bu not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
cffective for annual periods subsequent to 2014 which are adopted by the FRSC,
subject to the approval of the BOA. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions, and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

@

PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefuts — Defined Benefet Plans — Employee
Contributions (effective from July 1, 2014). The amendment clatifies that if the
amount of the contributions from employees or third parties is dependent on the
number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the contributions to periods
of service using the same attribution method (e, either using the plan’s
contribution formula ot on a straight-line basis) for the gross benefit.
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PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial S tutements — Disclosure Instiative
(effectve from January 1, 2016}. The amendment encourages enfities to apply
professional judgment in presenting and disclosing informaton in the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, it clarifies that materiality
applies to the whole consolidated financial statements and an entity shall not
reduce the understandability of the consolidated financial statements by
obscuring material information with immateria) information or by aggregating
material items that have different natures or functions. Moreover, the
amendment clarifies that an entity’s share of other comprehensive income of
assoclates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method should be
presented based on whether or not such other comprehensive income item will
subsequenty be reclassified to profit or loss. It further clarifies that in
determining the order of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity shall
consider the unders tandability and comparability of the consolidated financial
statements.

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment — Clarification of Acosprable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
tevenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is not
appropriate for property, plant and equipment. The amendment also provides
guidance that the expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that
was produced using the asset could indicate an expectation of technological or
commercial obsolescence of 2n asset, which may reflect a reduction of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

PAS 28 (Amendment), Tnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Investment
Entities — Applying the Consolidation Excgption (effective from January 1, 2016). This
amendment addresses the concerns that have arisen in the context of applying
the consolidation exception for investment entities, This amendment permits a
non-investment entity investor, when applying the equity method of accounting
for an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, to retain the fair
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate of joint venture to
its interests in subsidiaries.

PERS 10 (Amendment), Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28
(Amendment), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution af
Adsets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture (effective from
January 1, 2016). The amendment to PFRS 10 requires full recognition in the
investor’s financial statements of gains or losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Businers
Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the partial recognition of gains or losses (Le., to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale of
contribution of assets that do not constitute 2 business. Corresponding
amendment has been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition,
PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining whether assets that
are sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether the
sale or conttibution of those assets is part of multiple arrangements that should
be accounted for as a single transacrion.
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(vi) PFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (cffective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on financial instruments will eventually replace PAS 39 and PFRS 9
(2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). "This standard contains, among others, the
following:

s three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial mstruments;

¢ an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financia) assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which
generally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a financial asset; and,

* anew mode) on hedge accounting that provides significant improvements
prncipally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial
and non-ftnancial risk exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9 (2014),
a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the princtpal outstanding. Moteover, a financial asset is
classified and subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI criterion and is held in a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets are measured at
FVTPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is not
held for trading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they are closcly related, and, in most arrangements, does not require separation
from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
mnclude amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation
of embedded derivatives. The amendment also tequires changes in the fair
value of an entity’s own debit instruments caused by changes in its own credit
quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in profit
or loss.

"The Group does not expect to implement and adopt any version of PFRS 9 untl
its effective date. In addition, management is currently assessing the impact of
PFRS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and it will
conduct a comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standard prior to
its mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.
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FERS 12 (Amendment), Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities — Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception (effectuve from January 1, 2016). The
amendment clanfies that an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaties at
fair value should provide the disclosures required by PFRS 12.

Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS

(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) effective for annual periods
beginning on or after [uly 1, 2014, and to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle) effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, made minor amendments
to a number of PFRS. Among those improvements, the following amendments
are relevant to the Group but management does not expect those to have a
materfal impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 Cyele)

(a) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment. The amendment
clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with a
revaluaton of the carrying amount of the asset.

(6) PAS 24 (Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. The amendment clarifies
that an entity providing key management services to a reporting entity 1s
deemed to be a related party of the latter. It ulso requires and clarifies that
the information required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that are provided by a separate management
entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees or directors.

(¢) PFRS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. The amendment clarifies that
an obligation to pay contngent consideration which meets the definition of
a financial instrument is classified as a financial hability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32, It also clarifies that all non-equity contingent
consideration should be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
petiod, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

(d) PEFRS 8 (Amendment), Operaling Segments. The amendment requires
disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments. ‘This includes a description of
the segments which have been aggregated and the economic indicators
which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share
similat economic characteristics. It further clarifies the requirement to
disclose for the reconciltatons of segment assets to the entity’s assets if that
amount is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.
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(¢) PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurement. The amendment, through a
revision only in the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13, clarifies that issuing
PFRS 13 and amending certain provisions of PFRS 9 and PAS 39 related o
discounting of financial instruments, did not remove the ability to measure
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate on an
undiscounted basis, when the effect of not discounting is immaterial.

Annual Improvements to PERS (2017-2073 Cyele)

() PFRS 3 (Amendment), Busiress Combinations. The amendment clarifies that
PERS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formaton of any joint
arrangement under PFRS 11, Join? Arrangement, in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself,

(5) PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair Value Measurement. The amendment clarifies
that the scope of the exception for measuting the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial labilities on a net basis (the portfolio
exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of and accounted for
in accordance with PAS 39 or PERS 9, regardless of whether they meet
the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in
PAS 32,

(¢}  PAS 40 (Amendment), [nsestment Property. The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 in determining the classificaton
of property as an investment property or owner-occupled propetty, and
explicitly requires an endty to use judgment in determining whether the
acquisition of an investment property is an acquisition of an asset or a
group of asset in accordance with PAS 40, or a business combination in
accordance with PERS 3.

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2074 Cycle}

(@) PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instraments — Disclosures. The amendment
provides additional guidance to help entities identify the circumstances
under which a contract to “service” financial assets is considered to be a
continuing involvement in those assets for the purposes of applying the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such citcumstances commonly arise
when, for example, the servicing is dependent on the amount or timing of
cash flows collected from the transferred asset or when a fixed fee is not
paid in full due to non-performance of that asset.

() PAS19 (Amendment), Employee Benefirs. The amendment clarifies that the
currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were used to
determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations shall
be made consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
post-employment benefit obligations.



2.3 Basis of Consolidation

"The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries (see Note 1) after the elitnination of intercompany
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities under the Group, are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are
recognized In assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate
impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaties and an associate as
follows:

(@)  Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Parent
Company has control. The Parent Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the en tity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date the Parent Company obtains control.

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control indicated above, Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Parent Company, if any. The
consideration transferred also includes the fair value of afly asset of liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-zelated costs are expensed
as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of condngent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and Jiabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially ar their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
propottionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifable net assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of anly existing equity
interest in the acquiree over the acquisition-date fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill (see Note 16). If the
consideration received is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain
in profit or loss {see Note 2.13).

On the other hand, business combinations ansing from transfers or acquisition of
interests in entities that are under the common control of the shareholder that controls
the Group are normally accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method and
reflected in the consolidated financial statements as if the business combination had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, or if later, at the
date that common control was established; for this purpose, comparatives are restated.
The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements at the carrying amounts previously recognized. The difference between the
consideration transferred and the net assets of the subsidiary acquired is recognized as
Other Reserves as part of the equity (see Notes 2.13 and 2.24).

Invesiment in an Associate

Associates are those entities over which the Parent Company is able to exert
significant influence but which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in 2 joint venture.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted
for using the equity method.

Acquired investment in associate is subject to the putchase method. The purchase
method involves the recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilites,
including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded in the
financial statements prior to acquisiton. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisiion cost over the fair value of the Parent Company's shate of the identfiable
net assets of the acquitee at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or fair value
adjustment attributable to the Parent Company's share in the associate is included in
the amount recognized as investment in an associate.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.17).

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or items
recognized directly in the associate’s equity are recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as applicable. However, when the Parent Company’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Parent Company does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently reports profits, the investor resumes recognizing its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulated share
of losses that has previously not been recognized.
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Distrbutions received from the assoclates ate accounted forasa reducton of the
carrying value of the investment.

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiaries and in an assoclate as presented
in Notes 1.2 and 13.

24 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a patty to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets are classified 1nto the following categoties:
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity invesuments and
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by
management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments

were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVIPL are initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initally
recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Cutrently, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non.-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
imoney, goods o1 services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturites greater than 12 months
after the end of each reporting period which are classified as non-cutrent assets.

The Group’s financial assets categotized as loans and receivables are presented as Cash and
Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Restricted
Deposits, and Refundable Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position). Cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, savings and demand deposits and short-term, highly iquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. lnterest on the rental
deposits arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest
method and is presented as patt of Finance lncome under Other Charges (Income) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease
payments (presented as patt of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Meanwhile, rent expense atising from subsequent amorfizaton of
deferred minimum lease payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the
lease term and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss 15 provided when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s oxiginal effective interest rate ot current effective interest
cate determined under the contract if the loan has a variable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurting after the impaixment was recognized

(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized
impairment loss s reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal
is recognized in profit or loss.

Non-compounding interest 1nd other cash flows tesulting from holding fnancial assets are
tecognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related carrying amount of
financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are dcrecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expite, Ot when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another patty. 1f the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantally all the dsks and rewatds of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 1f the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownetship of a transferred financial asset, the Group contnues to
recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

2.5 Inventories

Inventories ate valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the moving average method. The cost of inventories include all costs directly
attributable to acquisitions, such as the putchase price, Impott duties and other taxes that
are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorites.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the otdinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to malke the sale.

26 Land Held for Sale and Land Development Costs

Land held for sale and land development costs ate valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Land held for sale and land development costs includes the cost of land
and actual development costs incurred as at the end of reporting period. Interest incurred
during the development of the project is capitalized (see Note 2.19).
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.7 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as
a result of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it
is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost

or value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.

2.8 Land Held For Future Development

Land held for future development is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of land held for future development includes purchase price and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of land.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9 Property and Equipment

T.and is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Tankers are measured at revalued
amount less accurnulated depreciation. All other property and equipment are carried at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in
value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to wotking condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for tepairs and maintenance
are charged to expense as incurred, except for periodic drydocking costs petrformed at least
every two years on the vessel, which ate capitalized (see Note 2.10).

Following initial recognition, tankers are carried at revalued amounts which are the fair
values at the date of revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Revalued amounts represent fair values determined based on appraisals by external
professional valuer once every two years unless more frequently if market factors indicate
material change in fair value (see Note 5.4).
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Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the
Revaluation Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
revaluation deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus in the same asset is charged to other
comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this
asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. Annually, an amount
from the Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings for the depreciaton
relating to the revaluadon surplus. Upon disposal of the revalued assets, amounts included
in Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings.

Depreciation 1s computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Tankers 30 years
Buildings, depot and pier facilities 5-25 yeats
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Vessel equipment 5 yeats
Hauling and heavy equipment 1-5 years
Gasoline station equipment 1-5 years
Office furniture and equipment 1-3 years

Leaschold and land improvements are amottized over the terms of the related leases or the
useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shortet.

Hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease agreements (see Note 2.15) are
depreciated over their expected useful lives (determined by reference to comparable owned
assets) or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and on-going major
repair works and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing
costs (see Note 2.19) and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated undl such time
that the assets are completed and available for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.17).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reportting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the item) is included in profit ot loss in
the year the item is derecognized.



-18-
2.10 Drydocking Costs

Drydocking costs are considered major repairs that preserve the life of the vessel. As an
industry practice, costs associated with drydocking are amortized over two yeats ot until the
next drydocking occurs, whichever comes earlier. When significant drydocking
expenditures occur prior to their expiry, any remaining unamortized balance of the
preceding drydocking costs is expensed in the month of the subsequent drydocking.

Amortization of drydocking costs starts only when the process has been completed and the
related vessel is ready for use.

The carrying amount of drydocking costs, presented as part of the Other Non-current Asset
account in the consolidated statement of financial positon, is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see Note 2.17).

The carrying amount of drydocking costs is derecognized upon derecognition of the related
tanker, The computed gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the tanker takes mto
consideration the carrying amount of drydocking costs and is included in profit or loss
the year the related tanker is derecognized (see Note 2.9).

2.11 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security deposits
(presented under Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position), are recognized when the Group becomes a patty to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related chatges incurred on financial Liability ate recognized as an
expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Interest charges that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of fime to get ready for its
intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset (see Note 2.19). All
other interest related charges are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under the caption Finance Costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ate raised for support of long-term funding of
opetations. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and
direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effectve interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that these ate
not settled in the petiod in which they arise.

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Botrowings) are recognized at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased propetty

ot, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of the lease
(see Notes 2.15 and 30.5).



_19-

Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security
deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using effective interest method for maturiies beyond one year, less settlement
payments.

Securtity deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the security deposits
arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method
and 1s presented as part of Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as unearned rent (presented as part
of Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Meanwhile, the rent income arising from subsequent amortization of unearned rent is
accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as part of
Rent and Storage Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Dividend distdbutions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Parent Company.

Financial liabilities are classified as current Liabilities if payment is due to be settled within
one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-cutrent liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelthood that an outflow will be required in settlement
1s determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of
money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a
pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the dsks specific to the obligation. The
increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
esttmate.
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In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, ate not recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision,

2.13 Business Combinations

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and
pooling-of-interest method.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and cartied at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed
(see Note 2.17).

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquited over acquisition cost is chatged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to it.

1f the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisiton-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that 1s deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equty.

Under the pooling-of-interest method, similar accounts of the entities are combined on a
line-by-line basis except for the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares
issued by the new entity in which the difference between the net assets received and the
amount of the consideration (shares issued and cash) is accounted for as Other Reserves.
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2 14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT), rebates and trade discounts.

Revenue is tecognized to the extent that the tevenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incutred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. ln addition, the following specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recognized:

(a) Sale of goods — Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyet, i.e. generally when the customer has acknowledged
delivery of goods or when the customet has taken undisputed delivery of goods.

(b) Charter fees - Revenue, which consists mainly of charter income arsing from the chatter
hire of tankers, is recognized based on the type of charter arrangement entered into,
either under a time charter (1C), a contnuing voyage charter (CVC), ot a bareboat
agreement (BB) [see Note 3.1(7)]. Undera TC and BB, revenue is recognized based on
the terms of the contract, with the distinction that in a BB, no administration or technical
maintenance is included as part of the agreement. Under a CVC, revenue is recognized
upon completion of the voyage; however, approptiate accrual of revenue is made at the
end of the reporting period.

(c)  Fuel service and other revenses, port revensies and storage income — Revenue is tecognized when the
performance of contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rendered. This account
includes franchise income, which has minimal amount. In addition, this includes revenue
atising from pott and cargo handiing services.

(d) Rent income — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(see Note 2.15).

(e) Interest income - Revenue 1 recognized as the intetest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses ate recognized in the profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services
or at the date they ate incurred. All finance costs ate reported in profit or loss on an accrual
hasis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the
related qualifying asset (see Note 2.19).

The cost of real estate sold, if any, befote the completion of the development is determined
based on the actual costs incurred to date which include the cost of land plus estimated
costs to complete the project development. The estimated expenditures for the
development of sold real estate, as determined by project engineers, are charged to Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding credit ro accrued expenses presented under the Trade and Other Payables
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. Effects of any revisions in the
total project cost estimates are recognized in the year in which the changes become known.
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2.15 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(a) Group as Lessee

Leases which eransfer to the Group substantially all risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets
and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease ot, if lower, at the present
value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are appottioned between the
finance costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance costs are tecognized in profit or Joss. Capitalized leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Finance lease obligations, net of finance charges, are inchuded in Interest-bearing Loans
and Borrowings account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substan Hally all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the consolidated
statemnent of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incutred.

(b) Group as Lessor

Leases wherein the Group substantially transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the lease.
Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investrent outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

I cases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating

leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or containg a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
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2.16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign cutrency
transactions dutng the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
which approximate those ptevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resultng from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

2.17 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property and equipment, investment in an assoclate, drydocking costs
(presented as part of Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position), goodwill and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill that is tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to
operating segtnent.

impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s catrying amount exceeds its tecoverable amounts which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
suitable interest rate in ordet to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures ate direcdy linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount
factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific tisk factors.

Except for goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impalrment loss, except
impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.13), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating
unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount.
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2.18 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit
plan and a defined contdbution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as
follows:

(a) Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefir plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one ot more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for
any benefits from this kind of post-cmployment plan remains with the Group, even if
plan assets, if any, for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if
any, may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s post-employment benefit pension plan covers
all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, noncontrbutory and
administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is detcrmined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate derived from the interest rates of a
zero coupon government bond as published by Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Corporation, that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-
employment liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comptehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net intetest is reported as part of Finance Costs or Finance
Income account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment.
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Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is 2 post-employment plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The
contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they
fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a
short-term nature.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retitement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier
of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based
on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision where it is
contractually obliged to pay the benefits, or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Compensaled Absences

Compensated absences ate recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are
included in Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result
of the unused enttlement.

2.19 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures
for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when
substantially all such activites ate complete.
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

220 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal perods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilinies are recognized as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reportng purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the cartyforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avuilable against which the deductible temporary differences can be ualized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that ase expected to apply 1n
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted ot substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting petiod
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be udlized.

The measurernent of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
‘would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of
measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for land held for sale and land
development costs, the cartying amount of such properties is presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale
and development costs are held within the business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as 2 component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items tecognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against curtent tax liabilities and the defetred
taxes trelate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.21 Offsetting Fipancial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilides are offset and the tesulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the end of the
teporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must also be enforceable in
the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
financial instruments.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfer of resoutces, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group;
(b} associates; (c} individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of
the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.23 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s BOD and management committee responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products
and service lines as disclosed in Note 29 which represent the main products and services
provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
Allinter-segment transfers are carried out at arm's length prices.

‘The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment
benefit expenses ate not included in atriving at the operating profit of the operating

segments.
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In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

There have been no changes from prior petiods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.24 Equuty
Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits,

Revaluation reserves comprise of gains and losses arising from the revaluation of the
Group’s tankers and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligation, net of applicable taxes.

Other reserves pertain to the difference between the Patent Company’s cost of investment
and the acquired net assets of CSC accounted for under the pooling-of-interest method
(sce Notes 2.3 and 2.13),

Retained eamings include all current and pror period results of operations as reported in
the profit or loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, reduced
by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.25 Barnings per Share

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares, if any.

2.26 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when
material to the consolidated financial statements,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make Judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates,

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial staternents:

(@) Distinguishing Operating and Finance | eases

"The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessor or a lessee, as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
1isks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure
to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of
assets and liabilities. Certain hauling and heavy equipment are accounted for under
finance lease.

(6)  Recognition of Provisions and Contingencier

Judgment is exercised by management to distingu_ish between provisions and
conlingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies arc discussed
in Note 2.12 and disclosures on relevant contingencies are presented in Note 30.

(c)  Qualifing Assets on Borrowing Coszs

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantia) period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will
depend on the circumstances and requires the use of judgment in each case. In
making judgment, the management takes into account its intention when it determines
whether the asset is a qualifying asset and considers the facts and circutnstances and
uses its judgment to determine whether an asset takes a substantal period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Based on the facts and circumstances affecting
the Group’s qualifying asset, the management concludes that the Group’s retail station,
depot facilities, tankers and land held for sale and development costs are qualifying
assets as the management assesses that it takes substantial period of time for the
completion of those assets.
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(d)  Revenue Recognition for Charter Fee Arrangerments

In determining the appropriate method to use in recognizing the Group’s revenue
from TC, CVC and BB, management considers the following criteria: (1} whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 4 spectfic vessel; and,

(2) whether the artangement conveys a right to use the vessel. Management
determined that if both criteria are met, the revenue should be recognized using the
straight-line method over the term of the contract (see Note 2.14). Otherwise,
revenue will be recognized based on contract terms when substantial agreed tasks have
been rendered.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

reporting period:
(@) Impairment of Trads and Otper Recetvables and Due from Related Parties

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and group of
accounts, where objective evidence of impaitment exists, The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relationship with the customers, the customers’ current credit status,
average age of accounts, collection experence and historical loss expertence. The
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
tregulatly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7. The carrying value of due
from related parties is shown in Note 26.4. The Group has determined that no
impairment loss on Due from Related Parties account should be recognmized in 2014,
2013 and 2012,

(6} Determining Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, management takes into account
the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. Future
realization of the catrying amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, 1s affected by
price changes and acton from the competitors. Both aspects are considered key

sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s
inventories within the next financial reporting period.
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Detemz'm'ﬂg Net Rea/izab/e [ alne of Land Held for Sale and Land Development Costs and Land
Held for Future Development

In determining the net realizable value of land held for sale and land development costs
and land held for future development, management takes into account the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimates are made. Future realization of the carrying
amounts of land held for sale and development costs and land held for future
development is affected by price changes and demand from the target market segmments.
Both aspects are considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause
significant adjustments within the next financial reporting period.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Drydocking Costs

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs
based on the petiod over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs ate reviewed
periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
phystcal weat and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the assets.

"The carrying amounts of property and equipment and drydocking costs are analyzed in
Notes 12 and 15, respectively. Based on management’s assessment as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, there is no change in the estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment and drydocking costs during those years. Actual results,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentoned above.

Fair VValne Measurement of Tankers

The Group’s tankers, presented as part of the Property and Equipment account, are
carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period. In determining the fair
values of these assets, the Group engages the services of professional and independent
appraisers applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.4.

For tankers with appraisals conducted prior to the end of the current reporting period,
management determines whether there are significant circumstances during the
intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the disclosure of fair
value of the Group’s tankers.

A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets.
The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on the Group’s tankers are
disclosed in Note 12.
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Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tasc Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each teporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is disclosed in Note 25.

Estimating Liability for Land Development

Obligations to complete development of real estate are based on actual costs and
project estimates of the Group’s contractors and technical personnel. These costs are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectadons differ from previous
estimates. Liability to complete the project for sold units included in the determination
of cost of sales amounting to P0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, are
presented as part of accrued expenses under Trade and Other Payables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18).

Vaiuation of Post-cmployment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuartes in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 23 and include,
among others, discount rates and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation
in such future periods.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the esdmated present value of retirement benefit obligation are
presented in Note 23.2.

Estimating Development Costs

The accounting for real estate requires the use of estimates in determiming costs and
gross profit recognition. Cost of real estate sold {(under Cost of Sales and Services in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income) includes estimated costs for
future development. The development cost of the project is estimated by the Group’s
contractors and technical personnel. Many factors influence 2 project development
cost estimate, which include among others, the geographic location of the project,
quantity of materials and item availability, general soil conditions and scheduling of
tesources including labor and equipment. At the end of reporting period, these
estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions, when necessary.
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G)  Impairment of Non-Financial Assels

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
or a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate
to discount such. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of 2 suitable discount rate (see Note 2.17). Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values
reflected in the consolidated financial statements are approptiate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptons may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impaixment loss could have a matetial adverse

effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment losses are quui_ted to be recognized on
the Group’s non-financial assets in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

(k) Business Combinations

On inidal recogniton, the assets and Liabiliies of the acquired business and the
consideration paid for them are included in the consolidated financial statements at
their fair values. In measuring fair value, management uses estimates of future cash
fows and discount rates. Any subsequent change in these estimates would affect the
amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurement petiod adjustment. Any
other change would be recognized in profit ot loss in the subsequent petiod.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

‘The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments.
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The
main types of risks are market risk, credit tisk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s fisk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s
shott to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposute to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group 1s exposed to
are described in the succeeding pages.
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4.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its
operating, investing and financing activities.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s sales to a certain
customer and, fuel and tanker importations, which are primarily dencminated in U.S.
dollars (US$). The liabtlity covering the fuel importation is covered by letter of credits
which is subsequently closed to Philippine pesc trusts receipts (TRs). Further, the Group
has several U.S. dollar loans from certain banks which were used to finance its capital
expenditures (see Note 17). The Group also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

To mitgate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency rish, non-Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into
Philippine pesos at the closing rate follow:

2014 2013
Financial assets P4,383,654,349 P 1,174,762 469
Financial liabilities (_2,988,051,570) {_1.465.688.449)
Net exposure P1,395,602,779 (P 290,925.980)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect
to changes in Philippine peso against U.S dollar exchange rates. The percentage changes in
rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence level.

2014 2013
Reasonably possible change in rate 27.8% 23.4%
Effect in profit before tax P 387,977,573 (P> 68,076,679)
Effect in equity after tax 271,584,301 ( 47,653,675)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
foreign currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered
to be representative of the Group’s currency risk.

(b) Inierest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposutes on long-term
financing. Long term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, which are subject to variable
interest rates (see Notes 6 and 17). All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed rates.
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Cash in banks are tested on a reasonably possible change of +/-0.96% and +/-1.10% in
2014 and 2013, tespectively. Banks loans subject to vatiable interest rates arc tested on 2
reasonably possible change of +/-0.68% and +/-1.67% for Philippine peso and

+/-0.31% and +/-0.69% for U.S. dollat in 2014 and 2013, respectively. These percentages
have been determined based on the average market volatility of interest rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months estimated at 99% level of confidence. The
sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at the end of the each

reporting petiod, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other variables
are held constant.

The changes in percentages would affect profit ot loss before tax by +/-P68.2 million and
+ /- P85.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(c) Other Price Risk

The Group’s market price rsk arises from its putchases of fuels. 1t manages its risk arising
from changes in market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of
fuels and to some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the
fluctuation of the fuel price.

4.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the tisk that a counterparty may fail to dischatge an obligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various fAnancial instruments arising from granting of
loans and selling goods and services to customers including telated parties; and placing
deposits with banks.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
identified eithet individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit

risk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterpatties. In

addition, for a significant proporton of sales, advance payments ate received to mitigate
credit risk.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposute of financial assets is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position of in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as
summatized below.

Notes 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 555,508,720 P 357,220,520
Trade and other receivables — net* 7 3,789,225,134 6,402,695,635
Due from telated parties 26.4 10,373,356 2,747,994
Restricted deposits 10, 15 71,670,538 06,683,441
Refundable rental deposits 15 172,226,696 180951286

P 4,509,004,444 DP7.040,298.870

Kosccluding advances to SUpplers and advances subject to liguidation

The Group’s management considers that all the above fnancial assets that are not impaired
or past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality.
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None of the financial assets ate secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, except
for cash and cash equivalents as described below.

(a) Cash and Cash Eguivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the
cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which ate insured
by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to 2 maximum coverage of

PO.5 million for every depositor per banking institution.

(6) Trads and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterpatty ot any group of counterpatties having similar
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in varjous
industties and geographical areas. Based on historcal information about customer default
rates, management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or

impai:red to be good.

The Group has a Credit Committee which approves credit lines given to its customers.

The Group’s Credit and Collection Department, which regulatly reports to the Credit
Committee, continuously monitors customers’ performance and other counterparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit
risk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/ ot reports on
customers and other counterpartes ate obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with creditworthy counterparties.

Some of the unimpaited trade and other receivables are past due at the end of the reporting
date. The age of financial assets past due but not impaired is as follows:

2014 2013

Not more than one month P 205,924,748 P 182,306,369
More than one month

but not more than two months 152,505,688 149,532,251
More than two months but

not mote than six months 87,978,949 120,856,868
Mote than six months but not

mote than one year 74,091,227 69,157,737
More than one yeat 80,449,908 45598,603

P_606950,520 DP_ 567451828

In respect of due from related parties, the Group has assessed that these advances are
collectible and the credit risk exposure is considered to be low.

4.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in 2 day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of 2 rolling 30-day projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-yeat period are identified monthly.
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The (Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirernents for up to
60-day periods. FExcess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity
needs is additdonally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to sell long-term financial assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group'’s financial liabilides have contractual maturities which
are summarized as follows:

Current Non-currenit
Within 6to 12 1to5
6 months months years

Interest-bearing loans

and botrowings P 7.011,246,094 D 1,692,894,035 P 6,116,547,965
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 3,193,805,959 517,524,441 -

Due to related parties 17,204,725 - -
Securty deposits - - 158,325,351
P10,222,256,778 E 2,210,418.476 P 6,274,873,316

This compares to the matutity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2013 as presented below.

Current MNon-current
Within Gtol12 1tol
6 months months Vears

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowlings P 6,050,573,611 P 2,726,331,756 P 6,007,722,903
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 818,142,220 451,750,258 -
Duec to related parties 33,991,925 30,169,318 -
Security deposits - - 275,962,723
> 6,902,707,750 P_3208251,332 P 62

The contractual maturities of the financial Liabilities reflect the gross cash flows, which may
differ from the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reportmg periods.
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CATEGORIES, OFFSETTING AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The cartying amounts and fair values of the categories of assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of financial position are
presented below. :

2014 2013
Notes Cattying Values Fair Values Carrving Values Fair Values
Financial Assets
Loans and recetvables:
Cash and cash equivalents G P 555,508,720 P 555,508,720 357,220,520 P 357,220,520
Trade and other receivables-net* 7 3,789,225,134 ) 3,789,225,134 6,402,695 ,635 6,402 695,635
Due from related parties 26.4 10,373,356 10,373,356 2,747 994 2,747,994
Restricted deposits 10,15 71,670,538 71,670,538 96,683,441 96,683,441
Refundable rental deposits 15 172,226,696 172,226,696 180.951,286 180,951,286
P 4,599.004444 P 4,599,004,444 7040298876 P 7040298 876
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 P 13,842,643,397 P 13,842,643,397 13,751,738817 P 13,751,738,817
Trade and other payables™* 18 3,711,336,400 3,711,330,400 1,269,892.478 1,269,892,478
Due to related parties 26.4 17,204,725 17,204,725 64,161,243 64,161,243
Security deposits 19 158,325,351 158,325,351 275962723 275962723
15,301.755261 P 15,301.755,261

*Excelndes tax-related payables

P 17,729,503873 P __ 17,729,503,873

*Exciudes advances subject o suppliers and advances subject to liguidation
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.11 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments mncluding the determination of fair values. A description of the
Group’s risk management objectives and policies for financial instruments is provided
in Naote 4.

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilides
and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recutring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PERS, are categorized
into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(a)  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilides
that an entity can access at the measurement date;

(b)  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and,

() Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair valuc measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an cxchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices tepresent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

5.3 Fair Value Hierarchy of Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which
Fair Value is Disclosed

The table below and in the next page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
financial assets and financial labilities which are not measuted at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

2014
Mores Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assers
Loans and rarabbs
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 555,508,720 P - P - P 555,508,720
Trade and other receivables - net 7 - - 3,78Y,225,134  3,789,225,134
Due from refated parbes 204 - - 10,373,356 10,373,356
Resuicted deposits 10,15 71,670,538 - - 71,670,538
Refundable rental deposits 15 - - 172226 690 172,226,696

P 627079258 P - _  P3.971.825186 P4,599,004,444



Dotes
Financial Liabilities
Financial liakilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 17
Trade and other payabies 18
Due to related parties 26.4
Seeunty deposits 19
Notes
Financial Assets
Laoany and receivabies:
Cash and cash equivalents 6
Trade and other receivables - net 7
Due from felated parties 26.4
Restricted deposis 10, 15
Refundable rental deposits 15
Financial Liabilities

Frnancial labilities at amortiged it

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings 17
Trade and other payables 18
Lue to related parties 26.4
Security depusits 19
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2014

_ Levell

Level 2

Level 3

Tatal

P P P 13,842,643,397 P 12,842,643,397
3711330400 3,711,330.460
17,204,725 17,204,725
158329 351 1538,325.351
g D B . B17,229503,873 P 17,729,303,873
2013
Leve Level 2 Level 3 Tokal
P 357220520 P P P 357,220,520
; . 6,402,695,635  6,402,695,635
. . 2,747,004 2,747,994
96,543 441 96,683,441
- 180,951,286 180,951,286
453003961 p 6580994915 P1040.298,876

e .

P 13,751,738,817
1,269,892,478
64,161,243
275,962.723

P 15,361,755,261

P 13,751,738,817
1,269,892,478
64,161,243

275562723

L 15,361,745 261
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For financial asset with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates its fair value.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial habilities included in Level 3 in the
preceding page, which are not traded in an active market is determined by using generally
acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantally the same after taking into account the
related credit tisk of counterparties, or is caleulated based on the expected cash flows of the
underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on en tity specific estimates. Since not all
significant inputs required to determine the fair value of the other instruments not included
in Level 1 are observable, these are included in Level 3.

5.4 Fair Value Measurcments fpr Non-financial Assets
a) Determining Fair Value of Tankers

The fair values of the Group’s tankers, included as part of the Property and Equipment
account, were determined based on the appraisal reports of a professional and independent
appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent expedence in the valuation of similar
propertes. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs
such as the size, age, and condition of the tanker.

In estimating the fair value of these tankers, management takes into account the market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group’s non-financial
assets indicated above is their current use.

The Level 3 fair value of tankers was determined using the cost approach that reflects the
cost to a market participant to construct an asset of comparable usage, construction
standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant inputs used
in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not Limited to,
labor and contractor’s profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs,
electricity and utility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees.
These inputs were detived from vatious suppliers and contractor’s quotes, price catalogues,
and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated costs used in the
valuation will result in higher fair value of the propertes.

&) Other Fair Value Information

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of tankets included in Level 3 is presented in
Note 12.2.

There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Group during the year
for its non-financial assets. Also, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
hierarchy in 2014 and 2013,
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5.5 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The following financial assets with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of

financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements:

December 31, 2014 I
Gross amounts fecognized in the  Netamount  Related amounts not set off in the
consolidated statements of prescented in consolidated statements of
financial pasition the consolidated financial positicn
Financial statermnent of
liabilities fina ncial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets set off positicn injtrument received Net amount
Trade and other
recovables P 4031,673,199 (I 242,448,065 P 3,789,225,134 1 - P . P 3,780,225,134
Restricted deposits 71.670.538 - 71670538 {_ 71,670,538} - -
Total B 4,103,343737 (B__242,448,065)F 3,860,895,672 (B__74670538)P - P 3,789,275.134

Decenber 31, 2013
Gross amounts recognized in the Netamount Related amounts not set off in the

consolidated statements of presented in consolidated statemenis of
financial position _ the consolidated financial position
Financial ptatement of
liabilities fnancial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets set off position instruments received Net amount
Resericred deposits P 06.683,441 2 - p 06,683 441 (P 966834400 P - Jul -

The following financial liabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and simtlar agreements:

December 31, 2014

Gross amounts recognized in the Neramount  Relared amounts not ser off in the
congolidated statements of presented in consolidated statements of
finangiaf positivn the consolidated financial posiuon
l'inancial statement of
Finangial assets financial Financial Cash collateral
Liabilities sel off position inglruments received Neramount
Interest-bearing loans
and borcowings P 13,B42,643,397 P - F 13,842,643,397 (I’ 71,670,538) P - P 13,770,972,859
I'rade and other
payables 3.769,778,465 ( 54,448,065)  3,711,330,400 . - 3.711,330,400
Secority deposits 342,325,351 ( 184.000,000) 158,325,351 - - 158,325,351
Toral P 17,954,747,213 (P__242,448,065) P 17,702,209 148 (B___ 71,670538)P - P 17,640,628.610
December 31, 2013
Gross amounls recognized in the Netamount  Related amounts not set off in the
consolidared statements of presented in consolidated stalements of
financial pogitiun the consolidated ___ financial positien.
Financial statement of
Financial assels financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities set off pusition __instruments  __ received _ Netamount

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P A T5LI38817 P - P 13,751,738,817 (B 06,683,441 B P 13655055374
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For financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements ot
similar arrangements presented in the preceding page, each agreement between the Group
and counterparties allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilides
when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets
and labilities will be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the master netting
agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other party.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2014 2013
Revolving fund P 1,131,815 P 21213984
Cash on hand 10,335,747 7,731,306
Cash in banks 538,072,742 249,585,435
Short-term placements 5,968,416 78,689,795
P 555,508,720 220,52

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 0.10%
to 3.00% per annum in all years presented. Short-term placements are made for varying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective interest ranging from 2.10% to 7.10%
per annum in all years presented. Interest income earned amounted to P2.8 million,

P7.8 million and P9.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectvely, and is included as part
of Finance Income in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.2).

The balances of cash in banks as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 exclude restricted time
deposits amounting to P71.7 million and P96.7 million, respectively, which are shown as
Restricted Deposits account (see Note 10) and restricted time deposits under Other
Non-current Assets (see Note 15) in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Such amounts are not available for the general use of the Group under the loan agreement
(see Note 17.1).
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2014 2013
Trade receivables:
Third parties P3,771,130,305 P 6,323,073,299
Related parties 26.1 25,524,583 37.334 222

3,796,654,888 6,360,407,521

Advances to suppliets:

Third parties 30.7 4,001,272,283 924 304,898
Related parties 26.2 10,024,800 2.000.000
4,011,297.083 926,304,898
Non-trade receivables 242.324.636 237344 364
Advances subject to liquudation 32,189,974 14,793 393
Other receivables 34,636,908 40257 584
8,117,103,489 7,588,107,760
Allowance for impaitment (__284,391,298) (244313 .834)
P 191 P 93,0

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which ate due from customers, were
found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance for impairment has been
recorded as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. Impaitment losses amounted to

P40.1 million, P18.0 million and P37.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are
presented as part of Finance Costs under Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1).

A reconciliation of the allowance for impaitment at the beginning and end of 2014 and
2013 is shown below.

Note 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 244,313,834 P 226,354,832
Impairment loss for the yeat 221 40,077,464 17,959,002
Balance at end of year P 284391298 P 244313834

Trade and other receivables do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
fisk exposure (see Note 4.2).

Advances to suppliers include amounts initially paid to foreign corporation amounting to
P89.6 million {US$2.0 million) as of December 31, 2014, in relation to the Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) entered into by PNX — Chelsea for the importation of one unit of oil
tanker vessel (MT Chelsea Denise II) from China for a total consideration of $7.3 million.
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Non-trade receivables mostly pertain to receivable from locators and accrued rent and
franchise income. Non-trade receivables also include P12.9 million and P12.7 million worth
of reimbursable costs incurred by the Group as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
tespectively, in relation to its TC agreement with a certain third party.

Other receivables include partial claims from an insutance company amounting to

P32.9 million and P31.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which is
related to an incident encountered by certain vessels of the Group and one of FTC’s
tugboats. The amount represents the actual costs incurted for the vessels, net of the
applicable deductible clause. In 2014, the Group received a notice of the final amount to
be settled by the insurance company based on the computations provided by the adjuster.
Out of the outstanding claim of the Group of P23.8 million (part of the P32.9 million
under other receivables), only P19.9 million will be collectible; hence, the remaining balance
of P3.9 million was recognized as Loss on settlement of insurance claims, which is
presented as part of Finance Costs in the 2014 consolidated statement of comprehensive
mcome (see Note 22.1).

Certain trade receivables amounting to P33.3 million and P15.5 million as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were used as collateral to the Group’s
interest-bearing loans and borrowings [see Notes 17.5(z), 17.5(4) and 17.5()].

INVENTORIES

Inventories which are stated at cost ate broken down as follows:

2014 2013
Fuels P2,564,596,748 P 3,589,175,766
Lubtcants 306,133,400 223,353,772
Others 98,921 3,135

P2 29,069 D3,812,532,67

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilitics under trust receipts, inventories with
carrying amount of P2,138.5 million and 13,554.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, have been released to the Group in trust for the bank. The Group is
accountable to the bank for the trusteed inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 17.1).

There were no inventory write-down in all of the years presented.

An analysis of the cost of inventories included in the cost of fuels and lubricants sold in each
year is presented in Note 20.1.
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LAND HELD FOR SALE AND LAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The land held for sale and land development costs stated at cost relate to the following as of
December 31:

2014 2013

Land held for sale P 450,786,035 P 483,927,707
Land development costs 35,199,776 19,744 767

P 485,985,811 P 503672474

The land held for sale was used as security for the Group’s installment payable with Land
Bank of the Philippines (LBP) [see Note 17.2(a)].

Land development costs pertain to expenditures for the development and improvement of
the land held for sale of the Park.

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

"This account pertains to the ime deposits that are used as securities for various banking
credit facilities covered by hold-out agreements (sce Notes 6 and 17.1) amounting to

P70.4 million and P95.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2015, respectively. As such,
these are restricted as to withdrawals. The proceeds from availment of the banking credit
facilities by the Group are used for the purpose of purchasing fuel and lubricant supplies

(sce Note 17.1). Interest rates for this type of deposit range from 2.40% to 5.98% per annum
for all the years presented.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below:

2014 2013
Prepayments P 577,645850 P 1 67,721,208
Creditable withholding tax 353,395,385 174,300,564
Supplies 215,476,323 144,038,688
Others 114,982 3,852,717

P1,146,632,540 > 489913177
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization at the beginning and end of 2014 and 2013 are shown below.

Leasehold

Buildings, Gasoline Office Hauling Transportation Construction
Depot and and Land Station Fumiture and ~ and Heavy and Other Vessel in
Pier Facilities Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Tankers Equipment Land Progress

December 31, 2014
Cost ar valuation
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization {

P 3,824,032006 P

793,867 463) (

47.067.752) (_ 3724247323 (

97172129 P1946995014 P

84,756,860 P 579287791 P 75,106,949  P4,440,508,081 P 265909110 P 641,719,262

Net carrying amount

December 31, 2013
Cost or valuadon
Accumulated depreciation
and amartization i

P 2940,015956 P 68286414 P1349,077,762 P

633,579.168) ( 36.606,594) (_ 139.961.789) {

G1.331.047) (203248 R75) (_ 66.443150) (__ 548.682231) (__ 74518.91)
P 3030064545 P 50,104,377 PLI74,570282 P__17,419,813 P 286008916 B R63790 P3891825,850  B_191,390,192 P_641,719.262

76438965 P 547121336 P 66,714,204  P3,102,998 637 P 132261485 P 358,163,195

36.019,329) {_ 228201 903) ¢

Net carrying amount

63.532510) (__ 410279603} {37 .776.505)

20419.636 P 318919.433 B 3,181,694 P 2692719034

F 2306486788 P_ 31679820 PL159113973 P
January 1, 2013 '
Cost or valugtion
Accumulated depreciadon
znd amortization (

P 3084915381 P 55656133 P 407,092,708 T

458.342.806) (___34,646,602) ( 90.255.972) (

L_94484890 P . 358163195

75462927 P 338114309 P 63,195010 P2935833 849 Po109371,360 P 314817213

59.479.148) (___161.728.911) ( 58.709,001) (__ 306,045202) (_ 12.629.793)

Net cartying amount P 2596572485 P . 21009531

P 996,711,879

Total

P 12,952,199,081

E__996,711,829

P 1,643,322 006

(2.263,590177)

£.10,688,608,904

P 10.284,399,960

(1655909491}

E_1.643,322.006

P 826,164,543

P 5628490459

P 8,210,623.433

(1211837615}

%%M%&M %ﬂ%&ﬂ_—ﬁzﬁ_&m%
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A reconciliation of the catrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2014 and 2013 of property and equipment is shown belaw.

Buildings, Leasehold Gasoline Offiee Hauling Transportation Constiruction
Depot and and Land Station Furniture and  and Heavy and Other Vessel in
Pier Facilities Improvements _Equipment Equipment Equipment Eguipment Tankers Equipment Land Progress Total
Balance at January 1, 2014,
net of accumulated
deprecianien and
Amortezation P2,306,486,788 P 31679820 P1,159,113,873 P 20,419,636 P 318919433 P 3,181,694 P 2692719034 P 94484890 P 358,163,195 P 1,643,322006 P 8628490469
Additions 124,963,964 28,885,715 116,897,418 8,131,587 32577 133 8,977,566 168,433,749 49,842,599 283,556,067 1,722,010.278 2,544,276,076
Revaluaton increment - - - - - . 180,637,550 - - - 180,637,550
Transfers 760494,436 482,071,526 174,656 308,573 988.438,145 83,305,026 - ( 2,368,620405) ( 53,328,043)
Cost af asser disposed ( 1,442,350 { 1,051,692) ¢ 38,348) ( 669,251) ( 584.821) - - - { 3,786,462)
Accomulated depreciaton of
asset disposed 1,442,350 301,152 38,348 614935 380,134 - - 2,836,919
Depreciation and amortizaton
charges for the year (161780645 (__ 10461,158) (_ 182,822,095) { 11.356,066) (___ 65.661.907) ( 3.290,783) ( 138402628 ( 36.742.323) { 610,517,605
Balance at December 31, 2014,
net of accumutated
depreciation and amortization P.3,030,164,543 P 50,104,377 P1,574,570,282 P_ 17,419,813 P. 286,038,916 E_ 8663790 P 3.891,825.850 P 191,390,192 P_ 641719262 P_ 996,711,879 P _10,688,608,904

Balance at January 1, 2013,
net of accumulated
depreciadon and
AmOTUzation

Additions

Revaluation increment

Transfers

Cost of asset disposed

Accumulated depreciation of
asset disposed

Depreciation and amortization
charges fort the yeas

Balance at December 31, 2013,

net of accumulated

depreciation and amortizatdon P2,306486 788 P__31.679.820 P115911397% D

2596572485 P 21009551 P 316836736 P 15983779 P 176385398 P 4485019 D 2629788647 P 96741567 P 34817213 P 826164543 P 6995785318

183,013,627 15921442 111,480,716 13553509 136,021,056 5,279,959 160,317 430 22,890,125 43,345,982 1,433,496,226 2,125,320,072

. . . . - : 6,847,358 - . - 6,847,358
(324753648 3092242 842451561 13,076,749 82,471,859 : . - ( 616,338763) -

(0 3059404) ( 6383403) ( 11.047223)(  25654220) (0485888 (  1,760.765) - - - { 58,390,903 )

1,332,633 6,379,948 10,536,181 12,784,339 8,874,799 . . 39,907,900

{__146518.905) {__ §339.940) ( 110243.998)(  9324520) { 4823419) {__ 104234401) (25146802} - (___4B3979.776)

75,347 391) (

20.419.636 E_3189:0433 D 3181694 P.2,69271903 L 94484800

E__358163195 D 1643322006 [ 8.628490469
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12.1 Acquisition of Vessel - MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, PINX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with a foreign corporation for the
importation of one unit of oil rank vessel (MT Chelsea Donatela) from China for
US$21.2 million [see Note 17.2{g)]- The construction of the vessel was completed in
2014 and had its first voyage 011 July 15, 2014,

As of December 31, 2013, the vessel is still under construction. Since the vessel 1s not yet
ready for use, the contract price of the vessel, costs incurred for the majot improvements
made to the vessel and other incidental costs totaling P418.6 million are recognized as
construction in progress and presented as part of Property and Equipment - net in the
2013 consolidated statement of financial position. The whole amount was then
reclassified to tankers in 2014 upon completion of the vessel.

MT Chelsea Donatela is used as collateral to secure the payment of interest-bearing loan
obtained to finance the acquisition of the vessel [see Note 17.2(g]]

12.2 Fair Value of Tankers

The Group’s tankers are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is presented as part of
Revaluation Reserves account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of
financial positon (see Note 27.5).

The information on the fait value measurement and disclosures related to the revalued
tankers are presented in Note 5.4.

If the tankers were carried using the cost model, the cost, accumnulated depreciation and
cartying amount as of December 31 would be as follows:

2014 201
Cost P 5,905,411,437 D 4,843,406,123
Accumulated depreciation ( __848386,914) ( 671,334,763)

P5,057,024,523 R 4.172.071.360
12.3 Borrowing Costs

Construction in progress includes accumulated costs incuzred on the varous depot
facilities and retail stations being constructed as past of the Group’s expansion program,
including capitalized borrowing costs of P70.7 million and P71.4 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representng the actual botrowing costs
incurred on borrowings obtained to fund the retail stations and depot facilities. The
average capitalization rate used was 8.5% both in 2014 and 2013.
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12.4 Collaterals

Port expansion facilities with carrying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, are
used to secure the Group’s installment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2(a)].

Certain property and equipment with an aggregate carrying value of nil and P24 2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are mortgaged with local banks
[see Note 17.2(h)}.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, certain tankers owned by the Group with carrying
value of P1,550.2 million and P1,432.2 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, were used as collaterals for the interest-bearing loans from vadous local
commetcial banks [see Notes 17.2(¢), 17.4, 17.5(a) and 17.5(5)].

Moreover, cettain setvice vehicle of the Group with carrying value of P3.0 million and
140.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, tespectively, was used as collateral for
mortgage payable (see Note 17.7).

12.5 Finance Lease

The carrying amount of hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease amounted
to P19.5 million and P23.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

(see Note 17.0).

12.6 Depreciation and Amortization

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cost of services 20.2 P 201,694,106 P 149,726,182 P 122,984,227
Selling and
administrative
expenses 408,823.499 334253 594 258,443 669
21 P 610,517,605 P 483 979,776 P 381,427,896

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the cost of fully-depreciated property and equipment
still used in operations amounted to P247.0 million and P146.7 million, respectively.
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13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

14.

15.

The Group has 45% equity interest in NMPSC which management considered to be
material to the Group. The investment in NPMSC is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The summarized financial information of NPMSC is shown below.

2014 2013
Total assets P 15,860,855 P 11,823,327
Total Habilities 5,699,029 7,705,459
Total equity 10,161,826 4117868
Total revenues 36,353,600 19,659,530
Net profit (loss) 6,043,958 ( 882,132)

The Group did not tecognize its share of the net profit (loss) of NPMSC in the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the Group’s management deemed it
to be insignificant.

No dividends were received from NPMSC in 2014 and 2013.

NPMSC is a private company and there ate no quoted prices available for its shares of
stocks,

LAND HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Iand held for future development represents the Group’s land property totaling to
44 hectares in Phase 2 and 3 of the Park that is intended for sale once developed.

The Group’s land held for future development was used as collatcral for the Group’s
installment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2z)].

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

‘The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2014 2013

Refundable rental deposits 26.3 P 172,226,696 I 180,951,286
Advances for future

investment in a

joint venture 67,750,000 -
Drydocking costs - net 58,281,453 46,588,245
Deferred minimum

lease payments 34,379,811 34 554,625
Restricted time deposits 6 1,263,795 1,263,795
Others 2,208,703 6.857.099

P 336,110,518 P 270.215,050
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Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of various parcels
of land. These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and are
measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits
were determined by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows
anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market interest rate of comparable
financial instrument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent
amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to P0.6 million
both in 2014 and 2013, and P1.2 million in 2012, and is presented as part of Finance
Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the rental deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position as Deferred Minimum
Lease Payments. Rent expensc on subsequent amortization of the deferred minimum
lease payments amounted to P09 million, P0.8 million and P1.4 million in 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative
Expenscs in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 21).

Advances for future investment in a joint venture represent the Group’s payment to a
certain third party for the Group’s partial share in the investment in future joint venture
per memorandum of agreement entered into with the said third party. The Group and
the third party, through the future joint venture, are committed to construct a terminal
and storage facility.

Restricted time deposits represent cash deposited with a local bank as an environmental
trust fund set aside in compliance with the requirements of the Department of
Envitonment and Natural Resources.

Presented below is a reconciliation of the cartying amount at the beginning and end of
2014 and 2013 of drydocking costs.

Notes 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 46,588,245 P 64,433,228
Transfer from construction
in progress 12 53,328,043 -
Amottization during the year  20.2, 21 ( 49,764,310) ( 44.420,301)
Additiens 8,229,538 26,597,993
Disposal { 100,063) ¢ 22.675)

Balance at end of year P_ 58,281453 P 46588245




-53.

Amortization pertaining to drydocking costs is presented as patt of depreciation and
amortization under Cost of Sales and Services in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 20.2).

Drydocking costs are being amortized over two years or until the occurrence of the next
drydocking, whichever comes earlier.

GOODWILL

Goodwill amounting to P84.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, represents the
excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s shate in the fair value of identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiaties at the date of the acquisition. In 2012, the Parent Company

assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMI is impaired, hence, full impairment loss
amounting to P1.3 million was recognized.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Interest—beaﬁng loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

2014 2013

Current:
Liabilities under letters of credits
and trust receipts
Installment and notes payable
Liabilities under short-term

P 3,640,151,291 P 6,777,195,674
2,163,017,181 1,104,979 911

cornmercial papers 1,942,752,503 -
Bank loans 364,293,475 55,923,184
Term loans 359,737,069 255,841,741
Obligations under finance lease 7,462,297 7,559,190
Mortgage payable 1,611,934 5.729,784

P8,479,025,750 P82

Non-current:

Installment and notes payable P4,319,927,159 P 4678,622,549

Tetm loans 1,036,612,418 799,094,377
Obligations under finance lease 5,671,371 13,226,187
Mortgage payable 1,406,699 3,553,774
Bank loans - 50,012,446

25,363,617,647 P5.544,509333

17.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of letters of credit (LC) and TR lines with local banks to finance its
purchases of inventories (see Note 8). These short-term trust receipts bear interests based
on prevailing market interest rates at an average of 5.00% per annum in 2014 and 6.50%
per annum both in 2013 and 2012
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"The Group is required by the banks to maintain certain collaterals for the credit line facility
provided to the Group for working capital requirements. The collaterals are in the form
of compensating deposits and a surety of a stockholder [see Notes 6, 10 and 26.6(a]].

17.2 Installment and Notes Payable
(a) Installment Loan with LBP

On Aprl 16, 2010, the Group availed the P580.0 million loan with LBP. The loan
with LBP was used to refinance the installment payable with PHINMA Group via
take-out of the outstanding installment payable to PHINMA Group. The refinanced
installment payable is payable for seven years with one year grace petiod on principal
and bears an interest rate based on the prevailing LBP rate at the time of availment
subject to quartetly repricing with reference to a three month PDST-F rate plus
minimum spread of 2.5%. The installment payable with LBP is secured by the
Group’s parcel of land with carrying value of P326.7 million as of December 31,2013,
which is presented as part of land held for sale (see Note 9) and land held for future
development (see Note 14), and port expansion facilities with carrying value of

P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, which is presented as part of buildings, depot
and pier facilities (see Note 12.4). These securities were released upon full payment of
the loan in 2014.

The outstanding balance of the prncipal of the loan as of December 31, 2013
amounted to P67.5 million.

(b) Notes Facility Agreement with BDO Group

In 2011, the Group availed of a P750.0 million clean loan under the notes facility
agreement entered into with BDO Capital & Investment Corporation, BDO Unibank,
Inc. (BDO), Maybank Philippines, Inc., Robinsons Bank Corporation and BDO
Unibank, Inc. — Trust and Investment Group. The long-term loan amounting to
P700.0 million with interest rate of 7.35% annually is payable on August 24, 2016 and
the remaining P50.0 million with interest rate of 7.66% is payable on August 23, 2018,

The outstanding balance of the prncipal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P727.5 million and P742.0 million, respectively.

(¢) Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA) with Philippine Bank of
Communications (PBComm)

On February 10, 2012, the Group entered into a loan agreement with PBComm
amounting to P107.0 million to partly finance the double hulling and drydocking of a
vesscl owned by the Group. In February and May 2012, PBComm released the loan
amounting to P65.0 million and P42.0 million, respectively. The loan is subject to
annual interest rate of 9.5% and is payable in 36 equal monthly installments with one
quarter grace period from date of each release.

The loan is secured by a chartel mortgage on two of the tankers (MT Chelsea
Resolute and MT Ernesto Uno) of the Group with net revalued amount of
P332.1 millton and P370.6 million as of December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12.4).



more than 4:1. As of December 31,2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its
debt covenants with the bank.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P8.0 million and P41 2 million, respectively.

(d) OLSA with BDO -~ MT Chelsea Thelma

On Aprl 26, 2011, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the Importation of one unit of oil tanker MT Chelsea
Thelma) in the amount of US$19.8 million.

In connection with the MQOA, the Group entered into an OLSA arnounting to
US$14.5 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly finance the
importation of the vessel. The loan s payable into 27 consecutive equal quarterly
principal instaliments starting in August 2012, The loan is subject to interest
computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin of 3.50% per annum.

The loan is secured by a chatiel mortgage on certain tankers (MT Chelsea Thelma
and MT Vela) of the Group with a net carrying amount of P1,107.2 million and
P1,064.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Related debt issuance costs amounted to 8.2 million of which P1.4 million and

P2.3 million was amortized in 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective interest rate
of 5.02%. Amortized debt issuance costs were recognized as part of interest expense
on bank loans under Finance Costs under the Other Charges (Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1). The unamortized
debt issuance costs are included as part of the current and non-cuttent portion of the
related loan.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31,2014 and
2013 amounted to P404.4 million and P496.9 million, respectively.

(¢) Convertiple Notes Facility Agreement with BDO

On July 11, 2012, the Parent Company executed a Convertible Notes Facility
Agreement worth P500.0 million with warrants offering amounting to P180.0 million
with BDC. The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 7.6% and is payable
quarterly in arrears over its three years term. ‘The issuance of the convertble note is
part of the Group’s plan to raise long-term capital, to refinance short-term debt and
finance capital expenditures.

BDG is granted the option to convert all or any portion of the unpaid ptincipal
amount of the notes held by it into the conversion shares exercisable at any time
upon watten notice by BDO to the Parent Company specifying the time and date of
the conversion. Also, BDQ has the option to elect one nominee to the Parent
Company’s BOD which opton may be exercised anytime after signing date and on or
before conversion date.



- 56 -

For and in consideraton of the subscription of BDO to the convertible notes issued
by the Parent Company, the latter also granted the former the right to subscribe to the
warrants to be issued by the Parent Company which is convertible into common
shares of the Parent Company up to the aggregate principal amount of P180.0 million.
The availment of the convertible note and the issuance of the warrant were approved
by the Parent Company’s stockholders during a special stockholders’ meetng held on
September 6, 2012. The Parent Company’s stockholders also authorized the
execution, delivery and performance of Subscription Agreement between the Parent
Company and BDO in relation to the issuance of the warrants.

The exercise price of the option to convert the note to the Parent Company’s
common shares and the warrant is equivalent to a determined price base plus a
premium of fifteen percent. The exercise based used was the 30-day
volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company’s share on the PNX PM
Equity HP page of Bloomberg from May 24, 2012 to July 5, 2012 which is equal to
P8.3 per share. The exercise period consists of a two-year period commencing on the
third anniversary date of the convertible notes issue date and expiting five years
thereafter.

Considering that a fixed number of shares will be issued for options and warrants, the
warrants and options may qualify as an equity instrument to be recorded as a separate
component in the equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Group’s management , however, assesses that at the date of the Initial recognition, the
equity component has no value since the interest rate to be charged by the lender on
the convertible note with warrants is similar to the interest rate of the note had it
been 1ssued without conversion options and warrants. Asg such, the fair value of the
hybrid convertible note and the host instrument is the same resulting in the nil value
of the equity component at the date of initial recognition.

Minimum financial ratios to maintain are as follows: (i) debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (if) current ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (lit) debt service coverage ratdo
not to be less than 1.5:1,

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of both December 31,2014
and 2013 amounted to P500.0 million.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt

covenants.

(Y  Notes Facility Agreement with China Banking Corporation and
Peatacapital Investment Corporation

On November 8, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a notes facility agreement
with China Banking Corporation and Pentacapital Investment Corporation totaling
P2,500.0 million. The loan is subject to a fixed annual interest rate of 7.75% which is
payable in twenty quartetly payments. The net proceeds of the loan were used by the
Parent Company for the roll out of the retails stations, for debt financing, to support
capital expenditures and for other general corporate purposes.
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By virtue of the notes facility agreement, the Parent Company affirms that it shall
maintain the listing of its common shares with PSE and shall not declare or pay any
dividends to stockholders (other than dividends payable solely in shates of its capital
stock) or retain, retite, purchase or otherwise acquire any class of its capital stock, or
make any other capital ot other asset distribution to its stockholders, unless all
payments due under the notes are current and updated.

Minimum financial ratios to mainraia are as follows: (i) debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (if) cutrent ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (iif) debt setvice coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1,

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P2,476.2 million and P2,468.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt

covenants.

(g) OLSA with BDO - MT Chelsea Dovatela

In 2013, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding & Exports
Corporation for the importation of one unit oil tanket (MT Chelsea Donatela) of
PNX - Chelsea in the amount of US$21.2 million (see Note 12.1). In connection
with the acquisition of an oil tank vessel, the Group entered into an OLSA
amountng to US$14 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly
finance the importation of the vessel. In September 2013, the local bank granted
the loan and released the first tranche amounting to US$4 million. The second
tranche amounting to US§10 million was availed of by the Group in 2014. The
loan is payable for a period of five years from the initial drawdown date in
US$560,000 quarterly principal installments and any unpaid balance on maturity
date, with two quarter grace period, commencing after the second tranche. The
loan bears effective interest rate of 5.25% per annum.

Interest incurred on these loans amounted to P29.2 million and 3.3 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Costs under Other
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Related debt issuance costs amounted to P9.6 million of which P1.5 million and
P0.1 million was amortized during 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective
intetest rate of 5.58% and 5.54%, respectively. Amortized debt issuance cost was
also recognized as part of the Finance Costs under Other Chatges (Income) in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1). Unamortized
debt 1ssuance costs are included as part of the current and non-current portion of
the related loan.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage of MT Chelsea Donatela upon its delivery
and registration with the Maritime Industry Authority. The catrying amount of

MT Chelsea Donatela, presented as part of tankers in 2014 and construction in
progress in 2013, amounted to 1,093.9 million and P418.6 million as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 12.1).
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The OLSA requires the Group to maintain debt to equity ratio of not more than
1.5:1 and debt coverage ratio (DCR} of at least 1.20, except on drydocking yeat
where minimum DCR shall be 1.00. The Group filed a waiver with the local bank
for the debt covenant ratios.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P595.1 million and P171.6 million, respectively.

(h) Notes Payable

The Group availed of borrowings from various local banks with interest rates ranging
from 7.0% to 10.2% per annum and will mature within five to seven years. The
loans, which are secured by the Groups’s certain buildings, depot and pier facilities
and hauling and heavy equipment, is payable quatterly (see Note 12.4).

17.3 Liabilities under Short-term Commercial Papers

On Qctober 23, 2014, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s registration, licensing and
issuance of shott-term commercial papers up to P2.0 billion. The short-term commercial
papets bear annual interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%, which is already deducted
advance from the proceeds, and will mature on various dates until October 31, 2015. In
2014, the Parent Company fully issued and received the proceeds of the P2.0 billion
short-term commercial papers, which were used to finance the Parent Company’s working
capital requirements.

17.4 Bank Loans

The bank loans represent secured loans from local commercial banks for working capital
purposes. The loans bear annual interest rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.0% in 2014 and
2013, subject to repricing every maturity. These loans are secured by certain tankers
(MT Chelsca Intrepid, MT BMI Patricia and MT Chelsea Denise) owned by the Group
with net revalued amount of P122.4 million and P128.7 million as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively (see Note 12.4), and by certain stockholders [see Note 26.6(2).

17.5 Term Loans

(a) Term Loan Agreement (TLA) with Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBF)

On September 12, 2007, the Group entered mto a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the construction of one unit of oil tanker in the amount of
1US$15.0 million. In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into a TLA
amountng to US$13.0 million with DBP, the proceeds of which shall be exclusively
used to finance the construction of the vessel. In February 2008 and May 2009, DBP
granted the loan amounting to US$3.9 milkion (?159.0 million) and US$9.1 million
(P432.5 million), respectively. The loan is payable over five years in equal quarterly
ptincipal installments, with one quarter grace period on principal, commencing
November 2009 and was subject to 10.5% interest rate per annum. The loan was
fully settled in 2014.
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On October 30, 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement with DBP amountng
to P140.0 million to finance the drydocking and repaits and maintenance expenses of
MT Chelsea Resolute, MT Chelsea Cherylyn, MT Chelsea Denise and MT Jasaan.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 5.0% and is payable in eight equal
quartetly installments commencing on the first quarter from the inital drawdown.

In addition, the Group obtained P160.0 million loan for CSC’s working capital
requirements. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 5.0% per annum and is payable
in ten equal quartetly installments commencing on February 28, 201 5.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on certain tanker (MT Chelsea Cherylyn) of
the Group with net book value amounting to '974.2 million and P799.5 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The loan is also secured by certain
collateral on receivables of CSC and guaranteed by certain stockholders

[sce Notes 7 and 26.6(8)].

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P300.0 million and P222.1 million, respectively.

(b) Loan Agreement with Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBC)

In 2014, the Group obtained three bank loans from RBC totaling P62.2 million to
finance the drydocking costs of MT Chelsea Denise. The loan is subject to annual
interest rate of 6.3% and is payable in twelve equal monthly installments comniencing
on the fArst month from the initial drawdown.

The loan is secuted by a chattel mortgage on one of the vessels (MT Chelsea Denise)
of the Group with net book value amounting to P121.5 million and P1 33.4 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and receivables of CSC from certain
customer (see Note 7). ‘The loan is also guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Note 26.6(5)].

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P56.8 million.

(c) TLA with Maybank Philippines, Inc.

On July 18, 2012, the Parent Company signed with Maybank Philippines, Inc. a
five-year clean term loan amounting to P300.0 million to be used exclusively for
capital expenditure and permanent working capital. The Joan is subject to annual
interest rate of 6.0% and is payable in twenty equal quarterly installments.

In connection with the TLA, all existing and future advances to the Parent Company
by its stockholders or related parties are subordinated to the loan. The Pareat
Company agtees that any and all of its obligations relative to the TLA shall be settled
first before any of its financial obligations to such shareholders’ and related parties’
advances are paid.
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The TLA also requites the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity rato of not
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5,

The outstanding balance of the loan as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P165.0 million and P225.0 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

On October 28, 2014 and Novembet 4, 2014, the Group obtained unsecured,
interest-bearing loans from Maybank Philippines, Inc. amounting to P100.0 milhon
for CSC’s working capital requirements.

(d) TLA with Maybank International Ltd.

On November 20, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a TLA amountng to
US$ 24.0 million with Maybank International Ltd. to fund various capital
expenditures. The total amount of the loan is broken down into US$14.0 million
(tranche 1) which is due in five years and US$10.0 million (tranche 2) with a term of
three years.

The loan is subject to intetest computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin
of 4.25% pex annutm, or cost of funds plus a margin of 2.0% per annum, whichever 1s
higher. Interest pagments are to be serviced quarterly in arrears. Maybank
International Ltd. reserves the right to vary, at its absolute discretion from time to
time, such rate of interest, which variation may take place by varying the LIBOR or
the matgin ot spread above the LIBOR, ot both.

The TLA also requites the Parent Company to tnaintain debt-to-equity ratio of nat
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5.

Moreovet, Maybank International Ltd. has the right of first refusal and right to match
any fund raising exetcise that may be required to refinance the U.S. dollar-denominated
term facility either via follow-on offering of the Parent Company’s shares or a
syndicated term loan.

The balance of the principal of the loan amounted to P451.2 million and
P723.9 million, translated into Philippine Peso using the closing rate as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.
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(e) TLA with Asia United Bank (AUB)

In 2013, the Group obtained interest-bearing loans from AUB to partially finance

the acquisition of tug boats amounting to P100 million. The loan bears fixed

mnterest rate at 7.00% for the first three years from the initial drawdown date, and

shall be repriced at the end of the third year from the inifal drawdown date

(the “Repricing Date™). The repriced rate shall be based on the relevant

2Y PDST-F as of the Repricing Date, plus a spread of 2.00% subject to a floor of
7.00%. The loan is payable in 18 quartetly installments over a pertod of five years.

The first payment will commence on the third interest payment date from the initial
drawdown date. The last quarterly installment of the loan is due on November 6, 2018,

"The interest-bearing loans amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 rmillion as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of which P22.2 million and

P11.1 million, respectively, was presented under current labilities section in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Interest expense related to the loans amounted to P7.3 million and P1.1 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Cost under Other
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Certain trade receivables amounting to P20.2 million and P8.2 million as of
Deccmber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were assigned to secure the payment of
these interest-bearing loans (see Note 7).

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 million, respectively.

(9) Loan Agreement with Multinational Investment Bancorporation (MIB)

On December 29, 2014, the Group obtained an unsecured, 'mterest—bearing loans
from MIB totaling to P166.8 million for the CSC’s working capital requirements.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 4.3% and is payable in 30 days.

"The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31,2014
amounted to P166.8 million.

17.6 Obligations under Finance Lease

The finance lease liability has an effective interest rate of 5.1% which is equal to the rate
implicit in the lease contract (see Note 30.5). Lease payments are made on a monthly
basis.

17.7 Mortgage Payable

"The mortgage payable represents secured loans which bear interest rates ranging from
7.6% to 11.4% per annum, and with terms ranging from 18 months to 36 months. The
mortgages are secuted by certain service vehicles of the Group, presented as part of
Property and Equipmnent account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 12.4).
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17.8 Credit Line

The Parent Company has an available credit line of P16.3 billion under LC/TR. These
lines obtained from varous banks are being utilized by the Parent Company for
procurement of inventores both local and foreign. The credit line is secured by the
following:

() Suretyship of PPHI and pledge of its share in the Parent Company amountng
to P46.9 million {(at P1 par value);

() Joint several signature of certain stockholders; and,

(z) Negative pledge over the remaining shares of PPHI in Parent Company in favor
of the bank amounting to P1.1 billion.

Interest expense for 2014, 2013 and 2012 presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to P728.2 million, P617.5
million and P467.4 million (see Note 22.1), respectively, net of the capitalized borrowing
cost of P70.7 million, P71.4 million and P77.8 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively (see Note 12.3).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Notes 2014 2013

Trade payables:
Third parties P3,375,091,069 P 744975896
Related parties 26.3,26.5 9,156,631 1,981,597
3,384,247,700 746,957,493
Accrued expenses 211,559,670 362,111,496
Retention payable 42,699,144 106,903,516
Advances from customers 19,003,143 290,926,769
Income tax payable 4,236,452 9,608,080
Non-trade payables 2,986,179 22,462,466
Others 30.8 69,837,707 31,457,507
P3,734,569,995 P 1,570,427.527

Accrued expenses mostly pertain to payables to various contractors for the construction of
rerail stations that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In additon, this compuises
amounts to be paid in relation to charter hire cost, repairs and maintenance, interest
expense arising from loans and professional fees,

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the
construction of buildings, depot and pier facilities, The amount of retention, which is
equivalent to ten percent of the total contract price, is payable upon the completon and
turnover by the contractor of a construction project and the acceptance thereof by the
Group.
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Advances from customers pertain to the advance payment of the various customers for
theit fuel purchases. Advances from customers are measured at the amount of cash
received from the customers and are offset against trade receivables once the related
sales transactions are consummated.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Note 2014 2013
Securty deposits P 158,325,351 P 275,962,723
Unearned rent 48,922,071 49,726,176
Post-employment defined
benefit obligation 232 76,396,973 51,100,685
P 283,644,395 P _ 376789584

Secutity deposits represent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations
and equipment that are installed in retail stations. These deposits are refundable at the end
of the lease terms and are measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial
recognition of the security deposits were determined by calculating the present value of the
estimated future cash flows anticipated untl the end of the lease terms using the market
interest rate of comparable financial instrurnent at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method
amounted to P1.0 million, P0.8 million and P1.0 milion in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 22.1).

The excess of the principal amount of the security deposit ovet its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as unearned rent.
Subsequent amortization of the unearned rent amounted to P1.1 million, P0.8 million and
P0.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent and
Storage Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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20. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

This account ts composed of the following as of December 31:

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cost of fuels and
lubticants sold 201 P 30,730,192,895 P 39,785,623,659 P 31,444710,716
Cost of services 20.2 658,586,006 460,109,294 517,038,697
Cost of real estate sold 21 15,725,034 2433131 -
26.2 P 31,404,503.935 P_40.248166,084 P _31.961,749.413
20.1 Cost of Fuels and Lubricants Sold
The cost of fuels and lubticants sold are broken down as follows:
Note 2014 2013 2012

Inventones at
beginning of yeat B
Net purchases
during the year
(Goods available for sale
[nventotes at

P 3,812,532,673 T 3,688,759,676 P  2,132,622,405

33,000,847 987
35,133,470,392

29,788.,489,291
33,601,021,964

39,909.396,656
43,598,156,332

end of year 8 (__2870,829.069) ( _3.812532,673) (_ 3.688.759.676)
P_30,730,192,805 P 39.785.623,650 P_31444.710.716

20.2 Cost of Services
Details of cost of services are shown below:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Depreciation and
amortizatdon
Salaries and

126,15 P

251,458,416 T

194,146,483

P

147,371,900

employee benefits 72,059,949 50,522,176 29 065,941
Charter hire fees 69,693,786 34,795,266 71,143,057
Repairs and

maintenance 49,642,029 24,474 791 19,611,488
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,934,889 58,257,723
Bunkering 42,813,138 11,540,954 106,973,168
Professional fees 38,960,794 43989983 42,067,106
Insurance 36,861,986 34,095,778 25,329,791
Service fees 26.5 33,584,854 20,611,959 -

Taxes and licenses 11,384,037 11,593,974 7,745,126

Outside setvices 1,772,671 1,487,408 -

Secunty services 1,755,920 1,644,570 1,210,469

Fuel, gas and lubricants 119,716 4,798,629 4,974,245

Others 2.834.430 2,472,434 3288683
P 658,586,000 460109294 P 517,038,697
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21. COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of the Group’s costs and expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Cost of sales:

Fuels P 30,543,127,456 P 39571,822572 P 31,046,564,548

Lubricants 187,065,439 213,801,087 398,146,168
Depreciation

and amortization 12,15 660,281,915 528,400,077 405,815,569
Rent 15, 26.3, 30.3 390,370,058 364,369,594 240,876,571
Salaries and

employee benefits 23.1 329,362,174 287,613,201 208,734,347
Taxes and licenses 149,610,326 118,231,983 132,946,735
Advertising and

promotions 123,571,860 176,373,387 84,473,675
Repairs and maintenance 117,868,813 69,675,294 61,023,908
Rebates 112,198,227 49 470,808 40,802,132
Service fees 105,133,477 81,910,722 81,392,862
Insurance 85,836,811 62,357,917 49,923 821
Charter hire fees 69,693,786 34,795,266 33,546,169
Fuel, oil and lubticants 54,440,905 33,792,075 49,339,252
Utlities 51,773,260 49,221,472 33,806,011
Professional fees 49,116,948 92,185,195 85,399 457
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,559,968 59,299,038
Secudty fees 45,583,946 33,738,550 26,108,756
Bunkering 42,813,138 13,420,044 62,899,266
Travel and transportation 40,475,571 40,005,732 35,184,779
Qutside services 31,638,406 6,853,856 0,585,134
Freight charges 16,800,518 56,992,995 50,386,551
Representation 16,729,142 18,658,934 12,761,925
Cost of real estate sold 20 15,725,034 2,433,131 -
Office supplies 10,052,801 10,668,819 12,775,030
Sales incentives 5,491,456 17,133,225 960,783
Trucking charges - 267,300,218 130,451,226
Handling and

processing fees - - 9,285,094
Miscellaneous 26.8 20,924,371 14,840,100 72922212

P_33321,330,112 P 42239626222 P_33.435.411.019
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The expenses ate classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as

follows:
Note 2014 2013 2012
Cost of sales and
services 20 P 31,404,503,935 P 40,248,166,084 T 31,961,749,413
Selling and
administragve
expenses 1.916.826,177 1,991 460,138 1.473.661.606
P_33,321,330,112 P 42239626222 P 33435411,019

22, FINANCE INCOME (COSTS)
The brezikdown of these accounts follows:
221 Finance Costs

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Interest expense on

bank loans and

other borrowings 17 P 728,178,099 P 617,451,997 P 467,358,205
Impairment Josses

on trade and

other receivables 7 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057
Foreign currency

exchange

losses — net 19,247,244 27,100,014 -
Bank charges 9,455,061 3343182 11,969,046
Loss on settlement of

insurance claims 7 3,898,441 - -

Interest expense from
post-employment
defined benefit

obligatdon — net 23.2 2,296,995 2,413,691 1,499,078
Interest expense from
secunty deposits 19 084,592 762,178 1,043.107

P 804,137,896 P 669,030,064 P 519,720,493
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= 22.2 Finance Income

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Interest income from

cash in banks 6 P 2,750,097 P 7831603 P 9,406,440
Tnterest income on

amortizaton of

rental deposits 15 644,746 649,974 1,161,552
Forteign currency
exchange gains — net - - 14,061,359
7 P 3394843 D 8481577 D 24620351

— 23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
ol 23.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are ptesented below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Short-term benefits:
Salaries and wages P 283,624,069 P 225,401,424 P 91,118,445
Employee welfare
and other benefits 23,142,795 42,348,608 101,719,266
13" month pay and
bonuses 11,618,034 10,645,506 10,975,301
Post-employment
defined benefit 23.2 10,977,276 9,217,663 4,921.335
- 21 P_329362174 P_2 2 P 208,734,347

23.2 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
(a)  Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

In 2014, the Group has maintained a pardally funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory
- post-employment defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that
is legally separated from the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination
with the Group’s management who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is
responsible for setting the investment policies. The post-employment plan covers all
regular full-time employees.

“Fhe normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. Normal

'_' retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75% of the final monthly covered
compensation (average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of credited
service) for every year of credited service.
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(6)  Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2014 and 2013.

The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, which is presented as part
of Other Non-current Liabilities account (see Note 19) in the consolidated statements of
financial position, are determined as follow:

2014 2013
Present value of obligation P 88,010,880 T 51,100,685
Fair value of plan assets ( 12,213,907) -

P_ 76,396,973 D 51,100,685

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation
recognized in the books are as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 51,100,685 T 36,440,105
Current service cost 10,977,276 9,217,663
Interest expense 2,751,078 2,413,691
Remeasurements:
Acruaria] losses (gains) arsing from:
Expetience adjustments 14,461,165 37,016,452
Changes in financial assumptions 6,981,384 7,880,254
Changes in demographic assumptions 3,643,648 (  41,748,870)
Benefits patd ( 1,304.356) ( 118.610)
Balance at end of vear P 88,610.880 > 51,100,685
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below.
2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P - P -
Coentributions to the plan 18,661,947 -
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) { 6,131,556) -
Benefirs paid { 770,567) -
Interest income 454,083 -

Balance at end of year P 12213907 P -
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The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by
category and risk characteristics is shown below.,

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents P 100,624 P -
Quoted equity securities:
Telecommunications 2,460,120 -
Manufactuting 2,449,440 -
4,909,560 -
Unit investment trust funds (UTTF) 7,203,723 -

P 12213907 p -

The fair value of the above investment is determined based on quoted market ptices in
active markets (classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy).

The plan assets earned a return of P0.1 million in 2014,

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

"The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Reported in profit or lpss:
Current service cost 231 P 10,977,276 P 9,217,663 P 4,921,335
Net interest
expense 221 2,296,995 2,413,691 1.499.078

P__13274271 P_ 11631354 P _ G 420,413

Reported in other
comprebensive income:
Actuarial losses

(gains) arising

from changes in:

Experience

adjustments P 14461165 P 37016452 P 13,678,177
Financial

assumptions 6,981,384 7,880,254 ( 371,380)
Demographic

assumptions 3,643,648 ( 41,748,870) -

Return on plan
assets (excluding
amounts included

in net interest
expense) 6,131,556 - -

P 1,21 L 3,147,836 P__13306,797
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Cutrent service cost is presented as patt of salaries and employee benefits under Selling
and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
{(see Note 23.1).

The net interest expense is included as part of Fiinance Costs under the Other Charges
{Income) account (see Note 22.1).

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligaton, the
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2014 2013 2012
Discount rates 4.49% to 4.78% 4.60% to 5.32% 5.20% to 6.20%
Expected rate of salary
increases 5.00% to 8.00% 5.00% to 8.00% 5.00% to 7.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics and
morttality tables. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance
of an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference Lo the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond
with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the retitement obligation. Other
assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical
expetience.

(c) Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity tisk and salary risk.

(i) Investment and [nterest Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to matket yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government hond will increase the plan
obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s investments and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will
create a deficit in the plan. Currendy, the plan has investrnent in cash and cash
equivalenrs, quoted equity secutities and UITF.

(#) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s calculated by reference to
the best esimate of the mortality of the plan patticipants both during and after
their employment, and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.
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(@) Otber Information

The mformation on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions
and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retirement plan are
described below.

(i) Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation as of December 31:

2014
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

Discount rate +/-1.0% (P> 8,001,285) P 9,813,193
Salary increase rate +/- 1.0% 8,761,574 { 7,364,342)
2013
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumplion Assurnption Assumption
Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 4,520,745) P 5438812
Salaty increasc rate +/-1.0% 4,865,011 { 4,166,542)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysts, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation lLiability recognized in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years.
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(i) Asser-liability Matching Strategres

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures
that the investment positions are managed in accordance with its asset-liability
matching strategy to achieve that long-term investments are in line with the
oblipations under the retirement scheme. A large portion of the plan assets as of
December 31, 2014 is allocated to UI'TE.

(ti2) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions

As of December 31, 2014, the plan is underfunded by P76.4 million based on the
latest actuarial valuation. While there are no minimum funding requirement in the
country, the size of the may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 years' titne when a
significant number of employees is expected to retire.

The Group expects to make contribution of P1.9 million to the plan during the
next reporting petiod.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan
within ten years as of December 31 follows:

2014 2013
Within one year P 18,890,357 P 11,722,940
More than one year to five years 21,183,125 10,885,698
Mote than five years to ten years 39,055,703 34341627

P 79,129,185 > 56,950,265

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the cnd of the
reporting period is 21 years.
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24. REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS
24.1 BOI Registration as New Industry Participant — Batangas Depot

The Parent Company was registered with the Board of Investments (BOI) on
February 26, 2010 as a new industry participant with new investment in storage,
marketing and distribution of petroleum products under Republic Act (RA) 8479,
Downstream Qi Industry Deregulation Ast, for its storage tanks in Calaca, Batangas. Under
its registragon, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific
terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of
1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax
incentves as follows:

(a) Income tax holiday (ITH) for five years from February 26, 2010, without extension
or bonus year from the date of registration;

(4) Additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages cortesponding to
the increment in the number of direct labor for skilled and unskilled workers in the
vear of availment as against the previous year if the project meets the prescribed
ratio of capital equipment to number of workers set by the board of not more than
US$10,000 to one worker and provided that this incentive shall not be availed of
simultaneously with the I'TH;

() The Parent Company may qualify to import capital requirement, spare patts and
accessories at zero percent (0%%) from the date of registration up to June 16, 2011
pursuant to the Executive Order No. 528 and its implementing rules and
regulations.

Special transport equipment such as but not limited to tanks, trucks/lorties may be
imported with incentives subject to land transportation operation requirements;

(d) Tax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabricated
capital equipment;

(¢) Importation of consigned equipment for a petiod of five years from the date of
registration, subject to posting of a re-export bond; and,

(/) Other non-fiscal incentives, which may be applicable.

24.2 BOI Registration as New Industry Participant — Zamboanga Depot

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as a new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga Ciry.
Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain genetal and
specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code

of 1987,
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Under its regjstration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Zamboanga Depot is
also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in Note 24.1. The
ITH will expirc five years from November 25, 2010.

24.3 BOI Registration for the New Investment in Downstream Qi Industry
Activities — Davao Expansion

On May 14, 2010, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI for the new
investment in downstream oil industry activities under RA 8479 for the additional two
storage tanks for petroleum products with storage capacity of 7.4 million litets in Davao
depot. Under its registration, the Parent Company shall be entitled to avail of the
incentives as cited in the previous page. However, ITH foz five years from May 14, 2010
is subjected to the base figure of 148.2 million liters representing the Parent Company’s
highest attained sales volume of its existing depot facilities (in Davao Depot) prior to the
filling of application for regjstration of new investment.

24.4 BOI Registration for New Investment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry
participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk
marketing of petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Bacolod storage
terminal is also entitled to cerrain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in the
previous page. The ITH will expire five years from May 10, 2012.

24,5 BOI Registration for New Investment ~ Cagayan De Oro City Storage
Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry
participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk
marketing of petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987.

Under its registration, the Patent Company’s transaction relating Cagayan de Oro City
storage terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned
in the previous page. The ITH will expire five years from May 10, 2012.
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24.6 BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn

On November 23, 2011 and December 10, 2008, CSC had registered its activity for
MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn, respectively, with the BOI under Executive
Order No. 226, otherwise known as the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987 as a new
operator of domestic/interistand shipping on a ploneer status. As a registered entity,
CSC is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITH, For

MT Cherylyn, the related tax incentives started in Aprl 2009. Meanwhile, the tax
incentive for MT Chelsea Thelma started in November 2011, ITH incentives shall be
limited only to the revenues generated by the registered project.

24.7 BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Donatela

On September 3, 2013, PNX — Chelsea had registered its actvity for MT Chelsea
Donatela with the BOI under Executive Order No. 226 as a new operator of
domestic/intet-island shipping on a pioneer status. As a tegistered entity, the

PNX — Chelsea is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITH.
The related tax incentives started in January 2014. ITH incentives shall be limited only
to the revenues generated by the registered project.

25. TAXES

"The components of tax expense as repotted in the consolidated profit or loss and in the
consolidated other comprehensive income follow:

2014 2013 2012
Reported in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30% P 32,174,095 P 28432954 P 14,677,522
Minimum cotporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2% 3,998,694 1,822,943 462,671
Final tax at 20% and 7.5% 610,696 1,509,944 1,564,032
36,783,485 31,765,841 16,704,225

Deferred tax expense (income)
telating to origination and
reversal of temporary

differences ( 33.992,758) ( 30.386,688) 3.169,323

P 2,790,727 P 1,379,153 P 19,873,548

Reported in other comprebensive income:
Deferred tax expense
relating to origination and
teversal of temporary

differences P 29334251 P 1,109,855 P 95550.091




- 76 -

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the a
cxpense reported m the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

2014

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P
Adjustment for income
subjected to lower
income tax rates (
Tax effects of:
Adjustment for income and
expenses under ITH (
Derecognition of previously
unrecognized deferred

185,746,110 P

330,316) (

189,717,081) (

2013

e —

199,931,027 P

839,537)(

201,393,953) (

— tax assets (DTA) 2,812,324 -
Non-deductible expenses 2,554,185 3,633,628

— Reversal of net operating

loss carry over (NOLCO) 1,097,619 -

Reversal of MCIT 673,510 -

— Non-taxable income ( 102,149) -
Unrecognized DTA 56,525 47,988

Tax expense reported
o in profit or loss P 2790727 p 1379153 P

pplicable statutoty rates to tax

2012

201,355,110
1,257,900)

186,809,228)

11,600,817

354713

5,392,024)
22,060

19,873,548
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The net deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 pertamn to the following:

Deferred tax assets:

Consolidated
Statements of
Financial Position

Consolidated Staternents of Comprehensive Income

Profit or Loss

Qther Comprehensive Income (Loss)

2014 2013

Post-employment benefit obligadon P 27,678,252 P 15,330,207

NOLCO

Unrealized foreign currency
losses (gains) — net

lmpairment losses

MCIT

Accrued loss on contaminaton

Accrued rent

Deferred tax habilities:
Revaluation reserves of rankers
Capitalized borrowing cost
Unamortized debt issuance cost

MNet deferred tax habilities
Net deferred tax income {expense)

2014 2013 2012, 2014 2013 2012
P 2,982,720 P 345385 P 1895332 P 9365325 P 944352 P 3092039
43,156,706 13,662,197 29,494,509 (  3210247) 4346930 - ;
(  5,689,016) 10,954,840 (16,643,856 21,681,377 ( 11,051,466) -
12,748,029 10,944,461 1,803,568 1,033,927 1,355,842 -
10,520,288 2,696,022 7,824,266 1441695 {  5907,021) . ;
2,057,831 2,057 831 - - ; ; .
65,992 65.992 - - ; - - ;
90,538,082 55711550 25,461,207 24400577 (___9.360383) 9,365,325 044,352 3,992,039
( 154,508,434) ( 122,809,003 7,000,145 5,310,393 5173.210  ( 38699,576) (  2,054,207) (  99,542,130)
( 7,901,832) (  8222,176) 320,344 320,345 320,345 - ; ;
- (_1211062) 1,211,062 355,373 697.505 . . -
(162,410,266) {__132.242.241) 8,531,551 5986111 6.191.060 (__ 38.699.576) (_ 2,054,207) (__99.542,130)

(E_71,872,184) (R _16.530,691)

E 33992758 P_10380688 (B_ _3169323) (P_29,334,251) (2

1,109.855) (P__99,550,091)
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from
the taxable income ate shown below.

Original Valid

Taxable Years Amount Tax Effect Untl
2014 P 111,422978 P 33,426,893 2017
2013 14,139,899 4,241,970 2016
2012 18,714.721 5614416 2015

P 144277598 ol 43283279

Deferred tax asset on NOLCO of PGMI amounting to P0.1 million and P0.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was not recognized since management
assessed that this is not recoverable as PGMI does not expect any taxable income i the

comning years.

The Group is subject to the MCIT which is computed at 2% of gross income net of
allowable deductions, as defined under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher.
SPTT’s MCIT was higher than RCIT in 2014. PPIPC’s MCIT was higher than RCIT for the
years 2013 and 2012, PPMI’s MCIT was higher than RCIT for all the years presented.

The amounts of MCIT and the applicable yeats that are valid and deductible from future
regular income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of
Narmal MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Effect Usntil
2014 P - P 3998964 P 3998964 P 3,998,964 2017
2013 - 6,433,147 6,433,147 6,433,147 2016
2012 - 88177 88.177 88.177 2015

P -  P10,520,288 P 10,520,288 P10,520,288

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Group claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate parent company, the parent company,
stockholders, the Group’s key management personnel, entities under common
ownership by the ultimate parent company and others as described in the succeeding

pages.
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The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and

2012 is presented below.

Related Party Amount of Transactions Qutstanding Balance
Category MNotes 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013

Other related parties
under common

ownership
Sale of goods 7,261 P 1,473,214 P 39,139,112 P 125,553,735 P 25,524,583 P 37,334,222
Purchases of services  26.2 - - 654,413,710 - -
Advances to
suppliers 7,262 10,024,800 - - 10,024,800 2,000,000
Rentals 18, 26.3 66,398,252 43,119,800 53,004,744 7,145,631 -
Due from related
parties 264 7,625,362 { 5,552,006)( 15,311,686) 10,373,356 2,747,994
Due to related
parties 264 ( 46,956,518)( 21,390,502} 24,371,146 17,204,725 62,161,243
Danations 26.8 200,000 1,500,500 5,298,172 - -
Associate
Technical ship
Services 18, 20.2, 26.3 33,584,854 15,842,825 - 2,011,000 1,981,597
Other related party
Due to related
parties 26.4 - - - - 2,000,000

Key management
personnel
Salaries and
employee
benefits 26.7 54,692,790 50,027,748 45,610,775 -

26.1 Sale of Goods

The Group sells products to certain related parties under common ownership. Goods
ate sold on the basis of the price lists in force with non-related partics. Revenues arising
from these transactions are presented as part of Sale of Goods in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. The outstanding receivables from sales of goods
to other related parties are presented as part of Trade Receivables under the Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position

(see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related pardes are unsecured, do not bear any interest
and collectible in cash on demand. No impairment loss was recognized 1n 201 4 2013
and 2012 based on management’s assessment.

26.2 Purchases of Services

In 2012, the Group purchased services from related parties under common ownership
on the basis of price lists in force with non-related parties. The amount of transaction is
presented as part of the Cost of Sales and Services account m the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20). There is no related outstanding
payable as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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In 2014, the Group advanced a certain amount to a related patty under common
ownership for the purchase of services. The amount is credited upon the performance
of the contractual obligation by the related party. The outstanding advances, which are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing, are presented as patt of advances to suppliers under
Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014 consolidated statement of financial
positdon {see Note 7).

26.3 Rentals

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under
common ownership:

(a) Udenna Corporation — of which total rent expense incurred in the years 2014, 2013
and 2012 amounted to P7.4 million, P6.5 million and P6.6 million, respectively. The
outstanding rental payable amounting to P7.1 million and nil in 2014 and 2013,
respectively, is presented as part of trade payables under Trade and Other Payables
in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18).

(6) Udenna Development (UDEVCO) Corporation — of which total rent expense in
2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P47.3 million, P28.5 million and P26.4 million,
respectively. Rental deposit for the lease amounted to P6.4 million and P7.1 million
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectvely, and is presented as part of
refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 15).

(c) Valueleases, Inc. — of which total rent expense in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to
P11.7 million, P8.1 million and P20.0 million, respectively. Refundable rental
deposits amounted to P6.1 million and PO.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and is presented as part of refundable rental deposits under Other
Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 15).

The rent expenses aforementioned are presented as part of Selling and Administrative
Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(sec Notes 21 and 30.3),

26.4 Due from and Due to Related Parties

‘The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from telated parties under
common ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of Decermber 31, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding receivable and payable balances
from these advances ate shown as Due From Related Parties and Due to Related Parties,
tespectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties and Due to Related Parties - current are either receivable in cash or paid through
offsetting, unsecured non-interest-bearing liabilities and are expected to be paid within
one yeat.
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Due from related parties represent outstanding advances to PhoenixPhilippines
Foundation, Inc. (PPFI), a foundation created by the Group, amounting to P10.4 million
as of December 31, 2014, and outstanding advances to Udenna Environmental Services,
Inc., an entity under common ownership, amounting to P2.7 million as of

December 31, 2013,

The movement of Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 2747994 P 8,300,000
Additions 10,373,356 17,362,078
Collections ( 2,747,994) ( 22,914,084)
Balance at end of year P 10373356 P 2747994

No impairment loss is recognized in 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to advances to
related partes.

The breakdown of the Due to Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

2014 2013
Related parties under
common ownership P 17,204,725 P 62,161,243
Other related patty - 2,000,000

P 17,204,725 P 64,161,243

The movement of Due to Related Parties in 2014 and 2013 follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 64,161,243 P 85,551,745
Payments ( 46,956,518) ( 21,390,502)
Balance at end of year P 17204725 P 64161.243

26.5 Technical Ship Services Agreement

On April 1, 2013, the Group entered into a Technical Ship Services Agreement

(the Agreement) with NPMSC, an associate of CSC. Under the Agreement, NPMSC
shall carry out technical services in respect of CSC'’s tanker vessel as agents for and on
behalf of the CSC. NPMSC’s responsibilities include crew management, technical
management, accounting services, and the arrangement for the supply of provisions.
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Total technical ship services fee incurred amounting to P33.6 million and P15.8 million
in 2014 and 2013, respectively, is presented as part of Service Fees under the Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 20.2), while the related outstanding liability (unsecured and non-interest
bearing) of P2.0 million as of both December 31, 2014 and 2013 is presented as part of
Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statements of financial position

(see Note 13).

26.6 Loan Collateral

(2)  Surety and a negative pledge over the remaining shares of a stockholder secured the
liabilities under I.C and TR (see Note 17.1).

(5)  The TLA with DBP, OLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with REC
and certain banks loans of the Group were guaranteed by certain stockholders
through a surety agreement with the respective banks.

26.7 Key Management Compensations

The compensation of key management personnel are broken down as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Salaries and wages P 43,955,837 P 40,724453 P 36,822,265
13™ month pay and bonuses 5,567,610 4 586,418 4,129,412
Honotaria and allowances 4,894,118 4447 058 4 416,398
Post-employment benefits 275,225 269,819 242,700

P 54,692,790 D 50,027,748 P _45610.775

26.8 Others

The Group has made donations amounting to P0.2 million, P0.5 million and P1.5 mullion
in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to Udenna Foundation, Inc,, 2 non-stock, non-profit
organization established by the ultimate parent company. In addition, the Group has also
made donations amounting to nil, P1.0 milion and P3.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, to PPFI, a non-stock non-profit organization established by the Parent
Company. The donations are presented as part of miscellaneous under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

(see Note 21).
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27. EQUITY
27.1 Capiral Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shacey Amount
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Preferred — cumulative,

nonveung,

non-participating,

non-convertible into

common shares -

P1 par valae
Authorized: 0000000 50000000 50006000 P 50,000,000 50000000 P 50000000
[ssued and curstanding 5,000,000 5,000 006 5000000 P 5600000 P 5000000 P 5.000,000
Common - P1 par value
Nuthonzed:

Balance ar beginning of year  2,500,000,000 2,500,000,004) 750,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P 750,000,000

Increase in authenzed stock - - 1,750,000.000 - 1,750,000.000

Balance atend of year £,500,000,000 2500000000 2500000000 P25 00 LZ2,500,000000 £ 2,500,000,000
Issued:

Balance at beginning of year 1,428,777,232 906,059,416 449,872,215 P1,428,777,232 1P 906,059,416 P 489,872,215

Issuance duning the vear - 193,000,000 171,250,799 - 193,000,600 171,250,799

Steck dividends - 329717,816 244,936,202 - 329,717,816 244,936,202

Reciasssfication - - 200 - - 200

Balance at end of year 14280770092 1AT1202 | 906050416 PLA2EITI PLAZETITZZ P 906059416

P1433.279.232 P1433777232 P 931050416

On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized
capital stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shares with a par
value of P1 and 50.0 million preferted shares with pat value of P1 per share inrto
’2,550.0 million divided into 2,500.0 common shares with par value of P1 per share and
50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share.
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The prefetred shares shall have the following features:

(@)
(%)

(¢)

@)

Non-convertible into common shares;

Non-participating in any other corporation activities or other further dividends,
non-voting, except in cases specified by law;

No pre-emptive rights over the holders of common shares as to distribution of net
assets in the event of dissolution or liquidation and in the payment of dividends at a
specified rate. The BOD shall determine its issued value at the time of issuance and
shall determine its dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

The preferred shares shall be redeemable at the Parent Company’s option under
such terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-
issuable when fully redeemed.

Moreover, preferred shares have the following features among others as provided in the
subscription agreement;

(@)

(%)

Dividends on the Preferred Shares shall have a fixed rate of 11.50% pet annum
calculated in respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof in
respect to each dividend petiod.

Dividends shall be payable every September 21, December 21, March 21 and

June 21 of each year (each a “Dividend Payment Date”). The dividends on

the Preferred Shates shall be calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be

paid quatterly in arrears on the last day of each 3-month dividend pertod

(each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the BOD. If the Dividend
Payment Date is not a banking day, dividends shall be paid on the next succeeding
banking day, without adjustment as to the amounts of dividends to be paid.

The Preferred Shares shall have priotity in the payment of dividends at the
stipulated rate at the time of issuance and in the distribution of corporate assets In
the event of liquidation and dissolution of the Parent Company. As such, the BOD
to the extent permitted by law shall declare dividends each quatter sufficient to pay
the cquivalent dividend. Dividends on the shates shall be cumulative. If for any
reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not declare a dividend on the Preferred
Shares for a particular dividend period, the Parent Company shall not pay a
dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future Dividend Payment Date
on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall receive the
dividends accrued and unpaid to the holders of the Preferred Shares prior to such
Dividend Payment Date. Holders of Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to
partcipate in any other further dividends beyond the dividends specifically payable
on the Preferred Shares.

Moreover, the subscription agreement requires that the Parent Company undertakes to
maintain a long-term debt to equity ratio of 1:1 throughout the life of the preferred
shares,
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On December 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issued in
2010 and re-issued the same amount and features of preferred shares except for the rate,
which was reduced to 8.25% per annum.

Based on its plans, the BOD of the Parent Company will also declare and distribute cash
dividends in 2015 out of the Parent Company’s tetained eatnings as of
December 31, 2014,

27.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company offered a portion of its stocks for lisdng with the
PSE. Number of cornmon shares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of
P9.80. As of December 31, 2014, the number of holders of such securities is 62. The
market price of the Parent Company’s shares as of December 31, 2014 1s P3.09. The
total number of issued shares not listed with the PSE amounted to P116.0 million
shates.

The history of public offerings and private placements of the shates of the Parent
Company lodged at PSE are as follows:

Transaction Subscribet Issue Date Number of Shares
Initial public offering Various July 11, 2007 29,000,000
30% stock dividends Various August 6, 2008 43,000,198
40% stock dividends Various August 3, 2009 73,660,476
Placement Social Secudty System  November 13, 2009 7,500,000
40% stock dividends Various October 20, 2010 107,664,266
30% stock dividends Various May 6, 2011 113,047,475
50% stock dividends Various Apnl 26, 2012 244 936,203
Shares issuance for
CSC acquisition UMRC September 6, 2012 171,250,798
Placement Various Match 11, 2013 130,000,000
30% stock dividends Vatious June 10, 2013 329,717 816
Payment of
subscription PPHI October 8, 2013 63.000,000
1,312 232

27.3 Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 million of its common shares at P9 40 per share
and 63.0 million common shates at °5.10 per share., The excess of the par value for such
subscrptions amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in
Capital account. In addition, direct cost of the share issuances amounting to

P34.1 million was deducted from the Additional Paid-in Capital account,

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million shares in favor of UMRC in
relation to the share-for-share swap acquisition of CSC (see Note 1.3). The business
combination under common control was accounted for under pooling of interest-type
method. The excess of par value of such issuance amounted to P1,248.9 million was
recorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in Capital account.
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In 2010, the Parent Company 1ssued 5.0 million of its preferred shares at ’100 per share.
The excess of par value for such subscrption amounting to P495.0 million was recorded
as part of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial
position. In addition, the excess of the selling price over the acquisition cost of the
treasury shares sold in 2010 also constitutes the Additional Paid-in Capital account. The
preferred shares 1ssued in 2010 were redeemed on December 20, 2013 and on the same
date, the same share and value of preferred shares were issued, except for the reduced rate.

In 2009, the Social Secutity System has bought an initial 2.83% stake in the Patent
Company representing 7.5 million subscribed common shares for P42.0 million or at
P5.60 per share. "The excess of par value for such subscaption amounting to P34.5 million
was recorded under Additional Paid-1n Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

In 2007, the Parent Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums received in
excess of the par value during the public offering amounting to P227.1 million were
recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

27.4 Other Reserves

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million common shares plus cash of
P157.8 million in exchange of the net assets of CSC. The acquisition of CSC 1s accousted
for under business combination using pooling-of-interest method wherein the difference
between the consideration given up over the carrying value of the net assets of CSC 1s
recognized as Other Reserves (see Note 2.3).

27.5 Revaluation Reserves
The components and reconciliation of items of other comprehensive income presented in

the consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under
Revaluation Reserves account, are shown below and on the succeeding page.

Defined
Property and Benefit
Equipment Obligation Total

Balance as of January 1, 2014 P 286554327 (P 13932.556) P 272,621,771

Remeasurements of defined
post-employment

obligation - ( 31,217,753) ( 31,217,753)
Revaluation of tankers 180,637,550 - 180,637,550
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued rankers ( 29.384.140) - ( 29,384,140}

Other comprehensive

income (loss) before tax 151,253,410 ( 31,217,753) 120,035,657
Tax income (expense) ( 29.884.334) 9365325 ( 20,519.009)
Other comprehensive

mcome (loss) after tax 121,369,076 ( 21.852 428) 99.516.648
Balance as of

December 31, 2014 P 407,923,403 (PP ___35,784,984) P 372,138,419
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Defined
Property and Benefit
Equipment Obligation Total

Balance as of Jaguary 1,2013 P 294,152,102 (P 11.729.072) P 282423 030
Remeasurements of defined

post-employment

obligation - ( 3,147,836) ( 3,147.836)
Revaluadon of tankers 6,847,358 - 6,847 358
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17.701.323) - ( 17,701,323)
Other comprehensive

loss before tax ( 10,853,965) ( 3,147,836) ( 14,001,801)
Tax income 3,256,190 944 352 4,200,542
Other comprehensive

loss after tax ( 7.597.775) ( 2,203,484) { 9,801,259)
Balance as of

December 31, 2013 P 286,554327 (P 13.932,556) P 272,621,771
Balance as of January 1,2012 P 73957965 (P 2,414314) P 71,543,651
Remeasurements of defined

post-employment

obligation - ( 13,306,797) ( 13,306,797)
Revaluation of tankers 331,807,097 - 331,807,097

Depreciation transfer to
retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17.244,043) - ( 17,244 .043)
Other comprehensive 1ncome

(loss) before tax 314,563,054 ( 13,306,797 301,256,257
Tax income (expense) ( 94 368 917) 3992039 ( 90.376.878)
Other comprehensive income

(loss) after tax 220,194,137 ( 9.314.758) 210,879,379
Balance as of

December 31, 2012 P 294 152,102 (P 11,729,072y P 282,423 030

27.6 Retained Earnings

On January 29, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration and payment of common share
cash dividend of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to stockholders of record

as of March 17, 2014. In additdon, total cash dividends declared and distributed to

preferred stockholdets amounted to P41.2 mullion in 2014. No stock dividends were

declared and distrnbuted in 2014,

On March 8, 2013, the stockholdets ratified the BOD approval of 30% stock dividends
(or a total of 329.7 million shares), valued at par and distributed on June 10, 2013 to
stockholders of record as of May 15, 2013. Cash dividends of 10 centavos per common
shares totaling to P103.6 million were also declared and paid in 2013. In addition, total

cash dividends declared and distributed to prefetred stockholders amounted to

P57.5 million 1 2013.
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On March 8, 2012, the stockholders ratified the BOD’s approval of 50% stock dividends
(or a total of 244.9 million shares), valued ar par and distributed on April 26, 2012 to
stockholders of record as of March 28, 2012, In addition, cash dividends of 10 centavos
per common shares totaling to P49.0 million were also declared and paid in 2012, 1In
addition, total cash dividends declared and distribured to preferred stockholders amounted
to P57.5 million in 2012.

27.7 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group’s capital management objectives ate:

* To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a golng concem; and,
® To provide an adequate return to shareholdets by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

‘The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting
periods under review is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Total liabilites P 17,949,934,696 P 15,839,647,662
Total equity 7,050,226,099 6,497,905.304
Debt-to-equity ratio 2,55 :1.00 244 :1.00

The increase of the total liabilities in 2014 is the result of the additonal borrowings for the
procurement of petroleum and construction of depot facilities, tankers and retail stations.
The increase in equity is due to the accumulated earnings.

The Group’s internal goal in capital management is to maintain a debt-to-equity
structure ratio not in excess of 2.7 to 1. All externally imposed key ratios have been
complied with in all the years presented, otherwise, bank waivers had been obtained
(see Note 17).

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, ie.,
equity and financial liabilides. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt,
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS were computed as follows:

2013

2014
a) Net profit pertaining to
common shares P 575,112,972
b) Net profit attributable to
common shares and
potential common shates 575,112,972

¢) Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares  1,428,777,232

d) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and

P 608,047,331

608,047,331

1,357,005,010

2012

P 593,810,152

593,810,152

1,235,777,232

potential common shares 1,428,777,232 1,357,005,010 1,235,777,232
Basic EPS {(a/c) r 040 D 045 D Q.48
Diluted EPS (b/d) P 0,40 D 045 P 0.48

The optons and warrants attached on the convettible notes do not have dilutive effect
since the average market price of the common shares of the Patent Company during the
year does not exceed the exercise price of the options or warrants [see Note 17.2(g)].

SEGMENT REPORTING

29.1 Business Segments

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service
lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely
fuels, lubricants, depot services and real estate. These are also the bases of the Group n

teporting its ptimary segment information.

(2) Trading segment is engaged in markedng, merchandising, purchasing, selling, dealing,
acquiring, disposing and distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited to
petroleum products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy

resins, lubricants and other products.

() Depot and logistics services segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage
facilities and provides logistics services to various entites.

(¢) Shipping and cargo services segment is engaged in hauling of petroleum products,
operation of inter-island going vessels for domestic trade, chartering in and out any
such vessels and providing complete marine services, either as principal or agent to

ship owners, operators and managers.

(4) Real estate segment Is involved in teal estate development, management and

operations.
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29.2 Segment Assets and Liabdities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
opetating cash, receivables, inventories and property and equipment, and other assets,
net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities include all operating Liabilities and
consist principally of trade payable, trust receipts, wages, and accrued labilittes. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets or labilities.

29.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and petformance include sales and purchases between
segments and between geographical segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated
upon combination.

The tables presented in the next page present revenue and profit information regarding
business segments of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
and certain asset and Hability information regarding industry segments as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands).
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Trading Depot and Logistice
2014 2013 202 2014 a1 2012
TOTAL REVENUES
Sales 1o extemnal customers P 34,103,750 P 43,170,295 T 18114762 P 48,566 P 78080 P 4991055

14,227 _1,123486 2,983,599

[ntersegment sales __4.142,237 1,672,471 3.247.365
Totw! reveaues 38,145,987 _ 4p 842766 _ 20362127
COSTS AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services excluding

depreciation and amortization 35,695,544 45,040,855 9,870,315
Neprecianon and amarsizatinn 345,953 148,258 _ 22R 308

36,041,497 _ 46189143 10,008,113

62,793 _1.201.5600 7,974,654

938,307 1610067 27,608,374
— 30330 76743 5992

968,437 _1LIBGRI0 20677466

SEGMENT OPERATING
PROFIT (LOSS) E_2104.490 P_1.655621 2.106,265414

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segrnent assets

P 15,310,682 P 20,369,077

Segment habilines 16,837,053 14,151,969

(B_905.644) P_385.240{P19.702512) B 186638

P 6,659,753 P 719,749

62,143 2,603,665
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Shipping and Cargo Services Rcal Estate Toral
2014 2015 2012 2014 013 _ 012 2014 2013 2012
P 410,649 P 220471 PI11,479,735 P 171419 P 83140 P P 34,734,384 P 41551986 P 34,585,552
28,312 5A9009 1023435 - - 4,544,776 3335056 _ 12,254 43¢
B9B,961 7520 12503210 171,419 §3.140 39279160 4B 8RIN4Z 46,839,991
481,417 352,475 7,790,861 82,981 60,307 - 37,198,049 47063704 45269,550
___ 230,906 180,284 108,325 53.093 3,740 660,282 308,065 405,815
712,323 532,759 1,869,186 136,074 63,047 __ 37858331 __42.571.758 _ 45.675.365
D 296811 P 464074 P 35345 P 20003 p__. P 1420829 P 1315283 P 1164.626
P4,659,316 I’ 3,597,560 P 1,724,925 1,085,589 P 27,854,676 P 25,786,350
2,696,325 1,987,929 537,057 423,976 20,732,578 19,197,539
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29.4 Reconciliations

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key
financial information presented in its consolidated financial statements (in thousands).

2014 2013 2012
Revenues
Total segment revenues P39,279,160  P48887,042 P 46,839 991
Elimination of Intersegnent
revenues (_4,544,776) (__5335056) (_12.254.439)
Revenues as reported
i profit or loss P34,734.384 P43 551986 134585552
Profit or loss
Segment operating
profic P 1,420,829 P 1315283 P 1164626
Other unallocated income 6,842 22,845 5,863
Other unallocated expense ( 1,774) ( 11,143 ( 4.214)
Operatng profit as reported
in profit or loss 1,419,897 1,326,985 1,166,275
Finance costs ( 804,138) ( 669,030y ( 519,720)
Finance income 3.395 8,482 24,629
Profit before tax as reported
in profit ot Joss P 619154 P 666437 P 671184
Assets
Segmment assets P27,854,676 P 25,771,975
Elimination of intercompany
accounts (2,854,515) (_ 3.434,422)
Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position P 25,000,161 P22,337,553
Liabilities
Segment liabilities P20,732,578 P 19,197,539
Deferred tax Habilities - net 71,872 76,531
Elimination of intercompany
accounts (2.854,515) (_ 3,434,422)

Total liabilities as reported in the
consolidated statements of

financial posidon P17,949,935 P 15,839,648
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30. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
30.1 Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2014, the Group has commitments of more than P1,000.0 million for
expansion on petroleum retail network, depot, terminalling and logistics facilities,
information technology infrastructure and other major expansions related to its business
development. The Group has a network of 418 operating retail service stations as of
December 31, 2014. An additional of 61 retail service staions are under various stages
of completion as of December 31, 2014,

In 2014, the Group plans to expand further its petroleum retail service stations and carry
out its investments in its subsidiaries to put up depot and terminalling facilities in strategic
locations and complete its chain of logistical suppott to strengthen its foothold in the
industry.

30.2 Letters of Credits

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has unused LCs amounting to
P7,131.7 million and P1,021.0 million, respectively.

30.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several operating leases. The leases have terms ranging
from 2 to 25 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging
from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals payable under these cancelable
operating leases are presented as follows:

2014 2013
Within one year P 306,965,591 P 259,337 311
After one year but not
more than five years 1,019,563,212 1,042,366,014
More than five years 3,054,218,327 2,009.559,064

P4,380,747,030 P 3.311,262.389

Total rent expense for the years 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P390.4 million,
P 364.4 million and 1’240.9 million, respectively {see Note 21).
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30.4 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several opetating leases with third parties. The leases have
terms ranging from 2 to 15 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates
ranging from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals receivables under these
cancelable operating leases are presented below:

2014 2013
Within one year P 77,559,213 P 45,535,652
After one year but not
more than five years 241,175,866 100,847,748
More than five years 2254311 5.499,057
P 320989390 P_ 151882457

Rent income in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounting to P94.5 million, P47.5 million and
P54.3 million, respectively, is presented as part of Rent and Storage Income account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

30.5 Finance Lease Commutments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several finance lease covering certain hauling trucks with a
lease term of 2 to 5 years. The leases provide options to purchase the transportation
equipment at the end of the lease terms. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under
the finance leases together with the present value (PV} of the net minimum lease payments
(NMLP) is as follows:

2014 2013

Future PV of Future PV

MLP NMLP ML of NMI.P
Within one year P 8,284,913 P7,462,297 1> 9,007,429 P 7539190
Aftes one year but not more than five years 5,926,834 5,671,371 14,253 842 13,226,187

14,211,747 13,133,668 23,261,271 20,785,377

Amounts representing Hnance charges (1,078,079 - (__ 2475.894)
Present value of MLP P13,133,668 P13133,668 [ 20785377 1220785377

The liabilities relating to the finance leases are shown as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings (see Note 17.0).

30.6 Charter Agreements

The Group has existing commitments to charterers under TC, CVC and BB agreements
for the use of its tankers in transporting oil products for a fixed period. Also associated
with these charter agreements is the obligation to keep the Group’s tankers in good
working condition and compliant with all the shipping regulations as required by the
Philippine Maritime Industry Authorty.
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30.7 Purchase Commitinents

On September 4, 2014, PNX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corpotation for the importation of one unit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea

Denise 1T} for a total consideration of US$7.3 million. As of December 31, 2014,

PNX — Chelsea has made an initial downpayment of US$ 2.0 million and is presented as
part of Advances to suppliers under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014
consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).

30.8 Legal Claims

The Group filed a complaint for a sum of money against one of its customers for unpaid
charter fees including damages. A Writ of Garnishment on the customer’s funds for the
amount of P16.0 million has been issued by the trial court in favor of the Group.

The same customer filed a suit against the Group for reimbursement and damages,
amounting to P13.7 million, for the loss it incurred from the contamination of its cargo,
which was on board on one of the Group’s vessels in 2010. In the same year, the Group
made a provision in the amount of P6.9 million for the amount of probable liability that it
could answer for such claim. The related liability is presented as part of Others under the
Trade and Qther Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 18). No additional loss was recognized related to this claim in the succeeding
years.

30.9 Others

In May 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of Justce (DOYJ)
a complaint against the Group’s President and Chief Executive Officer and other
respondents for alleged violaton of Sections 3602, 2501(1)(1) & (%), 1801, 1802 and 3604
of the Tarff and Customs Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DOJ
dismissed the case for lack of probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the
O], upon motion for reconsideration filed by the BOC, reversed its eathier resolution
and recommended the filing of Criminal Information against the respondents. Criminal
Information for alleged viclatons of Section 3602, in relation to Sections 3601,

25301 () & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tarff and Customs Code of the Philippines were
filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of Batangas and Davao City in August 2013.
Separately, in September and October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City, respectively,
have dismissed all charges against the Parent Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer.

On October 7, 2013, the DQ)J filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for
Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the
other hand, on November 15, 2013, the DO)] filed a Motion for Reconsideration with
Motion for Inhibition of Judge George A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC
Davao. On December 6, 2013, RTC Batangas issued an Order dated December 6, 2013
denying the DOJ’s Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On

July 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued a Certificate of Finality of even: date stating that its
Order dated December 6, 2013 affirming the Order dated September 17, 2013 is now final
and executory since no appeal was filed.
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On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an ordet of even date denying the DOJ’s Motion
for Reconsideration. The Office of the Selicitor General, on behalf of the People of the
Philippines, filed the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27, 2014 with the Court of
Appeals seeking the reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014
issued by public respondents Judges Omelio and Hon. Loida S. Posadas-Kahulugan. The
Petition for Certiorar, with Docket No. CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN, s now pending
with the Court of Appeals.

There is also a pending Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DO]J and the BOC,
seeking the reversal of the decision dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of Appeals” Special
Former Special Tenth (1 0™ Division in the Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy,
docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jorlan Cabanes, docketed as CA-G.R. SP
No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same basic facts and issues as
those raised in CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN.

1n the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs
cettain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the management believes that losses, if
any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies will not have material
effects on the consolidated financial statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operations Period Ended
December 31, 2014 vs. December 31, 2013

Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of Php 34.734 billion in 2014, which is 20% lower than
its 2013 level of Php 43.552 billion, primarily due to the 18% decrease in sales volume of
refined petroleum products plus the decline in average price in 2014. However, this was
minimized due to the higher revenues from fuels service, shipping, storage and other
revenue by 54%.

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products decreased by 21%
from Php 43.14 billion in 2013 to Php 34,10 billion in 2014 resulting principally from a
decline in volume for the wholesale. The effect was however minimized as volume in retail
(station sales) increased by 22% due to wider distribution network and growth in same
store sales. The decrease on wholesale account is a conscious effort of the Company to
manage resources and profitability. The Parent Company had four hundred eighteen (418)
Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of December 31, 2014 compared to three
hundred sixty-eight (368) retail stations as of the same period last year. The Parent
Company has a number of retail stations undergoing construction and projected to be
opened within the year and early next year.

The Group generated Php 634 million from its fuels service, storage, port and other income
in 2014 versus Php 412 million in 2013, a 54% increase compared to the same period last
year. This is due to the increase in turnover of storage service compared to fast year,
additional service of charter hire to third party, and revenue from tug-boat operations for
the year.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and services of Php 31,405 billion, a decline of 22% from
its 2013 level of Php 40.248 billion, primary due to an 18% decrease in the sales volume of
petroleum products. The higher decline in percentage of costs of sales by 22% compared to
the decline of 18% in volume is a result of lower average costs of petroleum products for
this year. This year's average for the three major petroleum products such as Gasoil
(Diesel), MOGAS (Gasoline) and Kerosene {(JETA1) is lower by 8% compared to the same
period of 2013. Furthermore, for 2014, the ratio of retail compared to
commercial/industrial (C&I1) accounts improved compared to the same period in 2013 due
to the Company's strategy to push more volume in Retail, Retail stations normally sell more
premium products like gasoline as opposed to C&] which is more diesel.



Selling and administrative expenses declined by 3.5% as a result of lower variable costs but
minimized by the increase in rentals, depreciation, salaries & wages as a result of the
continuous expansion of the Group’s business operations. With its growing retail presence
nationwide and the scaling-up of operations, the Company incurred increases in manpower
and logistics costs, resulting to an increase in operating costs.

Net Income

The Group’s net income for the year 2014 is Php 616 million versus 2013 net income of
Php 665 million, a decrease of 7%. Despite the lower volume by 18%, the Company was
able to temper the drop in profit by improving its sales mix in favor of retail as well as
increased efficiencies and savings particularly from its trading and supply management
operations. With the better sales mix, the net income to sales ratio (return on sales)
improved to 1.77% in 2014 compared to 1.53% in 2013.

The Parent Company is registered with the Board of [nvestments on November 16, 2005 as
a new industry participant with new investments in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Regulation Act) and, as
such, continues to enjoy an income tax holiday for five (5) years from November 16, 2005,

The Parent Company obtained additional registration approval from the Board of
Investments (BOI) under RA. 84792 or Oil Industry Deregulation Law for its Calaca,
Batangas Terminal. This entitles the Parent Company to an Income Tax Heliday (ITH) on
the revenue activities from this additional storage capacity for five (5) years starting
February 2010. Another BOI registration was granted for the Davae Terminal Expansion
facility effective February 2010, thus entitling the Parent Company another set of
incentives including the five (5) year ITH in its Davao Terminal Marketing and Storage
activities. These additional ITH incentives will allow the Company to enjoy an effective
income tax rate well below 30% as it continuously expands its storage and obtains further
incentives from the BO!.

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream 0il Industry Deregulation Act) for its
storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City. Under its registration, the Company is required
to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the
Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

The Parent Company also received new approvals from the B0l for its two (2) new
facilities. Both the Cagayan de Oro City and the Bacoled City facilities were registered and
issued certification by the BOl on May 12, 2012. The registration entitles the Parent
Company ITH for five years from registration plus other fiscal and non-fiscal incentives
accorded to BOI registered entity.

Financjal Condition
{(As of December 31, 2014 versus December 31, 2013)



Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2014 stood at Php 25 billion, higher by
12% compared to the Php 22.338 billion as of December 31, 2013. This is mainly due to
increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment with the continuous expansion on retail
stations, storage and including shipping assets. The increase by 4% on current assets also
contributed to the total increase in assets.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 56% from Php 357 million in December 31, 2013
to Php 556 million due to timing of collections of receivables as against payment of various
liabilities and the objective of the Company on certain level of cash and cash equivalent
needed for day to day operations.

The Group's liquidity position, though lower against last year, thus continued to be strong
with Current Assets amounting to Php 13.576 billion as of December 31, 2014, compared to
Php 13.054 billion as of December 31, 2013. The increase in Cash contributed to the
increase in Current Assets.

Trade and other receivables increased by 7% from Php 7.344 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 7.832 billion as of December 31, 2014, which were mainly due to Company
receivables from various customers and suppliers. The Group continues to enhance its
credit policies to minimize everdue accounts.

Inventories declined by 25% at Php 2.871 billion as of December 31, 2014 from Php 3.812
billion as of December 31, 2013. The volume year on year is comparably same level for
both years. However, the average unit price in 2014 year-end inventory is lower by 37%
compared to 2013, The Company maintains an average of one month worth of inventory to
ensure stable supply in retail stations and commercial/industrial clients. However, this
may go higher than the desired level due to vessel arrival timing.

Due to related parties in December 31, 20141 and December 31, 2013 is Php 10.373 million
and Php 2.748 million respectively. The decrease of Php 7.625 million or 277% is due to
charges made during the year.

Input taxes-net decrease by 34% in December 31, 2014 is the result of offsetting of higher
output taxes this year due to increased level of inventory, as well as input taxes of capital
expenditures and increase in inventory level in which input taxes have been paid.

Other current assets are at Php 1,147 million and Php 489.9 million as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 respectively. The increase represents prepaid rentals on
leased retail service stations properties and depot sites, prepaid insurance, creditable
withholding taxes, and other current assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation, increased to Php 10.689 billion compared to Php 8.628 billion as of December
31, 2013 due to investments in additional shipping vessel, depot capacity in existing areas,
and new sites. In the first quarter, the Parent Company took delivery of a brand new



marine tanker for fuel importation, plus costs to ongoing storage facility expansions.
Additional retail stations were also constructed and or under construction in Luzon,
Mindanae and Visayas as part of the Company objective to further expand retail network,

Loans and Borrowings, current and non-current, increased merely by 1% from Php 13.752
billion as of December 31, 2013 to Php13.843 billion as of December 31, 2014. The slight
increase of Php 90 million was a result of timing of availment of working capital lines.

Trade and other payables increased by 138% from Php 1.570 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 3.735 billion as of December 31, 2014, This is the result of longer suppliers’
credit to finance inventory.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to Php 7.050 billion as of December 31, 2014 from
Php 6.498 billion as of December 31, 2013 as a result of the period net income for the three
guarters less the cash dividend declared and paid during the vear for both common shares
and preferred shares.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Company's key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they are computed
are listed below:

December 31, December 31, 2013

2014
Current Ratio! 111:1 1.33:1
Debt to Equity-Total? 2.55:1 2.44: 1
Return on Equity-Common? 9.01% 12.10%
Net Book Value Per Share* 4.93 4.54
Debt to Equity-Interest Bearing® 1.96:1 212:1
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted © 0.40 0.45

Notes:

1 - Total current assets divided by current lfabilities

2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Perfod or Year Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity

4 - Total steckhelder's equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total number of
shares issued and outstanding

5 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred)
6 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average number of
outstanding common shares



These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Company’s financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Company’s ability
to maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Company (Return on Equity,
Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise, these ratios are used to
compare the Company's performance with similar companies.

The Company's debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2014 is higher at 2,55 : 1 due to higher
accounts payable trade, However, interest bearing DE this year improved to 1.96 : 1,
compared to 2.12:1in 2013.

The foregoing key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Group’s financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Group's ability to
maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Group’s (Return on Equity, Net
Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise these ratios are used to compare
the Group's perfoermance with its competitors and similar-sized companies,

Material Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 compared to
December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more)

56% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
This is a result of collection and disbursement timing during the period. Certain levels of
Cash are also maintained to support maturing obligations.

7% increase in Trade and other receivables
Primarily due to increase in advances to suppliers as a result of various shipment in transit
and final price computation.

25% decrease in inventory
A result of lower average price per unit by 37% in 2014.

277% increase in Due from related parties
Various charges and billings during the period-net.

47% increase in other current assets
As a result of increased prepayments eg. rental, insurance, etc. plus the creditable
withholding taxes,

34% increase in Value Added Tax-net
Increase in Input VAT as a result of higher inventory plus accumulated Input Taxes on
capital expenditures,

134% increase in other current assets
[ncrease in Prepayments, Creditable Withholding Taxes and Supplies [nventories.



24% increase in property, plant and equipment
Due to vessel acquisition, retail network expansion, storage expansions and other capital
expenditures,

138% increase in Trade and other payables
Trade Payable to foreign suppliers for purchases of inventory.

73% decline on Due to related parties
Settlement of varicus advances from prior years.

6% decrease in deferred tax liability
As a result of decline on the deferred tax liability for tanker vessel appraisals increments,

25% reduction on non-current liability
Due to seme retirement of cash security deposits in favor of other form of security.

Material changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more)

21% decrease in Sales for petroleum products
Principally due to 18% lower sales velume compared to 2013. However, it was minimized
by the higher service revenue.

54% increase in fuel service, shipping, storage income, and other revenue
Higher turnover on service volume specifically on storage volume of new terminal,
additional revenue on charter hire, and tugboat revenue.

22% decrease in cost of sales
Primarily due to decreased sales of petroleum products minimized by the effect of the
lower unit prices this year compared to 2013.

20.2% increase in Finance Costs (net)
Due to interest on the installment payables, bank term loans used for expansion, plus Trust
receipts availed to finance inventory.

53.2% increase in other income/Costs
Due to periodic inventory losses recorded during the period plus other various costs.

102% increase in income tax
Due to the increase of income not related to its BOl registered activity,

There are no other material changes in the Group's financial position (5% or more) and
condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion. Furthermaore, there are no material
events and uncertainties known to management that would impact or change the reported
financial infermation and condition of the Group.
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28 June 2013

Hon. Justina F. Caliangan

Director, Corporate Finance Department
Securities & Exchange Commission
EDSA, Greenhtills

Mandaluyong City

Dear Dir. Callangan:

Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, Series of 2013, we would like to submit herein
the Annual Corporate Govemnance Report as of December 31, 2012 of our Company.

Thank you and warm regards.

J [ )
y. Socorro Ermac Cabreros
ofporate Secretary
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A. Board Matters

1) Board of Directors

Number of Directors per Articles of Incorporation

| 11

Number of Directors per Amended Al on Nov. 2012 ‘ 11

‘ Actual number of Directors for the year 2012-2013 ‘ 9
a) Composition of the Board
Director's Typea If Nominator Date Date Iast | Elected when | Number
Name [Exec nomines | in the fast | first glected {AnnualiSpecl | of years
utive . elaction (If | elected | (If 1D, | al Meeting served
(ED), Idantfy 1D, state the state the as
Non- the relationship number director
Exacu | principal | with the of vyears
tive nominator) as
(NED}, served
Indap as 1D)
enden
t{ID))

Damingo T Uy ED Since
incarporal
jon to
present

Dennis A, Uy ED Since
incorporat
ion 1o
present

Jose Manuet R | ED 2007 to

Quimson present

Romeo B, De | ED Since

Guzman 200810
prasent

Socorrp T Emnac | ED 2006 1o

Cabreros present
(except
2009,
2010)

JV. Emmanuel A, | NED 2007 Lo

de Dios presentl

Paul G. Domingugz | NED March 8, 2013 | 2013 1o

Annual present
Slockholders’
Meeting
Cherylyn C_ Uy NED March 8, 2013 | 2013 to
Annuai present
Slackholders’
Meeling
Joseph John L. | ED March 8, 2013 | 2013 to
Ong Annual present
Stockholders’
Meeling
Juslice {Rel) | 1D March 8, 2013 | 212 o
Consuele  Ynares- Annual present
Santiago Stackholders’
Meeting

Monico V. Jacob [n] March 8, 2013, | 2008 1o
Annual present
Stockhoiders'
MMeeiing




(b} Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of
directors has adopted. Please emphasize the policy/ies relative to the freatment of all
shareholders, respect for the rights of minority shareholders and of other stakeholders,
disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

Disclosure and transparency to promote equitable treatment of shareholders
and the rights and interests of other stakeholders are among the fundamental
corporate governance policies that the Board has adopted and strictly adhere to.

(c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?

Every five (5} years

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

{i) Directorship in
{ii) the Company's Group

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’'s Board of
Directors who hold the office of director in other companies within its Group:

Name of Director Namae of Reporting Company Position Held

Ricardo S Pascua Boulevard Holdings, Inc. Independent Direcior

Monice 5. Jacob Jollibee Foeds Corporation Indepandgnt Dirgctor

Chemraz Technologies, Inc.

(iii) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company's Beard of
Directors who are also directors of publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Name of Director Name of Reporting Company Position Held

Ricarde 5. Pascua | Boulevard Holdings, Inc. Independenl Director

Monica 8. Jacob | Jollinee Foods Corporation Independent Dirggtor

| Chemrez Technologies, inc.

(iii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the
Board of Directors, which links them to significant shareholders in the company
and/or in its group:

Director's Name

Name of the Significant Shareholder

Doescriptien of the relationship

Dominge T Uy Dennis A, Uy By consanguinity wilhin fhe first civil
dagree
Denms A, Dy Cherylyn Uy Spouses

{iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies
{publicly fisted, ordinary and companies with secondary license) that an Individual
director or CEQ may held simultangcusly?  None,

]



In particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed
and observed?

Guidelines Maxirmum Number of Dlrectorship in
other Companigs

Executiva Direclor

Mon-Executive Director

CEQ

(c) Shareholding in the Company

Compiete the following table on the members of the company's Board of Directors who
directly and indirectly own shares in the company:

Members of the Board of Direciors as of 2012-2013

Name of Director Numbher of Direct Shares Number of Indirect Shares/ ®, of Capital Stock
{name of record owner)

Dannis A. Uy 3,070,624 0.33%
Dennis A. Uy &/ar Cherylyn 584,682 0.09%
C Wy
Domingo T. Uy 495.561 0.05%
Romeo B. De Guzman 54,500 0.01%
Socorrp T. Ermac-Cabreros 79,474 0.01%
Jose Manue! R. Quimson 273,03 0.02%
J.V. Emmanuel De Dics 1 0.00%
Diana Pardo Aguilar [ , 0.00%
Monlco V. Jacob 1 ' 0.00%
Ricardo S. Pascua 1 0.00%

TOTAL: 4,859,256 0.51%

2) Chairman and CEC

(a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and
CEO? If no, describe the checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board
gets the benefit of independent views.

Yes / No

Identify the Chair and CEO:

Chairman of the Beard Domingo T. Uy |
CEO Dennis A Uy |

(b} Roles, Accountabilittes and Deliverables




Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and

CEO.

Chairman

Chief Exacutive Officer

Roles

Presides at the meelings of
the stockholders

Recaives the nominations for
lhe vacant seals of the board

Initizior and developer of
corporate objectives
Supervisor and manager of
corporate business
operations, affairs and
properties of the corporation
Corporale represeniative in all
funclions and proceedings
Signatory of certificates of
slocks

Accountabilities

Facililation of all meetings of
stockhalders

Implemantalion of he
administrative and
operational policies of the
corporation

Preparation of the budgels
and slalemenis of accounis
of lhe corporation
Exgcuilon of all contracls,
agreamants and other
instruments entered inte by
lhe board

COrganizationa! procedural
conirols of the corporation

Deliverables

Agenda of the meelings of
stockholders

Elaction of independent
Directors at the stockholders’
meeting

Qualitative and timely hnes of
communication and
information between (he
Board and iManagement

Reports o the Board and to
the stockholders

3) Explain how the Board of Directors plan for the succession of the CEO/Managing

Director/President and the top key management positions?

Aside from the Company's Nomination Committee which screens the
nomination and election of its directors, the shareholders are given equal opportunity
under the By-Laws to nominate individuals based on the number of shares voted.

4) Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of
directors in the board? Please explain.

None. The By-Laws does not impose additional qualifications for directorship
other than the basic citizenship, residency and share reguirements. This sefup is
consistent with the Board’s intent to open its membership to every shareholder
regardless of background or expertise. Currently, however, the membership of the
Board is characterized by the diverse background, professional experience and
expertise of individuals comprising it.




Doas it ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or
industry the company belongs to? Please explain.

No. There is no express policy for non-executive directors to possess requisite
experience from any particular sector or industry, but there is an apparent
preference for those with relevant exposure and/or experience in the same sector
or industry the Company belongs fo.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabililies and deliverables of the Executive, Non-
Executive and Independent Directors:

Executive Non-Executive I Independent Girector
Role The execulive directors are | Provide guidance and Reivews significant related
directly involved in the assisis in the direclions and | party transachions
management of the objeclives of the Company

Company such as the day
o gay operalions nacessary
and incidenial 1a lhe
operations.

Accountzbillies Has mare accountabliliies
i the Board dug lo lhelr
functions In the Company.
They monilor ihe operations
and implemen 1he
directions and objective of
the Company

Deliverables Implement tha projeclad
targets set the start of the

year

Provide the company's definition of "independence” and describe the company's
compliance to the definition.

in terms of directorship, the By-Laws define “independence” in negatives as
follows:

{a) Not being a director, officer or substantial stockholder of the Corporation or of
its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders

(b) Not being a refative of any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the
Corporation, any of its related companies or any of its substantial
shareholders.

(c) Not acting as nominee or representative of a substantial shareholder of the
Corporation, any of its related companies or any of its substantfal
shareholders;

(d} Has not been employed in any executive capacity by the Corporation, any of its
related companies or by any of its substantial shareholders within the {ast five
(3) years;

(e) Not retained professional adviser by the Corporation, any of its related
companies or any of its substantial shareholders within the last five (5) years,
either personally or through his firm; and

(f) Has not engaged or does not engage in any transaction with the Corporation or
with any of lts related companies or with any of its substantial shareholders,
whether by himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is &
partner or a Corporation of which he is a director or a substantial shareholder,
other than transactions which are conducted at arms length and are immaterial
or insignificant.




Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors?
If after two years, the company wishes to bring back an independent director who had
served for five years. does it limit the term for no more than four additional years?

Please explain.

The Company follows the minimum requirement imposed by SEC, The
independent director has a term of 5 years after which the Company appoints
another independent director. Should the independent director be re-appointed, it
is the rule of the Company that after one year of hiatus, he may be appointed for
another 2 years which should be the last and final term.

5) Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)

(a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened

during the period:

Nama Position Date of Cessation Reason
Ricardo A. Pascua | Independent March 7, 2012 Expiration of 5
Director years

(b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and

Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification,
removal, reinstatement and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors.
Provide details of the processes adopted (including the frequency of election) and the
criteria employed in each procedure:

Procedure Process Adopted Criteria
a  Selection/Appeolrtment
{i} Execubve Cirectors Nomination Committee procedure is | Professional background, work

followed

performance provided the nomines has
none of the disqualification

{ii) Non-Executive Direclors

Nominalion Cornmillae is lollowed

Prafessicnal

background,
performance provided ihe nomines has
none of the disqualification

work

{iliy}ndependent Diraclors

followed

Nomination Commillee procedure is

Professional

tackground,
performance provided Lhe nominee has
none of the disqualificalion

work

b. Re-appolntmant

Same

Same

{lJExeculive Direclors

{il)Non-Executive Direclors

(lli)independeni Directors

¢. Permanent Dlsqualification

{(DExecutive Direclors

{ii)Nan-Executive Direclors

(iii}Independent Directors
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c. Temporary Disqualification

{i{Executive Directors

{inNon-Executive Direclors

{li¥independent Directors

d. Removal

{hExeculive Directors

{iNon-Executive Direclors

{iijindependent Direclors

8. HRe-instatement

{i)Executive Direclors

{ijNen-Executive Direclors

(iliYindependent Directors

f.  Suspension

{i¥Execulive Dirgctors

{ifNon-Executive Directors

{iifindependent Direclors

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

| Nama of Director

Voles Receivad

Cherylyn C. Uy

969,558,252 Shares (88.22%])

Paul . Dominguez

069,558.252 Shares (88.22%)

Joseph John L. Ong

969,558,252 Shares (88.22%)

Justice (Ret.} Consuslo Ynares-Santiago

989,558,252 Shares {88.22%}

8) Orientation and Education Program

a) Disclose details of the company's orientation program for new directors, if any.

There is no clear and established policy on board and directors development
program afthough all directors are encouraged to attend trainings and seminars
that are offered to the Company from time to time by respectable and reputable

Institutions.

b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior

Management for the past three (3) years:

1. Annual disclosure programs by the Securities Exchange Commission;
2. ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard 2013

¢) Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtabies

attended during the year.

Nama of Director/Officer

Date of Training

Program

Name of
Training/Institution

March 20, 2013

Institute of Corporate
Directors
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B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1) Discuss briefly the company's policies on the following business conduct or ethics
affecting directors, senicr management and employees:

Although the Company develops and nurtures a cuiture of ethics, the Company
has yef to establish a Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for jts directors.

Business Conduct & Ethics Diractors Senior Management Empiloyses

|
' {z) Confict of Interest
L
[

(D) Conducl of
Business & Fair
Dealings

{c) Receipl of gifts
from third partles

(@) Compliance with
Laws &
Regulations

(e} Respect for Trade
Secrels/Use of
Non-Public
Infgrmation

(ft Use of Company
Funds, Assals &
Infermalion

{g) Employmenl &
Labor Laws &
Folicles

{h) Disciplinary aclion

1} Whislle Biower

Q) Conflict Resolution

2) Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to alt directors, senior
management and employees?

N/A

3) Discuss how the company implernents and monitors compliance with the code of
ethics or conduct.

N/A

4) Related Party Transactions
(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company's policies and procedures for the review, approval or
ratification, monitoring and recording of related party transactions between and
among the company and its parent, joint ventures, subsidiaries, associates, affiliates,
substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses, children and
dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of mambers
of the Board.

Related Party Transactions Pollcies and Procedures |
(1) Parent Company Cevelop and disclose a policy governing the company's |
transactions with refaled parlies I
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|

i Define the thresholds for disolosure and approval of RPTs
and calegorize such transaclions according to those that are
considered de minimis or Iransaclions thal need not be
reporled or announced, those ihal need to be disclosed, and
those lhal need prior shareholder approval. Aggregate
ameunt of RPT within any twelve {(12) month period should be
considered for purposes of applying the thresholds for
disclosure and approval,

Establish a voling syslem whereby a majorly of non-related
party shareholders approve specific types of refaled party
lransactions in shareholders meelings

Indepandent Qireclors or audit commiltee review significant
RPTs

Transparent and consisleni in feporing RPTs such thal
summary of such lransactions are published in the company's
annual report

Full and limely disclosure to sharghoiders of zll material
fransactions with affilistes of Ihe controling shargholders,
directors or managemant

{2) Joinl Venlures

None

Independenl Diraclars or audil commitlee review significant
RPTs

Transparenl and consistent In reporting RPTs such that
summary of such transactions are published in the company's
annual report

Fuli and timely disclosure to shareholders of all material
ransactions with affifates of the controfling shareholders,
dhirecturs o managesment

{4) Enlities Under Common Conirol

Ingependent Directors or audit committee review significant
RPTs

Transparent and consistent in reporing RPTs such that
summary of such lransactlons are putlished in the company's
annuat rapor

Full and timely disclosure to shareholders of all maleral
transaclions with afiiliates of the controlling shareholders,
directors or management

{5) Subslantial Stockholders

Transpareni and consisient In reporting RPTs such thal |
summary of such transactions are published in the company's
annual reporl

Full and timely disclosure to shareholders of all material
lransactions wilh affliates of the controlling shareholders,
directors or management

{6) Oficers including spouse/children/siblings/parents

Transparert and consistenl in repording RPTs such thal
summary of such iransactions are published in the company's
annual repart

Full and timely disclosure to shareholders of all malerial
transactions wilh affiliates of the conlrolling shareholders,
directors or managemenl

Directors including spouse/childrenvsiblings/parents

Transparent and consistent in reporting RPTs such that
summary of 5uGh transaclions are published in the company’s
annual report

Full and timely disclosure to shareholders of all materfal
wransaclions_with affiliaies of lhe controliing sharehetdars.,
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dirsctors or management

@

Intertacking director relalionship of Board of Transpareni and consistenl In reporing RPTs such that
Diractors summary of such transactions are published in the company's
annual repod

Full and ftimely disclosure lo shargholders of all material
ransaclions with zffifiates of the controlling shareholders.
direclors or managemant

(b) Conflict of Interest - NONE

(i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Sharehoiders

{dentify any actual or probxable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5%

or more shareholders may be involved.

N/A

Detalls of Confiict of intarest {Actual or Probable)

MName of Directoris

Name of Officer/s

Name of Signlficant Sharehelders

(i) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any
possible conflict of interest between the company and/or its group and their
directors, officers and significant shareholders.

Directors/Officers/Significant Shareholders

Company

Develop and disclose a policy governing 1he company’s
transactions whh related partles

Define the lhresholds for disclosure and approval of
RPTs and categorize such lransactions according to
those hal are considered de minimis or (ransaclions
that peed nol be reporied or announced, those thal
neag to be disclosed, and lhose that need prior
shareholder approval. Aggregate amount of RPT wilhin
any lweltve (12) month petiod should be considered for
purposes of applying the thresholds for disclosure and
approval

Establish a voting system whereby a malorily of non-
related party shareholders approve specliic types of
related pary Iransactions in shareholders meetings

Independent ODireclors or audil committee review
significant RPTs

Transparent and consistent in reporting RPTs such that
summary of such lransactions are publisheg in lhe
company's annual repor

Full and timely disclosure lo shareholders of all material
transactions with affillales of 1he conirolling
shareholders, directors or management

Group

14



5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(a} Indicste, if applicable, any relaticn of a family, commercial, contractual or business
nature that exists between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), 1o the
extent that they are known to the company;

Names of Related Significant Type of Relationship Brief Description of the |
Shareholders Relatlonshlp |
Phoenix Petrofeum Haldings, Inc Majorily Shareholder |
Udenna Management & Resourcas Shareholder
Corp.
PPCD Nominea Corporallon Sharcholder
Udenna Corporallon Shareholder

(b} Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature
that exists between the holders of significant equity {5% or more} and the company:

n/a

Name of Sharehotders Type of Relationship Brief Description

(¢} Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and
strategic direction of the company:

Nama c¢f Shareholders % of Capital Stock Affected {Parties| Brief Description of the Transaction
Phaoenix Petroteurn Holdings, Subscription of 193,000,000 common
me. 17.5604% shares of Phoenix Petroleum
Philippines, In¢. |

6) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last
three (3) years in amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its
stockholders, and the corporation and third parties, inciuding regulatory authorities.

The Board has yet to establish and maintain an alternative dispute resolution
system In the corporation. So far there are no known conflict that exist or has ever
existed and experienced with the Company and stockholders.

For conflict with third parties, conflicts are privately and amicably resolved at

the first level and those that cannot be resolved, the Company observes the judicial
arbitration procedure that follows after all extrajudical means are exhausted.

15



Alternative Disputa Resolution Systam

Corporaticn & Stockholders

Corporation & Third Parties

Corporation & Regulatory Offices

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?

At the beginning of the year and every quarter thereafter,

2) Attendance of Direclors

Board Name Date of Nurmber of Nvmber of Meetings
Election Meatings Held Attended
During the %
Year

Chairman Domingo T. Uy 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%

President Dennis A, Uy 8 Mar 2012 5 § 100%

Member Jose Manuel R. 8 Mar 2012 s 5 100%
Quimson

CoO Romeo B. De 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%
Guzman

Com. Sec. Socorro Ermac 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%
Cabreros

Member 1.V. Emmanuel A, 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%
De Dios

Member Diana Pardo & Mar 2072 5 4 80%
Aguilar

Member Ricardo S. Pascua 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%

Member Monico V. Jacob 8 Mar 2012 5 4 80%

3) Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the
presence of any executive? /f yes, how many times?

No

4) s the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board
members? Please explain,

Yes for those corporate actions that need 2/3 vote but for quorum most,
mafority rules.

5) Access 1o Information
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(a) How many days in advance are board papers for board of directors meetings
provided to the board?

Five days before

(b) Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate
Secretary?

Yes

(c) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include
assisting the Chairman in preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of
directors, keeping directors updated regarding any relevant statutory and regulatory
changes, etc?
Yes. The corporate secretary is an officer of the corporation, a member of the
Board of Directors and part of its management team.

(d) Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial
practices? Please explain should the answer be in the negative.

Yes

{e) Committee Procedures
Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to
get information necessary to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of
different committees:

Yes O No

As a practice, it is the Corporate Secretary who furnishes them with the
information pertaining to the meeting and the Company. Any other information
needed is still coursed through the Corp. Sec.

Committes Deatails of the Procadures

Executive

Audit

Namination

Remuneration

Others {specify)
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8} External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external
agvice and, if so, provide details: None

Proceduras

Letails

7Y Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors {during its
most recent term) on existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the
company and the reason/s for the change:

Non

e

Existing Pelicies

Changes

Reason

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS

1) Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four
(4) most highly compensated management officers:

Remuneralion

Process CEO Top 4 Highest Paid Management
OHicars
(1) Fixed Industry standard bul on the low

Industry standard but on the low up to
mig

{2)

Variable
Remuneration

N/A

MNfA

jtcH

Per diem allowance

Standard Company Trave! Policy

Standard Company Travel Policy

Bonus

Aligned with Company Performance
Bonus Palicy which multiple is the same
as lhat of any olher Company Officers
ang Staff

Aligned with Company Performance
Bonus Policy which multiple is the same
as that of any other Company Officers
and Staff
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(5) Stock optiens and
other financial

Aligned wilth Company Performance
Bonus Policy which mullipls |5 the same

Same application as hat of other
officers and rank and file under the

ES0P paolicy

officers and rank and file under the

Instruments as that of any other Company Officers ESOP pohcy
and Staff
{8) Others (specify} Same applicalion as that of olher NIA

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company's policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation
package. Explain how the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is

calculated.
Remuneration Pollcy Structure of Compensation How Compansation Is
Packages Calcuiated
Executive The Company's execulives The Company's axeculives
Diractors are regular employees and ara regular employees and

are paid a compansalion
package of twelve (12}
months pay. They also
facaive performance
bonuses similarly 1o those of
lhe managerial, supervisory
and technical employees.

are paid a compensation
package of twelva (12)
months pay. They also
receive parformance
banusas similarly lo thase of
lhe managerial, suparvisory
and technical employees.

Nan-Executive
Directors

Member of lhe Board of
Director who are not
employees of the Company
are elecied for 2 period of
one {1} year. They recelve a
reasonable per diem on & per
meeting participation.

Mermber of the Board of
Director who are not
employees of the Company
are elected for a period of
one {1) year. They receive a
raasonable per diem on a per
meating pariicipalion.

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration
(fees, allowances, benefits in-kind and other emolumentis) of board of directors?
Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Remunearation Scheme

Date of Stockholders’ Approval

3) Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the
most recent year:
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Remunaration {tem

Exacutive Directors

Non-Executive Directors
{other thar Indegendent
Directors)

Independent Diractors

{a) Fixed
Remuneration

17.900.839.91

3,411,764 90

{b) Varnable
Remuneration

185,400,00.00

223.529.41

164,705.88

{c) PerDiem
Allowance

{d) Bonuses

(e} Stock Options
angior other
financial
inslruments

(i Others {specify)

2.019,748.02

Total:

Cther Benefits Exacutive Diractors Nan-Executive Director Independent
{other than Independent Directors
directors)
a) Advances
h)  Credit granied
Gy Pension
Plans/Contributions
d) Pension Plans,
Oibligations
incurred
) Life Insurance 27.600 9,200
Premlum
fy  Hospitalizaiion 23,667 .87 7,889.29
Plan
g) CarPlan
h}  Olhers {specify)
Total:
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4) Stock Rights, Options and Warrants

(a) Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company's Board of Directors
who own or are entitled to stock rights, options or warrants over the company's

shares:

None. The Company has an approved Employees' Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
but the same has yet to be implemented

Director's Name Number of Direct

Number of Indirect Number of Total % from
OptionfRights/Warrants | OptionfRights/Warrants Equivalent Capital Stock
Shares

(b} Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs
introduced, including the criteria used in the creation of the program. Disclose
whether these are subject to approval during the Annual Stockholders' Meeting:

N/A

fncentive Program

Amandmants

Date of Stockholdars’
Approval

5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time executive
directors and indicate the total remuneration received during the financial year:

Narne of Officer/Position

Total Remuaeration

Jogseph John L. Ong

Alan Raymond Zorrilla

Jose Victor Cruz

Edgardo A, Alerta

Chryss Alfonsus V. Damuy

FPhp 5,438,637
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E. BOARD COMMITTEES

1) Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key
responsibilities and the power/authority delegated to it by the Beard:

Commlttee No. of Members Committea | Functions | Kay Power
Charer Responsibilites
Executive | Non- Indepandent
Director Exacutive | Dlrector
(ED) Director {ID)
(NED)
Executive 4 Act on such
specific maiters
within the

competence of,
and as may be
delegaled by,
the Board of
Direclars

Report to the
Board in
summary form
all mattars acted
upon by il

Audit 1 i 1 Financial
Reporting

Inlemal Conirol
Inlgmal Audgit
External Audit
Compliance

Regular Reporls
l& the Board

Nomination 3 1 Review ang
evaluation of the
qualifications of
all persons
nominated 1o the
Board of
Direclors

Recommend
qualified
nominses for
election to lhe
Board

Remuneration 3 1 Eslabiish a
procedure for
development of
execulive
remungralion
packages

Provide
oversight ever
remuneralion of
senicr
management
ang other key
personnel

Others (specify) I
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(a) Executive Committee

2} Committee Members

Cffice Name Date of Ng. of No, of Length of
Appointment | Meetings Mestings % Sorvice in
Hetd Attended the
| Committee
Chairman Domings T. | & Mar 2012 5 5 100% [
Uy |
Member Deonis A 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%
{ED) Uy
Member Romeo 8. 8 Mar 2012 5 5 100%
{NED) de Guzman
Member {ID) ]
Member Socorro & Mar 2012 5 5 100%
Emag
Cabraros
{b) Audit Committee
Office Namae Date of No. of No. of Length of
Appointment | Meetings Meetings Yo Sorvice in
Held Atlanded tha
Commities
Chairman Monico 100% 5 4 80%
Jacob
Member Domingo T. 100% 5 5 100%
{ED) Uy
Member J.v, 100% 5 5 100%
{NED) Emmanuel
Ce Dios
Member (ID)
Member

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

All members of the Audit Committee have significant experience and

knowledge in business, audit and finance.

Cescribe the Audit Committee's responsibility relative to the external auditor.
The Audit Committee ensures the integrity of the external auditor. It

discloses all relevant information to it and makes certain that external auditor
has adeguate quality controls.
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(c) Nominations Commitiee

Offica Name Date of No, of No, of Langth of
Appeintment | Mestings Meetings % Sarvice In
Held Attanded the
Committee
Chairman JV 8 Mar 12 5 5 100%
Emmanugl
De Digs
Member Alan 8 Mar 12 5 5 100%
(ED) Raymond T.
Zorrllla
Member Diana Pardo | 8 Mar 12 3 4 80%
{NED} Aguilar
Member (ID)
Member Jose Manuel | 8 Mar 12 5 5 100%
R Quimson
(d) Remuneration Committee
Office Name Date of No. of No. of Length of
Appointment | Meetlngs Meetings % Service In
Held Attended the
Committes
Chairman Dennls A, 8 Mari2 5 5 100%
Uy
Member Oominge T. 8 Mar 12 5 5 100%
(ED) Uy
Member
(NED)
Member {1D) | Ricardo S B Mar 12 5 5 100%
Pascua
Member Jogseph 8 Mar 12 5 5 100%
John L. Ong
(e) Others (Specify)

Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the
Board of Directors:

N/A

Office

Mame

Data of
Appointment

No. of
Meetings
Held

No. of
Mastings
Attended

%

Length of
Servite in
the
Committes

Chairman

Member
(ED)

Member
{NED)

Member {ID)

Mernber
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3) Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the

reason for the changes:

Name of Committee Name Reason
Execulive Joseph John L. Ong Election last March 8, 2013
Audit Paul Dominguez Elaclion last March 8, 2013
Nominalion Cherylyn C. Uy Election last March 8, 2013

Alan Raymond T, Zomilla
Remuneration Justice Consuelo Ynares-Sanliago Eleclion lagt March 8, 2013
Others (specify)

4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed

during the year.

“Issues Addressed

Name of Commities Work Done
Executive
Audil Establishad an intemal audit unit
Mormination Selected new sets of directors

Remuneration

Reviewed remuneralion packages

Cthers (specify)

5) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each commitiee plans to undentake to address relevant
issues in the improvement cor enforcement of effective govemance for the coming year.

None

Name of Committee

Planned Programs

Issues to be Addressed

Executive

Audil

Momination

Remuneration

Olhers (specify)
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F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1) Disclose the following:

{a) Overall risk management philosophy of the company;

None. Risk management is currently undertaken by each business unit. The
Company has yet fo establish and institutionalize each internal procedures and
processes. To deter, mitigate and essentially manage potential risks, the
Company strictly requires transparency in all its affairs and dealings by making
the following imperative before any corporate project or action obtains Board
approval: full disclosure, assessment and evaluation through extensive
deliberation.

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management system and commenting on the adequacy thereof;

Not Applicabie

{¢) Period covered by the review,

Not Applicable

{d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors' criteria for
assessing its effectiveness; and

Not Applicable

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Not Applicable

2) Risk Policy

{a) Company
Give a general description of the company's risk management policy, setling out
and assessing the risk/s covered by the system {ranked according to pricrity}. along
with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Not applicable

Risk Exposura Risk Managemeant Folicy Objective
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(b} Group

Give a general description of the Group's risk management policy, setting out and
assessing the risk/s covered by the system (ranked according to priority}, along

with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Not applicable

Risk Exposure

RIsk Management Policy

Objective

(¢) Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

Risk to Mingrity Shareholders

Share diiution

3) Control System Sst Up

(a) Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main
issue/s faced by the company:

Risk Exposure

Risk Assessment (Monitoring &
Measurement Process)

Risk Management & Control
{Structures, Procedures, Actions
Taken)

Markel Risk

hMonitering of non-Philippineg peso
cash flows

Manitoring the dally movement of Lhe
market price of fuels and o0 some
extenl, using forward and other
similar contracts

tanage lhe Auctutation of the fuel
price

Credll Risk

Dreal only with creditworthy
counierparts

Liquidity Risk

Monitoring  of  scheduled  debl
servicing paymenls for  long-term
financial [abiliies as well as cash
outflows due In a day-to-day
busingss.

fMaintain cash and cash equivalents
lnvestmenl of excess cash in lime
deposils
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(b)Y Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main
issue/s faced by the company:

Risk Exposure

Risk Assassment (Monitoring &
Measurement Process)

Risk Managemant & Caontrol
{Structures, Procedurgs, Actions
Taken)

Market Risk tonitering of non-Philipping peso Manage the fiuctutation of the {uel
cash flows price
Moniloring the daily movement of the
market price of fuels and Lo some
extent, using forward and  other
! similar contracts
[ Credit Risk Deal only with creditworlhy
i counterpars
Liquidity Risk Moniloning  of  scheduled  debt | Maintain cash and cash equivalents

servicing payments for  long-lerm
financial liabililes as well as cash
outflows  dus In a dai-to-day
Dusiness.

Investment of excess cash in ime
deposils

(c) Commitiee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of
laying down and supervising these control mechanisms, and give details of its

functions:

CommitteafUnit

Control Mechanism

Cetails of its Functions

Audit Commiltea

fnternial Control

= Provide oversight over
managemenl’s a¢livities in
managing credit. market,
liquidity, operational, legal
and other risks of the

corporation

. Monilor and evaluate Lhe
adequacy and
effectiveness of the
Corporalion’'s internat

coniral  system, including
financial reporting controi
and information technolegy
secunly

+  Understand Ihe scope of
inlemal and  external
auditors’ review of intemal
conlral  over  financial
reporing, and  oblain
reports  on  significant
findings and
recommendations, togelher
with managamenl’'s
responses

Internal Audit

«  Review and approval of the
tnternal Audit Charter and
subseguent revisions
lherelo

«  Qrganize an inlema! audil
deparmenl and consider
the appoiniment of an
independent inlemal
auditor and the terms and
condilions of its
engagement and remgval
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Review the annual internal
audit plar {o snsure its
conformily with Lhe
objective of tha Camporation
Establish and identify the
reporting line of the Intsmal
Auditor 1o enable him lo
properiy fulflll his dutles
and responsibilities
Perform oversight funclions
over its inlemal and
external auditors

Review of reports of the
Internal Audilors and
regulalory agencies
Review the effectiveness of
internal audit function,
including compliance with
The Instilule of Inlernal
Audilors’ International
Professional Fractices
Framsawork for lmtemal
Auditing consisting of the
Definition of Intemal
Auditing, Code of Ethics
and the Standards

Externat Audl|

Recormmeand the
appointment  of Extemal
Auditor duly accredited by
Ihe SEC

Evaivale and deiermina ihe
non-audilt wark, if any, of
lhe External Awudilor and
review periodlcally the non-
gudit fees paid to the
Exdernal Augditer and to the
Corporation's overall
consultancy expenses
Review of repors of lhe
Exlemal  Audilors  and
reguialory agencies, whane
applicable, ensuring thal
managemenl is  laking
appropfigte corractive
actions in a limely manner,
Inciuding addrassing
intemal control and
compliance issues

Review the extemal
audilers’  proposed  audil
scops ang  approach,
including  coordination  of
audit effort wilh intarnal
audit

Review the performance of
the external auditors and
exarcise final approval on
the appointment ar
discharge of tha auditors
Review and confim the
independence  of  lhe
extemnal aughors by
oblaining stalements from
tha abditors an
relalionships beiween the
audilors and the company,
including nen-audil
services, and discussing
the relationships with the
auditors

Ensure that the
corporation’s External
Auditar should be rotated
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or the bhandling partner
should be changed every
five {5) years or eariler

Compiiance

Coordinate, monitor and
fagilltate compliance with
laws, rules and regulations
Review the effectiveness of
the system for menilaring
compliance with laws and
regulations and lhe results
of management’s
lnvestigation and follow-up
{including dlsciplinary
action) of any instances of
compliance

Review the findings of any
examinalions by regulatory
agencies and any auditor
obsarvations

Review the process for
communicaling the code of
conduct lo company
personnel and for
monitoring cormpliance
therewith

Obtain regular updates
from management and
company legal counsel
regarding complianca
matiers

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

1) Internal Control System

Disclese the following information pertaining to the internal controt sysiem of the

company.

(a) Explain how the internal contro! system is defined for the company,

Internal control refers to the processes designed to provide reasonable
assurance about the realization of the following objectives of the Company:

> Reliabllity and Integrity of financial reporting;

» Accomplishment of established goals and targets for QOperations;

> Effective and efficient use of resources;

¥» Safeguarding of assets;

» Compliance with relevant policies, procedures, laws and regulations,

(b) A staterment that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
controt system and whether they consider them effective and adequate;

No review conducted by Board of Directors or Audit Committee yet, Audit
report from inception (2010} up to December 2012 was submitted to the Audit
Committee last March 8, 2013 during the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting

(c) Period covered by the review:

n/a

(d} How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors' criteria for assessing
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the effectiveness of the internal control system; and

n/a

() Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

n/a

2) Internal Audit

(a) Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details
of the internal audit function

Role

Scops

Indicate
whether ri-
houge or
Quisource
Internal Audit
Funstion

Name of Chief
Internal
Auditorfauditing
Firm

Reporting
Process

Evaluating the
Company’s
govemance
processes
including ethics-
related programs.:

Company and
subsidianes

In-house

Audil Manager

Audil Commitlee |

Performing an
objective
assessmaenl of Lhe
effectivenass of
risk managemant
ang intemal control
framework,
identifying risk
gxposures and
recommending
stralagles to
control them;

Systematically
analyzing and
evaiuating
business
processes and
associated
controls:

Providing
Information, as
appropriate,
ragarding
instances of fraud,
cormuption,
unethical behavigr
and irregularilies

Company and
subsidiaries

Par busingss unit

Per case

In-house

ln-house

In-house

Audil Manager

Audit Manager

Audil Manager

Audil Commitiae

Reporis sent 10
BU Head, CEC,
Audit Committee

Report senl to
HR, Legal ang
BU Head

(b) Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the
accounting/auditing firm or corporation to which the internal audit function is
outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?
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Yes. The Audit Committee Charter ciearly states that it is the responsibility
of the Audit Committee to organize an internal audit department and consider
the appointment of an independent internal auditor and the terms and
conditions of jts engagement and removal.

(c} Discuss the internal auditor's reparting relationship with the audit committee.
Does the internal auditor have direct and unfetiered access 1o the board of
directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties and personnel?

Yes. The Audit Committee Charter also states that the Audit Committee has
the responsibility to establish and identify the reporting line of the Internal
Auditor to enable him to properly fulfill his duties and responsibilities. The
Internal Audit functionally reports directly to the Audit Committee, The Audit
Committee also ensures that, in performance of the work of the Internal
Auditor, he shall be free from interference by outside parties.

{d) Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff {including
those employed by the third party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

Name of Audlt Staff Reason |
Adrian Lloyd Tan \Work, Related Issues |
Florence Fernandez Career Shift
Murigl Lacida Work Relalad Issues
Shara Mae Porlero Career Shifl

(e) Progress against Plans, issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit's progress against plans, significant issues, significant
findings and examination trends.

Progress Againsi Plans Generally, audit activities are allgned with the plans
set al the beginning of the fiscal year.
Issues Major issue noled is thal most of the company's

business operations lack standard policies or manuals
il would serve as guidelines in the day-te-day
business gperalions

Findings Some key controls or processes are nol properly

documented which somelimes led to the difficully n

validating if the controls are in place and was

consislenily applied.

‘ Examination Trends Recommendations were generally accepted wilh
sufficient priorily.

[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as
an internal control review cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:

1) Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings ("examination trends")
based on single year resuit and/or year-to-year results;
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8) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis.)

{f) Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been
established by the company and the resuit of an assessment as to whether the
established controls, policies and procedures have been implemented under the
column "Implementation.”

L Pollcies & Procedures implemantation
Annual Audil Plan and Risk jmplemenled
Assessmeant
Audil Process Implemented
-Planning
-Fleldwork
-Reporting
-Follow-up
(Governance and consuliing Aclivilies For Implamentalign
Quality Assurance and Improvement Program Implemented
Cuaztily Assurance Procedures
-Professional Davelopment
-Administrative duties regacding records
maintenance and reiention

(g) Mechanism and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence
of the auditors, financial analysts, investment banks and rating agencies (example,
restrictions on trading in the company's shares and imposition of internal approval
procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
external auditor may provide to the company).

Auditors FInancial Analysts Invesimant Banks Rating Ageacias
{\nternal and
External)

The Audit
Committee shall
disallow any non-
audit work that will
conflict with his
dulies as an
External Auditor or
may pose threat to
his indegendenca
The Audil
Committee shall
review and confirm
the independance
of the extemal
auditers by
obialning
statemenls from
the auditors on
relationships
between the
auditors and lhe
campany,
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including non-audit
services, and
discussing the
relationships with
the auditors
Internal Audilor
shall not
participale in any
activity or
relationship that
may imgair or be
presurned to
impair their
unblased
assessmenl. This
participation
includas those
aclivilies or
relalionships that
may be in confiict
with the interests
of the
organization.

An Internal Auditor
must nol perform
audils under the
faliowing
instancas:

-Any situation thal
involves a mamber
of the auditor's
immediate famity

- Any aclivily that
th& suditor
previously
performed or
supervised untess
a reasonable
pericd {at least 1
year) has slapsed.
- Any activity to
which the auditor
previously
provided advisory
services unless a
rgasonable period
{at least 1 year)
has elapsed.

- Any activity that
the auddor has
aulhority over or
fias responsibility
for any situation In
which gther
conflict of inlerast
or biag is present
of may reasonably
be inferred.

{h) State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEQ) who will have to attest o
the company's full compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such
confimation must state that alt directors, officers and employees of the company
have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as mandated by the
Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance,

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS
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1) Disclose the company's policy and activities relative to the following:
Policy Activities
Customers’ weliare Company has comprehansive
Customer Service FPolicy and
Ethics
Suppligricontractor seiection | Company has a comprehensive
practice Purchasing Policy and Eihics
Environmenially-fiendly value | The <Company practlces its
chain Corporale Social Respansibility 1o
adopied communities through the
Company's Foundation
Communily injeraclion Phoenix Philippines Foundation, | EDUCATION:

2)

Inc. works with communilies to
enhance their educalign,
environment, well being, and
dignily. We have inltialed and
supperted programs thal, in small

Adapt-a-School

Phoenix Livelihood Trafning
Program (ALS)

c. Book Donations/Phoanix

am

Library
but meaninglul slaps, improve the d,  Scholarships 16 Phoanix
lives of people and preserve our Employses

natural resources

This commitment to  fueling
people’s lives for better fulures is
exemplified lhrough our programs
that empower people, protect the
environment, improve health, ang
reduce suffering. Thess
inttiatives, as well as fulure ongs,
are built on our vision lo be an
Indispensable pardner o everyone
whose lives we touch.

HEALTH & SAFETY:

a. Blood-Letling

b, Maedical and Dental
Missions

¢ Mindanac Heart Fund

d Donatlon to St. Luke's
Medical Center

&. Children's Ward and
Phoenix Childran’s Play
Comer

f. Donatlon of Traffic Vesis

Anti-corruplion  prograromes  3nd
procadures

Company has in place a
warkplace development program
lhal may dater possible corruption
among stakeholders

Safeguarding credilors’ righls

Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section
or sustainability report/section?

Yes

3} Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

{a) What are the company's policy for its empioyees' safety, health, and

welfare?

The company provides HMQ card for health benefits, annual
sports fest, zumba/energy dance twice a week, basketball games every
week, anti-flu vaccination every year, annual physical exam and drug
testing. There are random blood sugar tests done quarterly and regular
blood pressure monitoring for employees daily.
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(b} Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

(c ) State the company's training and development programmes for its

employees.

TRAINING PROGRAMS

Technical

No. of Hours

No. of
Participants

Period

1. SGV Tax Updales
Seminar

Jan-13

2. Effective
Cotleclion
Strategles and
Receivable
Management

3. Powerful

Presentation Skills

24

Feb-13

4, Effective
Performance
Coaching

16

18

Feb-13

5. Training the
Trainars

Feb-13

6. Cradit
invesligation
Seminar

Mar-13

7 Brand Heaith
Cheack Seminar

16

Mar-13

8. Expenditures
Taxation: A
Coemprehensive
Seminar to
Achieve Tax
Compliance in the
Local Accounls
Payable Process

Mar-13

9. Stock Trading
Saminar: Mangun
on Markeats: The
PSE idarket
Strategy

Mar-13

10, Impon-Export
Procedure and
Documentation

Apr-13

i1, Simplified and
Shorcul
Technigues on
Financial
Statement
Analysis

May-13

12. Import-Export
Procedure and
Documentation

Apr-13

13. Simplified and
Shortcut
Techniques cn
Financiai
Statemenl
Analysis

May-13

Total:

136

40
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Safety No. of Hours No. of Period
Participants
1. Safely & Securily 8 160 January 2013

Origntation

2. Defensive Driving 8 42 May 2013

4. Awviation Fusls 8 22 May 2013
Handling

Total: 24 224

fI— -

Management No. of Hours No. of Period
Participants

i, Effective 16 | 19 May 2013
Performance
Coaching

2. MARINE FUEL 16 2 November 2012
MANAGEMENT
COURSE

3. Team 24 3 December 2012
Building/Tralning
Development

4, CORPORATE 8 1 March 2092
COMMUMCATION
S

§. Comgpensaticn and 8 1 April 2013
Benefils: Trends
and Challenges
{Re-run)

6, Managing Change 18 21 June 2013
and Transition
Workshop

Total: &8 47

|

(d) State the company's reward/compensation policy that accounts for the
performance of the company beyond short-term financial measures

The company grants Christmas bonus when company’s
performance is very good, In 2013, there was initial offer of stock
options for all regular employees as of March 1, 2013. However, full
implementation has yet to be made.

3) What are the company's procedures for handling complaints by employees

concerning illegal (including corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how
employees are protected from retaliation.

Whenever an employee complains of illegal and unethical
hehavior, due process is followed by PPPI. A notice to explain is served to
the concerned person and sufficient perfod is given for him/her to reply.
Once the explanation is submitted, HR will schedule an admin hearing. The
committee that will hear the case is composed of 3 Business Unit Heads
(with rights to decide) and the presence of the concerned person’s BU Head
will also be there to validate or enlighten facts/documents. The compiainant
will be scheduled first and then the concerned employee fater, Based on the
merits of the case, the committee will endeavor to make a decision after the
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meeting. Once a decision is made, the committee will explain to the
accused that PPPI will protect the complainant from his/her retaliation by
closely monitoring the work environment and random interviews.

|. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure

(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more

Sharehalder Number of Shares Percant Beneficial Ownar
Phoenix Petroleum 380,035,100 42% Phoenix Petroleumn
Holdings, Inc. Heldings. In¢.

Udenna Management & 196,093,649 22% Udenna Managemeni &
Resources Corp. Resources Corp.

PCD Nominge Corp (Fil} 188,163,935 21% PCD Nominee Corp {Fil)
Udenna Corporalion | 93.129.821 11% Udenna Corperatien

Name of Senior Number of Direct Shares Number of Indirect % of Capital Stock
Management shares/through name of
record owner
Joseph John L. 282,625 0.03%
Qng
Chryss Alfensus 54,600 0.01%
V. Damuy
Edgardo A. Alerta 245,004 0.03%
Alberto D. Alcid 46,481 0.01%
Rebecca Pllar C. 114,195 0.01%
Calerio
Gigl Q. Fuensalida 54,600 0.01%
Reynaldo A, Phala 27,300 0.00%
TOTAL

2) Does the Annual Report disclose the following:

Koy risks Yes
Corporate objectlves Yes
Flnancial performance indicators Yes
Non-finangial perferrmance indlcators Yas
Dividend policy Yes
Detalls of whistle-blowing pellcy Yes

date of first appointment, relevant experlance,
and any other directorships of listed
companies) of directors/commissionars

Biographical detalls (at least age, gualifications, | Yes

programme attended by each
director/commissioner

Training and/or centinuing education Yes

member of the board of
directors/icommisslonars

Number of board of directors/commissioners Yes
meatings held during tha year

Attendance detalls of each Yes
directoricommisslaoner in respect of mastings

held

Detaiis of remuneration of the CEQ and each Yes
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Should the Annual Report not disclose any of ihe above, plea

the nondisclosure.

af|External Auditor's fee

The following lable s
services renderad by the Comp

Audit and Reiated Fees

-

se indicate the reason for

els oul the aggregale fees billed for each of he last three (3) fiscal years for professional

any's external auditors.

Amount In Thousands Php

—

n ——T afa3 |
Particulars Nalure 2010 1 2011 2012
Punongbayan and Araullo Audit of FS for the year
2008 - Parenl and
Subsidiaries
Punongbayan and Araullc Audit of FS for the year 2,098
2009 - Parent and
Subsidiaries
Audit of FS for the year
Punongbayan and Aravllo 2010 —Parent and Subsidiries 3.553.19
Audit of £S for the year
Punongbayan and Acaullo 2011 - Parent and 462.00
Subsidlaries 2.110.06
S —
Audil of F3 for lhe year &30
Punengbayan and Araullo 2012 - Parent ang
Subsidiaries
Sub-total 2,098 4,015.19 2,740.08
Tax Advisory Services
Sycip, Gorres and Velayo Tax Consullancy 88 122.34 119.94 4
Sub-total 88 122.34 119,94
1 - |
All Other Fees

L
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Professionatl Fee for BOI
Enlia Accouniing Office Regisiralion of Depot 2118
Facililigs
Sub-total 211.8 .
GRAND TOTAL 2,397.8 4,137.54

4) Medium of Communication
List down the models of communi
information.

cation that the company is using for disseminating

The Company has a communications strategy to promote effective communication
with shareholders. We have our company website: www.phoenixfuels.ph wherein
Our stockholders can view disclosures, annual and quarterly reports, list of stations,
events, products, management teams and CSR activities,

5) Date of release of audited financial report: April 12, 2013

6) Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Business Oparations Yes
Flnancial sfatements/reporis [current & prior Yes
|_years
Matarials provided in briefings to analysts and Yes
media
Shargholding structure Yes
Group corporale structura Tas
Downloadable annual report Yes
Notice of AGM andfor EGM No
Company's constltution (Company’s by-laws, NO
memorandum and articles of agsociation)

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason
thereto.

We are currently upgrading our system and such information are still in the
process of being added to the website,

7) Disclosure of RPT

RPT Refationship Nature Value
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When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner
that will safeguard the interest of the company and in particular of its minority
shareholders and other stakeholders?

The Company develops and discloses a policy governing the
company’s transactions with related parties in the Nofes to
Financial Statements.

The Company established a voting system whereby a majority of
non-related party shareholders approves specific types of related
party transactions in shareholders meetings.

There is transparency and consistency In reporting its RPTs, the
summary of which are published in the company’s annual report
There is a clear policy In dealing with material non-public
Information by company insiders.

The Independent Directors play an Important role in reviewing
significant related party transactions.

Fuli and timely disclosure to shareholders of all material
transactions with affiliates of the controlling shareholders,
directors or management

J. RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

1) Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders' Meetings

(a) Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders'
Meeting as set forth in its By-laws.

Quorum Required | Majorily of the outstanding capltal stock

| must be present or represented

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

System Used

Voling in parson of in proxy |

Description

+ Under the rule, voting may be done by ballots or viva voce.

s In both procedures, we have made the proper arrangement.

« Ballots are ready in case voting by ballots is necessary. Ballots shall be distributed
upon registration.

s We used ID's with control numbers during voting instead of hand raising. Upon
registration, at stockholders shall register their name and the votes they represent.
They will be given IDs with control number, By the time the meeting starts, we shall
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have determined the number of shares present and being represented either
personally or by proxy.
¢ During the voting, stockholders will be asked to raise their ID's instead of hands.

Only negative votes and abstain_votes shall be counted.

External Audit will

determline and take note of the control numbers who voted No and Abstained.

These votes shall be entered in a prepared template that automatically deducts the
negative and abstain votes to get the positive votes,

{c) Stockholders' Rights

list any Stockholders' Rights concerning Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting
that differ from those laid down in the Corporation Code.

None

Code

Stockholders' Rights under The Corporation

Stockhojders' Rights NOT under The

Corporation Code

Dividends
Declaration Dote Record Date Payment Data
Dividend
Php 0.10 Cash Div, February 8, 2012 March 23, 2012 April 23, 2012
50% Stock Div February 8. 2012 hMarch 26, 2012 April 26, 2013

(d) Stockholders' Participation

1. State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the

including the procedure on how
stockholders and other parties interested may communicate directly with the
Chairman of the Board. individual directors or board committees. Include in the
discussion the steps the Board has taken to sclicit and understand the views of
the stocknolders as well as procedures for putting forward proposais at
stockholders' meetings.

Annual/Special Stockholders’

Meeting,

2.  Measures Adopled

3. Communfcation Procedure

@

8. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate

decisions regarding:

Any changes in the matters below are taken up during the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting. The changes in these matters are made known ahead of time through
notices of agenda specifying the changes and sent individually via postage to
each of the stockholder.
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a. Amendments to the company's constitution

b. Authorization of additional shares

¢. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale
of the company

9. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of
notices to the AGM where itermns to be resolved by shareholders are taken up?

Yes.

a. Date of sending out notices: Feb/ 15, 2013
b. Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting: March 8, 2013

10. State, f any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders'
Meeting.(last 8 September 2013)

A Stockholder requested elaboration on the decline of the net results for 2nd
quarter of 2012 vs. the net results of the 2nd quarter of 2011. The Chairman
referred the question to the Chief Operating Qificer, Romeo de Guzman. Mr,
de Guzman explained that the decline was attributed to the global decline of
fuel price during the second quarter of this year. The decline of fuel prices
ate up whatever was earned during the first quarter. There are also external
factors to consider such as the Philippine economy as well as other foreign
economies  However, the third quarter is expected to give good margins and
if it continues unt] the fourth quarter, most likely, the year will end on a
positive note.

The Stockholder sought clarification that the figure or number pertaining to
the beginning balance of the retained earnings for June 2012 which is Php
1402,617415.00 does not tally with the ending balance of the retained
earnings of Jun3 2011 which is Php 1,565,711,759.00. M. Damuy pointed and
clarified that comparative figures pointed have different basis for beginning
balances such as: for June 2012, the basis for the beginning balance is January
2012 while the beginning balance for Jun 2011 had its basis on the beginning
balance of January 2011. The comparative figures shown and prescribed by
the SEC and the PSE is for June 2012 and June 2011 and not June 2012 and
December 2011.

A Stockholder inquired on the meaning of warrants and what are its
advantages and effects to the particular transaction with BDO. The Chairman
referred the question to Mr. Phala who explained that warrants under
financial terms are derivative security that gives the holder the right to
purchase securities (usually equity) from the issuer at a specific price within a
certain ime frame. Further, he explained that warrants are often included in
a new debt issue as a "sweetener” to entice investors. Hence, he proceeded to
point cut that the advantages of warrants in this particular transaction is: (1)
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the entry of the SM/BDO group will give the Company a seal of good
housekeeping and improve credit standing in and access to the capital
markets as well as possibly push up PNX price; (2) there are [ikewise
potential synergies created due to possible access to best practices, revenues
from the SM/BDO group.

A Stockholder sought clarification if there was any due diligence conducted
on Chelsea Shipping considering that the latter has a negative working
capital. The Chairman referred the question to Mr. Damuy who confirmed
that due diligence was conducted on Chelsea Shipping. In fact, this was part
of the valuation process and included in the Fairness Valuation Report
conducted and submitted, respectively, by Penta Capital. On the matter of
the negative working capital, Mr. Damuy further explained that Chelsea
Shipping was acquiring a number of vessels to add to its fleet which explains
for the increase in its PPE(property, plant and equipment) entry. Mr. Damuy
further justified that given the fact that Chelsea Shipping is a service
company, working capital will be more focused or concentrated on fuels and
services as against a trading company which will have to include huge
inventories,

A Stockholder inquired about further plans on Chelsea Shipping after the
acquisition such as its dissoludon and merging its operation with the
Company and plans on its possible listing with the PSE. Mr. Damuy
elaborated that Chelsea will be operating as a wholely owned subsidiary of
Phoenix Petroleum as the intenton is likewise to continue to serve other
clients of Chelsea. On the matter of listing, Mr. Damuy clarified that listing
with the PSE will depend on the opportunities in the future that will be
presented to the company, Chelsea.

A Stockholder inquired that since the investment is substantial what is the
main plan behind the acquisition and also the reason behind the acquisition
The Chairman again referred the
question to Mr. Damuy who elaborated that acquisition of Chelsea will

when Chelsea is already an affiliate.

further strengthen the balance sheet of Phoenix Petroleum, increase the
market capitalization enticing more local and possibly foreign investors to
invest in the Company.

11. Result of Annual/Special Stockhelders' Meeting's Resclutions

12. Resolution 13. Approving 14, Digsenting 15. Abstaining
| a. Proposed Amendmentof | 830,583,191 shares o none none
Article Il of the Articles of | 100% of present and
Incorporation enlilled {o vota
b. Proposed Amendgment of | 830,593,791 shares or none 830,693,191 shares
Arlicle V1 of the Antigles of | 100% of present and of 100%
Incorpoiation and entitled to vole




Ameandrment of Article lll
Section 1(a) of the
Corporation's By-laws,
poth increasing the
Comgosition of the Board
of Dirgctors from nine (9)
19 eleven (11) members

c. Proposed Issuance of | 827,601,191 shares or none none
Php180,000,000.00 100% of prasent and
warranis in relalion to the | eniilled to vote
issuance of Php | {Preferred shares of
500,600,000 00 2,992 000 was excluded
Cenvertlble Notes to BDO

| Unibank, Inc

d. Proposed Acquisition of 830,593,191 shares
100% shares of stock in or100% of present and
Chelsea Shipping Corp. antitled o vole

e. ‘Waiver of Rights offerlng 74,848,540 shares or 100% | none nong
raquirement of the PSE present and entitled 1o vole
among minaority {maijority of the minority
shareholders present of shareholders)
represenied

24. Date of publishing of the result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for

all resolutions:

{e) Modifications

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting
regulations during the most recent year and the reason for such modification:

Modifica

tions

Reason of Moedlfication

None

(f) Stockholders' Attendance

(i) Detalls of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting Held:

Type of Names of Date of Voting % of SH | % of 8K Total % of
Meeating Board Meating Procedure(by poli, Attendin | Attendin SH
Members! show of hands, etc.} giln gin attendanc
Officers Person Proxy ]
Present
Special 5 6 Sepl 2012 | Stockholders are | .58% 88.46% 89.04%
Stockholders given IDS wath control
Meetng nuMbers. The
conirol numbars per
D has a

corresponding  antry
In the database. Each
ID are color coded:
blug fonis represent
the minorly common
and preferred
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sharesholders  while
the red fonis
reptesent Ihe major
stockholders,
affiliales, directors
and officers. Thus,
when a motion is
under wvotation, the
Chairman  shaill be .
asKing lhe
stockholders/proxies
to raise the IDs and
the external auditor.
Punongbayan and
Araulle  shall  be
tasked Lo record the
votes and  counl
lherm

(i) Does the company appoint an independent party {(inspectors) to count
and/or validate the votes at the ASM/SSMs?

YES

(iii) Do the company's common shares carry one vote for one share? If not,
disclose and give reasons for any divergence to this standard. Where the
company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting rights
altached to each class of shares.

No. Stockholders are given IDS with control numbers. The control numbers per
ID has a corresponding entry In the database. Each ID are color coded: biue fonts
represent the minority common and preferred sharesholders while the red fonits
represent the major stockholders, affiliates, directors and officers. Thus, when a
motion is under votation, the Chairman shall be asking the stockholders/proxies to
raise the IDs and the external auditor, The external auditor shall be tasked to
record the votes and count them. Only negative votes_gnd abstain votes shall be
counted. External Audit will determine and take note of the control numbers who
voted No ond Abstained. These votes shall be entered in a prepoared template that
automatically deducts the negative ond abstain votes to get the positive votes.

The stockholders of the Corporation shall have no pre-emptive right to subscribe
to any issues or dispositions of shares of any class.

The new class of PREFERRED SHARES shall have the following features:

i}, Non-convertible into common shares;

) Non participating in any other corporate activities or other further
dividends, non-voting except In cases specified by law;

i) No pre-emptive rights to any issue of the Company’s share but shall enjoy
preference over the holders of common shares as to distribution of net
assets in the event of dissolution or liguidation and in the payment of
dividends at a specified rate. The Board of Directors shall determine its
issued value at the time of issuance and shall determine its dividend rates
and the dividends shall be pald cumulatively;
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iv) The preferred shares shall be redeemable at the Company’s option under
such terms as the Board of Directors may provide af the time of Issuance,
It shall also be re-issuable when fully redeemed.

(g} Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the
Annual/Special Stockhoiders' Meeting.

Company's Paolicies

Execution and acceptance of proxies

Notary

Nol required 1o be notarized

Submission of Notary

Not required

Several Proxies

Validity of Proxy

Praxies executed abroad

Invalidated Proxy

Invalidaled when revoked by the stockholder at any lime
befare ihe right granted is exercised or If the stocknolder
altends Ihe meeting In person and expresses intention lo
wole in person.

Validation of Proxy

A forum for the validation of proxies chaired by the Secretary
or Assistanl Secrelary and atlended by the Slock Transfer
Agent convengd al least five (5) days before any meelings.

Viglation of Proxy

{h) Sending of Notices

State the company’s policies and procedure on the sending of notices of

Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting.

Policies

Procedure

Timely sanding oui of notices to stockholders

Provide all shareholders wilh the natice and agenda of the
annual general meeling {(AGM) al least Lhiry (30) days before
a regular meeling and hwenty {20} days before a spectal
meaeting

—

{i) Definitive information Statements and Management Report

Numbar of Stockholders entitled to receive
Definitive Information Statements and
Management Report and Other Materlais

124 including beneficial owners

Date of Actual Distribulion of Definitive
information Staternent and Management Report
and QOther Materials held by market
participantsicertain beneficial owners

February 15, 2013

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive
Information Statement and Management Report
held by Steckholders

February 15, 2013

were provided hard copies

State whether CD format or hard copies were Yes
distributed
if yes, Indicale whether requesting stockholders | Yes
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(k) Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting include the following:

Each resolution o be taken up deals with onty one Yes
itemn.

Profiles of directors {al least age, qualification, dale Yes
of first appointment. experience. and directorships in
other listed companies) nominated for etection/
re-election.

The audilors to be appointed or re-appoinled. Yes

An explanalian of the dividend policy, if any dividend | Yes
i3 lo be declared

The amount payaiie for final dividends. Yes
Documents reguired for proxy vote. Yes

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason
thereto.

2) Treatment of Minority Stockholders

(a) State the company's policies with respect to the treatment of minority
stockholders.

Policies Implementation

Cne share, one vole principle Ensure thal all shareholders of the same class are treated
equally with respect to voling rights. subscription rights and
transier rights

Effective, secure and efiicien! voling sysiem

L

{b) Do minerity stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of
directors?

Yes
K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM
1} Discuss the company's external and internal communications policies and how

frequently they are reviewed.

The Company maintains a communications strategy promoting effective
communication with all its stakeholders that is reviewed on a regular basis.

Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. ldentify the
committee wilh this responsibility, if it has been assigned to a commitiee.

The Company has an External Corporate Affairs unit that reviews and approves
all company announcements.
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2) Describe the company's investor relations program including its communications
strategy to promote effective communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders
and the public in general. Disclose the contact details (e.g. telephone, fax and email)
of the officer responsible for investor relations.

Investor relations are usually coursed through the finance department
particularly under the Office of the Chief Finance Officer, The CFO schedules a
regular investors' briefing to update investors on the latest projects of the
Company and these are usually disclosed ahead of time for the information of

the investors and stakeholders.

Details

{t} Objectives

{2) Principles

{3) Modes of Communication

[4) Investors Relations Officer

3) What are the company's rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate
control in the capital markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and
sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to
evaluate the fairness of the transaction price.

L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be underiaken by the company.

Initiative

Beneficiary

Environment

Kadayawan Tree Planung

Davao CHy Water District

Adopt an Eagle Program

Philippine Eagle Foundalion, Ing.

Sea of Life

Local Government of Island Garden Cily of Samal

Mangrove Tree Planling

Residenls of the coastal are of Brgy. Bunawan, Davao City

National Tree Planting

Rasidenls of lhe Davag River

International Coastal Clean-up

Raslganls of coastal area in Coaco. Davao City

Tilapia Dispersal

Residenls of coaslal area in Coaco. Davao City

Supported the Earih Hour Activily held al

SM Lanang Premies Fountain Court

Tree Growing Activity with NBA Cares, 500 seadlings
of narra woods

Davao Cily Waler District

Bacelod Tree Growing, 500 seedlings

Residents of Brgy. Minoyan, Murcia, Bacoled City

Humanitarian

| 5th Phoenix Bloodieliing Activity

Red Cross of lhe Philippings

Joint Bloodletting wilh Torll Lodge # 208

Red Cross of ihe Philippines

Phoenix in Panneship with the Local Govi of
Zamboanga

Red Cross of Ihe Philippines

Phoenix in Partnership with ABS-CBN in Dugong
Kapamilya

Rad Cross of the Philippines

Phoenix in Partnershin with UMBN (True Blood)

Red Cross of the Philippings

Phoenix Joins and Supports Maritime Bloodlatling

Red Cross of the Philippings

Aclivity
Happy Trip Day Tricycle Drivers anhd Operalors in Tagum Cily
Operation Tuli Teenagers in Bacolod City

Madical Mission to Ihe Victims of Typhoon Pablo

Viclims of Typhaon Pable

Disasler Relisf Gparation lo the Victims of Typhoon

Victims of Typhoon Pablo
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|_Pablo

Annual Christmas Gift-Giving

Indigeni Children's in Bo. Obrere gnd Agdao

["Phoenix Indigent Chiiidren’s Hearl Program

Indigent Children’s with rheumatic heart problem

Phosnix Children's Corner

Pedia patients of SPMC

Medical and Denlal Mission {gensan)

Residems of Brgy. Bawug. General Sanlos City

Red Crass of the Philippines

"Blood is Life" Blood Letting Aclivity a1 Gaisanon Mall
Supported the “Liter of Light Project” with JCI CAVAQ

Residents of Brgy, Bucana, Davao Cty

Supported the "Deworming and Vil-A Project” with JCI
DAVAD

Puplis of Paima Gil Elementary School

Turned Ower of 200,000 worth of roofing malerial to
Comval for the public schools with JC1 DAVAD

Victims of Typhaon Pablo

Pannered with Davaa Medical Socrety for the “run for
your life"

Davao Medical Society

Supporied and sponsorad the Open Heart Surgerical
Operalion of Julio Azriel Gavan

[ Julio Azriel Cavan

2nd Kapamilya Bicod Letling Activily wilh ABS CBN

Red Cross of the Philippines

Pnoenix- Sakya Medical and Dental Mission

Residents of Brgy. Lapu Lapu, Davao City

_ Education

Phoenix Libraries

Adopted Schools {Lapu-Lapu E.S., SPED Bangkal, San
Rogue E.S., V. Hizon E.S.. Dofia Asuntion E.S .}

'_Brlgada Skwela

Adopted Schools (Lapu-Lapu £.5.. SPED Bangkal, San
Rogue E.5., V. Hizon £.8., Dofia Asuncion E.S.}

Phoenix Livelihood Program thru ALS

DepEd ALS at F. Bangoy Elementary School

Phoenix Araw ng Dahaw “Takbo para sa
Kinabogkasan” run

Adopled Schools (Lapu-Lapu E.S., SPED Bangkal, San
Rogue E.S., V. Hizon E.S.. Defia Asuncion E.5.)

k-12 Nall Care Program

DepEd

Turned Qver of Suppan lo ALS (3 pes welding

DapEd ALS at F. Bangoy Elementary School

maching, 2 et compulers)
Turned Over of books 1o SPED Bangkal Phoenix
Library 20,000 worth of books

SPED Bangkal

Libreng Gupit Activity

F. Bangoy Elsmentary Scheof Pupils

Supporied the moving on progeam of DAHES and
donated rfibbons, cetiificales and medals 1o

Graduating pupils from Deda Asuncion Hizon Elementary
School

Supported the moving on program of V. Hizon and
donated ribbens. cerlficales and medals to

Graduating pupils from Vicente Hizon Elementary School

Supporied the moviny on program uf San Rogue and
donated ribbons, ceriificates and medals lo

Gradualing puplls from San Rogue Elementary School

Supported the moving on program of Lapu Lapu and
donated ribbons. ¢ertificales and madals to

Graduating pupiis from Lapu Lapu Elementary School

Supported and Sponsored the Bangkaton Race (2
boxes pnx Lubncants 3 pack pnx buling, 25pes pnx
shirt, 500 liters of pnx diesel}

Resident of Brgy. Bucana, Davao City

Turned Qver of Dunationi 10 SPED, SAN ROQUE,
LAPU LAPU, DAMES, V. HIZON and F. Bangoy E.S.

Adopled Schoals {Lapu-Lapu E.S., SPED Bangkal, San
Rogue E.S.. V. Hizon E.S., Dofia Asuncion E.S. and F.
Banggy)

Team Phoanix Annuai Brigada Eskwela al F. Bangoy
£.5.

Adopled School (F. Bangoy Elementary School}

Other Corporate Acthvity

Supported the Phoenix Open Golf Toumament

for the advocacies of the Phoenix Philippines Foundation. Inc.

Supported the 51h Phoenix Maralhgn

for the advocacies of the Phocnix Philippines Foundation, Inc.

PHOENIX-DCPO 151 Tak Hang Cup

Davao City Police Otfice

Supporled 1he "New Born Screening Awareness Fun
RUR", Fun run of Bukidnon Provingial Hospilal

Bukidnon Provincial Hospital

Supperied and Sponsored the PNX-DCPO Summer
Basketball Tournament 2013

Davao City Police Officers

Annual Support 1o Our Lady of Victory

Our Lady of Viclory Parish

Supporled and Spensored the 281h PCGA National
Convention

PCGA CGADSEM

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEQ APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of
the board and its committees, individual director, and the CEO/Prasident.

Process

Criteria

Boarg of Directors

Olreclor's Score Card

Performance based on the Company's
busingss largetls
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Board of Commiftees Selection procedure of the Nomination Criteria set by the committee
Cormmitteg
individual Directors Corporate Governance Scorecard Performance based on the Company’s
business targels
CEQ{President Corporate Govemanee Scorecard Parformance based on the Company's
business targets

N. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the
corporate governance manual involving directors, officers, management and employees,

Violations | Sanctions

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commiission, this Annual
Corporate Governance Report is signed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Davao on 28 June 2013.
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